This Preliminary Official Statement and the information contained herein are subject to completion or amendment. Under no circumstances shall this Preliminary Official Statement
constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale of the Bonds in any jurisdiction in which such offer, solicitation or sale would be unlawful prior

to registration or qualification under the securities laws of any such jurisdiction.

NEW ISSUE Moody’s Investors Service:
(See “Rating”)

NOTICE OF SALE AND PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED NOVEMBER 12, 2014

In the opinion of Edwards Wildman Palmer LLP, Bond Counsel, based upon an analysis of existing law and assuming,
among other matters, compliance with certain covenants, interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal
income tax purposes under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. Interest on the Bonds is not a specific preference item for
purposes of the federal individual or corporate alternative minimum taxes, although such interest is included in adjusted current
earnings when calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income. Under existing law, interest on the Bonds is exempt
from Massachusetts personal income taxes, and the Bonds are exempt from Massachusetts personal property taxes. Bond
Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any other tax consequences related to the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or
receipt of interest on, the Bonds (See “Tax Exemption” herein). The Bonds will NOT be designated as “qualified tax-exempt
obligations” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.

$14,993,858*
TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT
Massachusetts

$9,008,858*
GENERAL OBLIGATION MUNICIPAL PURPOSE LOAN OF 2014 BONDS, SERIES A

Dated: Date of Delivery (December 9, 2014) Due: January 15, 2016-2035

(See next page for maturities)

Principal of the Series A Bonds will be payable January 15 of the years in which the Series A Bonds mature. Interest
from the date of the Series A Bonds will be payable on July 15, 2015 and semi-annually thereafter on each January 15 and July
15 until the principal amount is paid. The Series A Bonds will be subject to redemption prior to their stated dates of maturity, as
described herein.

$5,985,000*
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS OF 2014, SERIES B
UNLIMITED TAX
Dated: Date of Delivery (December 9,2014) Due: May 15, 2016-2035

(See next page for maturities)

Principal of the Series B Bonds will be payable May 15 of the years in which the Series B Bonds mature. Interest from
the date of the Series B Bonds will be payable on May 15, 2015 and semi-annually thereafter on each November 15 and May 15
until the principal amount is paid. The Series B Bonds will be subject to redemption prior to their stated dates of maturity, as
described herein.

The Bonds are issuable only in fully registered form without coupons and, when issued, will be registered in the name
of Cede & Co., as Bondowner and nominee for The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York. DTC will act
as securities depository for the Bonds. Purchases of the Bonds will be made in book-entry form, in the denominations of $5,000
or any integral multiple thereof, except for one denomination of $3,858 of the Series A Bonds maturing in 2016 (see “Book-
Entry Transfer System” herein).

The legality of the Bonds will be approved by Edwards Wildman Palmer LLP of Boston, Massachusetts, Bond
Counsel to the Town. UniBank Fiscal Advisory Services, Inc., serves as financial advisor to the Town. It is expected that the
Bonds, in definitive form, will be delivered to DTC, or the offices of its custodial agent, on or about December 9, 2014 against
payment in federal reserve funds.

*Preliminary, subject to change.

ELECTRONIC AND SEALED BIDS RECEIVED
11:00 A.M. (Eastern Standard Time)
Thursday, November 20, 2014

€ Urasi

UniBank Fiscal Advisory Services, Inc.



MATURITY SCHEDULES

2014 Municipal Purpose Loan of 2014 Bonds, Series A

$9,008,858*

Principal Interest Price/ Principal Interest Price/
Year Amount*  Rate Yield Year Amount*  Rate Yield
2016  $1,033,858 2026 $310,000
2017 1,050,000 2027 320,000
2018 485,000 2028 325,000
2019 490,000 2029 335,000
2020 420,000 2030 345,000
2021 425,000 2031 350,000
2022 430,000 2032 360,000
2023 435,000 2033 370,000
2024 440,000 2034 385,000
2025 305,000 2035 395,000

Refunding Bonds of 2014, Series B

Unlimited Tax
$5,985,000*

Principal Interest Price/ Principal Interest  Price/
Year Amount*  Rate Yield Year Amount*  Rate Yield
2016 $ 600,000 2026 $260,000
2017 600,000 2027 265,000
2018 220,000 2028 270,000
2019 225,000 2029 280,000
2020 230,000 2030 285,000
2021 235,000 2031 290,000
2022 235,000 2032 300,000
2023 240,000 2033 310,000
2024 245,000 2034 320,000

2025 250,000 2035 325,000
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The information and expressions of opinion in this Official Statement are subject to change without notice. Neither the delivery
of this Official Statement nor any sale of the Bonds shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been
no material change in the affairs of the Town since the date of this Official Statement.



Issuer:

Date of Sale:
Method of Sale:
Minimum Bid:
Location of Sale:

Issue:

Dated Date of Bonds:

Maturity Date of Bonds:

Redemption:

Credit Rating:
Security:

Basis of Award:

Tax Exemption:

Continuing Disclosure:

Bank Qualification:
Paying Agent:

Legal Opinion:
Delivery and Payment:

Issue Contacts:

Additional Information:

* Preliminary, subject to change.

ISSUE SUMMARY STATEMENT — SERIES A BONDS

Town of Swampscott, Massachusetts

Thursday, November 20, 2014 at 11:00 A.M. (Eastern Standard Time)
Sealed and Electronic Bids

Par plus accrued interest to the date of delivery, if any.

UniBank Fiscal Advisory Services, Inc., 49 Church St., Whitinsville, MA

$9,008,858* General Obligation Municipal Purpose Loan of 2014 Bonds, Series A,
Book-Entry Only (See “Book-Entry Transfer System”, herein.)

Date of Delivery (December 9, 2014)
Serially on January 15, 2016-2035, as detailed herein.

The Series A Bonds are subject to redemption prior to their stated dates of maturity as
described herein.

Moody’s Investors Service rating is pending.

The Series A Bonds are valid general obligations of the Town of Swampscott,
Massachusetts and the principal of and interest on the Bonds are payable from
taxes which may be levied upon all property in the Town subject to the limitations
imposed by Chapter 59, Section 21C of the General Laws (Proposition 2}%) on
$1,603,858 principal amount of the Series A Bonds and without limit as to rate or
amount on $7,295,000* principal amount of the Series A Bonds, except as
provided under Chapter 44, Section 20 of the General Laws.

Lowest true interest cost (TIC) as of the dated date.

Refer to “Tax Exemption” and Appendix C — “Proposed Form of Legal Opinions”
herein.

Refer to “Continuing Disclosure” and Appendix D — “Proposed Form of Continuing
Disclosure Certificate” herein.

The Series A Bonds will NOT be designated as “qualified tax-exempt obligations.”
U.S. Bank National Association, Boston, Massachusetts
Edwards Wildman Palmer LLP, Boston, Massachusetts

It is expected that the Series A Bonds will be delivered to DTC, or the offices of its
custodial agent, against payment to the account of the Town in federal reserve funds
on or about December 9, 2014.

M. Ronald Mendes, Treasurer, Town of Swampscott,
Telephone (781) 596-9553

David M. Eisenthal, Vice President, UniBank Fiscal Advisory Services, Inc.,
Telephone (508) 849-4222

Richard A. Manley, Jr., Esq., Edwards Wildman Palmer LLP, Boston,
Massachusetts. Telephone (617) 239-0384

Refer to the Preliminary Official Statement dated November 12, 2014.
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Issuer:

Date of Sale:
Method of Sale:
Minimum Bid:
Location of Sale:

Issue:

Dated Date of Bonds:

Maturity Date of Bonds:

Redemption:

Credit Rating:
Security:

Basis of Award:

Tax Exemption:

Continuing Disclosure:

Bank Qualification:
Paying Agent:

Legal Opinion:
Delivery and Payment:

Issue Contacts:

Additional Information:

*Preliminary, subject to change.

ISSUE SUMMARY STATEMENT — SERIES B BONDS

Town of Swampscott, Massachusetts

Thursday, November 20, 2014 at 11:00 A.M. (Eastern Standard Time)
Sealed and Electronic Bids

Par plus accrued interest to the date of delivery, if any.

UniBank Fiscal Advisory Services, Inc., 49 Church St., Whitinsville, MA

$5,985,000* General Obligation Refunding Bonds of 2014, Series B, Book-Entry
Only (See “Book-Entry Transfer System”, herein.)

Date of Delivery (December 9, 2014)
Serially on May 15, 2016-2035, as detailed herein.

The Series B Bonds are subject to redemption prior to their stated dates of maturity as
described herein.

Moody’s Investors Service rating is pending.

The Series B Bonds are valid general obligations of the Town of Swampscott,
Massachusetts and the principal of and interest on the Bonds are payable from
taxes which may be levied upon all property in the Town without limit as to rate
or amount, except as provided under Chapter 44, Section 20 of the General Laws.

Lowest true interest cost (TIC) as of the dated date.

b

Refer to “Tax Exemption” and Appendix C — “Proposed Form of Legal Opinions’
herein.

Refer to “Continuing Disclosure” and Appendix D — “Proposed Form of Continuing
Disclosure Certificate” herein.

The Series B Bonds will NOT be designated as “qualified tax-exempt obligations.”
U.S. Bank National Association, Boston, Massachusetts
Edwards Wildman Palmer LLP, Boston, Massachusetts

It is expected that the Series B Bonds will be delivered to DTC, or the offices of its
custodial agent, against payment to the account of the Town in federal reserve funds
on or about December 9, 2014.

M. Ronald Mendes, Treasurer, Town of Swampscott,
Telephone (781) 596-9553

David M. Eisenthal, Vice President, UniBank Fiscal Advisory Services, Inc.,
Telephone (508) 849-4222

Richard A. Manley, Jr., Esq., Edwards Wildman Palmer LLP, Boston,
Massachusetts. Telephone (617) 239-0384

Refer to the Preliminary Official Statement dated November 12, 2014.
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NOTICE OF SALE

TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT
Massachusetts

$9,008,858*
GENERAL OBLIGATION MUNICIPAL PURPOSE LOAN OF 2014 BONDS, SERIES A

The Town of Swampscott, Massachusetts, will receive sealed and electronic proposals until 11:00 A.M.
(Eastern Standard Time), on
Thursday, November 20, 2014

at UniBank Fiscal Advisory Services, Inc., Whitinsville, Massachusetts, for the purchase of the following
described Bonds:

$9,008,858* GENERAL OBLIGATION MUNICIPAL PURPOSE LOAN OF 2014 BONDS, SERIES A,
payable January 15 of the years and in the amounts as follows:

Principal Principal
Year Amount* Year Amount*
2016 $1,033,858 2026 $310,000
2017 1,050,000 2027 320,000
2018 485,000 2028 325,000
2019 490,000 2029 335,000
2020 420,000 2030 345,000
2021 425,000 2031 350,000
2022 430,000 2032 360,000
2023 435,000 2033 370,000
2024 440,000 2034 385,000
2025 305,000 2035 395,000

The Series A Bonds will be dated as of their date of delivery. Interest from the date of the Series A Bonds will
be payable on July 15, 2015 and semi-annually thereafter on each January 15 and July 15. Principal of and
interest on the Series A Bonds will be paid as described below. The Series A Bonds maturing in the years 2016
through 2023, inclusive, are not subject to redemption prior to their stated dates of maturity.

The Series A Bonds maturing on and after January 15, 2024 are subject to redemption prior to their stated dates
of maturity, at the option of the Town, on and after January 15, 2023 either in whole or in part at any time, and
if in part, by lot within a maturity, at par plus accrued interest to the date set for redemption.

For the Series A Bonds maturing on and after January 15, 2024, bidders may specify that all of the principal
amount of such bonds, may in lieu of having separate maturity dates, be combined to comprise Term Bonds,
and shall be subject to mandatory redemption or mature at par as described above, in each of the years and in
the principal amounts specified in the foregoing maturity schedule. Each mandatory redemption shall be
allocated to the payment of the Term Bond having the nearest subsequent maturity date.

Term Bonds, if any, shall be subject to mandatory redemption on January 15 in the year or years immediately
prior to the stated maturity of such Term Bonds, as indicated in the foregoing maturity schedule at the principal
amount thereof plus accrued interest to the redemption date, without premium.

* Preliminary, subject to change.



The Series A Bonds will be issued by means of a book-entry system with no physical distribution of the Bonds
made to the public. One certificate for each maturity of the Series A Bonds will be issued to The Depository
Trust Company, New York, New York, (DTC), or its custodial agent, and immobilized in their custody. A
book-entry system will be employed, evidencing ownership of the Series A Bonds in principal amounts of
$5,000 or integral multiples thereof, except for one denomination of $3,858 of the Series A Bonds maturing in
2016, with transfers of ownership effected on the records of DTC and its participants pursuant to rules and
procedures adopted by DTC and its participants. The winning bidder, as a condition to delivery of the Series A
Bonds, shall be required to deposit the Series A Bonds with DTC, registered in the name of Cede & Co.
Principal of and interest on the Series A Bonds will be payable to DTC or its nominee as registered owner of the
Series A Bonds. Transfer of principal and interest payments to participants of DTC will be the responsibility of
DTC; transfer of principal and interest payments to beneficial owners by participants of DTC will be the
responsibility of such participants and other nominees of beneficial owners. Neither the Town nor the Paying
Agent will be responsible or liable for maintaining, supervising or reviewing the records maintained by DTC, its
participants or persons acting through such participants.

The legality of the Series A Bonds will be approved by Edwards Wildman Palmer LLP, Boston, Massachusetts,
whose opinion will be furnished to the purchaser without charge.

Electronic proposals will be submitted through i-Deal®. 1f any provisions in this Notice of Sale conflict with
information provided by i-Deal®, this Notice of Sale shall control. Further information about i-Deal®, including
any fees charged, may be obtained from i-Deal® at (212) 849-5000. The Town assumes no responsibility or
liability for bids submitted through i-Deal®. An electronic bid made in accordance with this Notice of Sale
shall be deemed an irrevocable offer to purchase the Series A Bonds in accordance with the terms provided in
this Notice of Sale and shall be binding upon the bidder as if made by a signed and sealed written bid delivered
to the Town.

Other bids should be sealed, marked “Proposal for Series A Bonds” and addressed to Mr. M. Ronald Mendes,
Treasurer, Town of Swampscott, ¢/o UniBank Fiscal Advisory Services Inc., 49 Church Street,
Whitinsville, Massachusetts 01588. Proposals delivered as specified will be accepted. Blank bid forms with
signature may be sent to UniBank Fiscal Advisory Services, Inc. or faxed at (508) 234-1938 prior to submitting
the bids, with actual bids telephoned to (508) 849-4222, at least one half hour prior to the 11:00 A.M. (Eastern
Standard Time) sale. UniBank Fiscal Advisory Services, Inc. will act as agent for the bidder in submitting the
bids, but neither UniBank Fiscal Advisory Services, Inc. nor the Town is responsible for any errors with respect
to bids submitted in this manner. A good faith deposit is not required.

Bidders shall state the rate or rates of interest per annum which the Series A Bonds are to bear in a multiple of
1/8th or 1/20th of 1% but shall not state (a) more than one interest rate for any Series A Bonds having a like
maturity, and (b) any interest rate which exceeds the interest rate stated for any other Series A Bonds by more
than 3%. No bid of less than par and accrued interest to date of delivery will be considered.

As between proposals which comply with this Notice of Sale, the award will be to the bidder who offers to
purchase all the Series A Bonds at the lowest net effective interest rate to the Town. Such interest rate shall be
determined on a true interest cost (TIC) basis, which shall mean that rate which, as of December 9, 2014,
discounts semi-annually all future payments on account of principal and interest to the price bid, not including
interest accrued to the date of delivery, which accrued interest shall be paid by the successful bidder. The award
of the Series A Bonds to the winning bidder will not be effective until the bid has been approved by the
Treasurer and the Board of Selectmen of the Town.
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On or prior to the date of delivery of the Series A Bonds, the successful bidder shall furnish to the Town a
certificate acceptable to Bond Counsel generally to the effect that (i) as of November 20, 2014 (the “Sale
Date”), the Purchaser had offered or reasonably expected to offer all of the Bonds to the general public
(excluding bond houses, brokers, or similar persons acting in the capacity of underwriters or wholesalers) in a
bona fide public offering at the prices set forth in such certificate, plus accrued interest, if any, (ii) such prices
represent fair market prices of the Series A Bonds as of the Sale Date, and (ii1) as of the date of such certificate,
all of the Series A Bonds have been offered to the general public in a bona fide offering at the prices set forth in
such certificate, and at least 10% of each maturity of the Bonds actually has been sold to the general public at
such prices. To the extent the certifications described in the preceding sentence are not factually accurate with
respect to the reoffering of the Series A Bonds, Bond Counsel should be consulted by the bidder as to
alternative certifications that will be suitable to establish the “issue price” of the Bonds for federal tax law
purposes. If a municipal bond insurance policy or similar credit enhancement is obtained with respect to the
Series A Bonds by the successful bidder, such bidder will also be required to certify as to the net present value
savings on the Series A Bonds resulting from payment of insurance premiums or other credit enhancement fees.

Immediately following the opening of bids, the Town, acting through its financial advisor, will contact the
apparent successful bidder by telephone to obtain the initial reoffering prices of each maturity of the Series A
Bonds, the premium to be paid on account of bond insurance, if any, and other information relevant to the sale
of the Series A Bonds. The apparent successful bidder shall then immediately deliver to the Town written
confirmation by facsimile transmission as to such reoffering prices and bond insurance premium, if any. Upon
being supplied with such initial reoffering prices and bond insurance premiums, if any, the Town will determine
the amount of Series A Bonds that it may issue under the Internal Revenue Code. The Town will also
determine the need to otherwise re-allocate the principal maturities of the Series A Bonds. The Town will
consult with the successful bidder before adjusting any maturity. The Town expects to advise the successful
bidder as soon as possible, but no later than 5:00 p.m., (Eastern Time), on the date of the sale of the amount, if
any, of any changes in either the aggregate principal amount (which changes will be allocated among the
several maturities of the Series A Bonds in a manner to be specified by the Town) or individual maturities
(assuming no changes in the aggregate principal amount of the Series A Bonds).

Within the limits set forth herein, the Town reserves the right to adjust the aggregate principal amount of the
Series A Bonds, and to adjust the principal amount of individual maturities of the Series A Bonds, even if the
aggregate principal amount is unchanged. Any adjustment in either the aggregate principal amount or the
individual maturities of the Series A Bonds will be in an amount of $5,000 or an integral multiple thereof and
will be made only as necessary to effect the refunding in accordance with the Town’s objectives. Those
objectives include (1) maintaining a level annual stream of debt service savings and (2) issuing a final par
amount of Series A Bonds that will be sufficient to fund the $1,603,858 of capital projects plus the redemption
price of the Series A Refunded Bonds plus costs of issuance on the Series A Refunding Bonds, given the price
bid by the successful underwriter, while avoiding an over issuance of the Series A Bonds. The total of the cost
of the capital projects, the redemption price of the Series A Refunded Bonds, and Series A Bond issuance costs
is approximately $9,200,000. Underwriters should be advised that a bid for the Series A Bonds that is
significantly different from this amount will likely result in a corresponding change in the par amount of the
Series A Bonds.

The dollar amount bid by the successful bidder will be adjusted to reflect any adjustment in the aggregate
principal amount of the Series A Bonds to be issued. The adjusted bid price will reflect changes in the dollar
amount of the underwriter’s discount and original issue discount/premium, if any, but will not change the per-
bond underwriter’s discount as calculated from the bid and reoffering prices required to be delivered to the
Town as stated herein. The successful bidder may not withdraw its bid or change the interest rates bid or initial
reoffering prices as a result of any changes made to the principal amounts within these limits.
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The Town has not contracted for the issuance of any policy of municipal bond insurance for the Series A Bonds.
If the Series A Bonds qualify for issuance of any such policy or commitment therefor, any purchase of such
insurance or commitment shall be at the sole option and expense of the bidder. Proposals shall not be
conditioned upon the issuance of any such policy or commitment. Any failure of the Series A Bonds to be so
insured or of any such policy or commitment to be issued shall not in any way relieve the purchaser of his
contractual obligations arising from the acceptance of a proposal for the purchase of the Series A Bonds.
Should the successful bidder purchase municipal bond insurance, all expenses associated with such policy or
commitment will be borne by the successful bidder, except for the fee paid to Moody’s Investors Service for the
rating of the Series A Bonds. Any such fee paid to Moody’s Investors Service would be borne by the Town.

It shall be a condition to the obligation of the successful bidder to accept delivery of and pay for the Series A
Bonds that the bidder shall be furnished, without cost, with (a) the approving opinion of the firm of Edwards
Wildman Palmer LLP of Boston, Massachusetts, substantially in the form of Appendix C of the Preliminary
Official Statement dated November 12, 2014 included herein, (see “Tax Exemption” and Appendix C in the
Preliminary Official Statement), (b) a certificate in form satisfactory to said firm dated as of the date of delivery
of the Series A Bonds and receipt of payment therefor to the effect that there is no litigation pending or, to the
knowledge of the signers thereof, threatened affecting the validity of the Series A Bonds or the power of the
Town to levy and collect taxes to pay them, (c) a certificate of the Town Treasurer to the effect that, to the best
of his knowledge and belief, both as of the date of sale and of the date of delivery of the Series A Bonds, the
Preliminary Official Statement referred to below does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact and
does not omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made therein, in the light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; and (d) a Continuing Disclosure Certificate to be
dated as of the date of the Series A Bonds and incorporated by reference in the Series A Bonds, substantially in
the form of Appendix D.

It is anticipated that CUSIP identification numbers will be printed on the Series A Bonds, but neither the failure
to print such numbers on any bond, nor any error with respect thereto shall constitute cause for a failure or
refusal by the purchaser thereof to accept delivery of and pay for the Series A Bonds. All expenses in relation
to the printing of CUSIP numbers on the Series A Bonds shall be paid for by the Town; provided, however that
the Town assumes no responsibility for any CUSIP Service Bureau or other charge that may be imposed for the
assignment of such numbers.

In order to assist bidders in complying with Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) promulgated by the Securities and Exchange
Commission, the Town will undertake to provide annual reports and notices of certain significant events. A
description of this undertaking is set forth in the Preliminary Official Statement.

The Series A Bonds, in definitive form, will be delivered to the purchaser at DTC, or the offices of its custodial
agent, on or about December 9, 2014.

The Series A Bonds will NOT be designated as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for purposes of Section
265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

Additional information concerning the Town and the Series A Bonds is contained in the Preliminary Official
Statement dated November 12, 2014, to which prospective bidders are directed. The Preliminary Official
Statement is provided for informational purposes only and is not a part of this Notice of Sale. Such Preliminary
Official Statement is deemed final by the Town as of its date for purposes of SEC Rule 15¢ 2-12(b)(1). Copies
of the Preliminary Official Statement and a suggested form of proposal for the Series A Bonds may be obtained
from David M. Eisenthal, Vice President, UniBank Fiscal Advisory Services, Inc., 49 Church Street,
Whitinsville, Massachusetts 01588, telephone (508) 849-4222. Within seven (7) business days following award
of the Series A Bonds in accordance herewith, 75 copies of a Final Official Statement will be furnished to the
successful bidder. Additional copies may be obtained at the successful bidder’s expense.
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The right is reserved to reject any or all bids and to reject any bid not complying with this Notice of Sale and, so
far as permitted by law, to waive any irregularity with respect to any proposal.

TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT
Massachusetts

/s/ M. Ronald Mendes

Treasurer

Dated: November 12, 2014
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NOTICE OF SALE

TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT
Massachusetts

$5,985,000*
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS OF 2014, SERIES B

The Town of Swampscott, Massachusetts, will receive sealed and electronic proposals until 11:00 A.M.
(Eastern Standard Time), on
Thursday, November 20, 2014

at UniBank Fiscal Advisory Services, Inc., Whitinsville, Massachusetts, for the purchase of the following
described Series B Bonds:

$5,985,000* GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS OF 2014, SERIES B, payable May 15 of
the years and in the amounts as follows:

Principal Principal
Year Amount* Year Amount*
2016 $600,000 2026 $260,000
2017 600,000 2027 265,000
2018 220,000 2028 270,000
2019 225,000 2029 280,000
2020 230,000 2030 285,000
2021 235,000 2031 290,000
2022 235,000 2032 300,000
2023 240,000 2033 310,000
2024 245,000 2034 320,000
2025 250,000 2035 325,000

The Series B Bonds will be dated as of their date of delivery. Interest from the date of the Series B Bonds will
be payable on May 15, 2015 and semi-annually thereafter on each November 15 and May 15. Principal of and
interest on the Series B Bonds will be paid as described below. The Series B Bonds maturing in the years 2016
through 2023, inclusive, are not subject to redemption prior to their stated dates of maturity.

The Bonds maturing on and after May 15, 2024 are subject to redemption prior to their stated dates of maturity,
at the option of the Town, on and after May 15, 2023 either in whole or in part at any time, and if in part, by lot
within a maturity, at par plus accrued interest to the date set for redemption.

For the Bonds maturing on and after May 15, 2024, bidders may specify that all of the principal amount of such
bonds, may in lieu of having separate maturity dates, be combined to comprise Term Bonds, and shall be
subject to mandatory redemption or mature at par as described above, in each of the years and in the principal
amounts specified in the foregoing maturity schedule. Each mandatory redemption shall be allocated to the
payment of the Term Bond having the nearest subsequent maturity date.

Term Bonds, if any, shall be subject to mandatory redemption on May 15 in the year or years immediately prior
to the stated maturity of such Term Bonds, as indicated in the foregoing maturity schedule at the principal
amount thereof plus accrued interest to the redemption date, without premium.

*Preliminary, subject to change.
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The Series B Bonds will be issued by means of a book-entry system with no physical distribution of the Series
B Bonds made to the public. One certificate for each maturity of the Series B Bonds will be issued to The
Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, (DTC), or its custodial agent, and immobilized in their
custody. A book-entry system will be employed, evidencing ownership of the Series B Bonds in principal
amounts of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof, with transfers of ownership effected on the records of DTC and
its participants pursuant to rules and procedures adopted by DTC and its participants. The winning bidder, as a
condition to delivery of the Series B Bonds, shall be required to deposit the Series B Bonds with DTC,
registered in the name of Cede & Co. Principal of and interest on the Series B Bonds will be payable to DTC or
its nominee as registered owner of the Series B Bonds. Transfer of principal and interest payments to
participants of DTC will be the responsibility of DTC; transfer of principal and interest payments to beneficial
owners by participants of DTC will be the responsibility of such participants and other nominees of beneficial
owners. Neither the Town nor the Paying Agent will be responsible or liable for maintaining, supervising or
reviewing the records maintained by DTC, its participants or persons acting through such participants.

The legality of the Series B Bonds will be approved by Edwards Wildman Palmer LLP, Boston, Massachusetts,
whose opinion will be furnished to the purchaser without charge.

Electronic proposals will be submitted through i-Deal®. If any provisions in this Notice of Sale conflict with
information provided by i-Deal®, this Notice of Sale shall control. Further information about i-Deal®, including
any fees charged, may be obtained from i-Deal® at (212) 849-5000. The Town assumes no responsibility or
liability for bids submitted through i-Deal®. An electronic bid made in accordance with this Notice of Sale
shall be deemed an irrevocable offer to purchase the Series B Bonds in accordance with the terms provided in
this Notice of Sale and shall be binding upon the bidder as if made by a signed and sealed written bid delivered
to the Town.

Other bids should be sealed, marked “Proposal for Series B Bonds” and addressed to Mr. M. Ronald Mendes,
Treasurer, Town of Swampscott, c/o UniBank Fiscal Advisory Services Inc., 49 Church Street,
Whitinsville, Massachusetts 01588. Proposals delivered as specified will be accepted. Blank bid forms with
signature may be sent to UniBank Fiscal Advisory Services, Inc. or faxed at (508) 234-1938 prior to submitting
the bids, with actual bids telephoned to (508) 849-4222, at least one half hour prior to the 11:00 A.M. (Eastern
Standard Time) sale. UniBank Fiscal Advisory Services, Inc. will act as agent for the bidder in submitting the
bids, but neither UniBank Fiscal Advisory Services, Inc. nor the Town is responsible for any errors with respect
to bids submitted in this manner. A good faith deposit is not required.

Bidders shall state the rate or rates of interest per annum which the Series B Bonds are to bear in a multiple of
1/8th or 1/20th of 1% but shall not state (a) more than one interest rate for any Series B Bonds having a like
maturity, and (b) any interest rate which exceeds the interest rate stated for any other Series B Bonds by more
than 3%. No bid of less than par and accrued interest to date of delivery will be considered.

As between proposals which comply with this Notice of Sale, the award will be to the bidder who offers to
purchase all the Series B Bonds at the lowest net effective interest rate to the Town. Such interest rate shall be
determined on a true interest cost (TIC) basis, which shall mean that rate which, as of December 9, 2014,
discounts semi-annually all future payments on account of principal and interest to the price bid, not including
interest accrued to the date of delivery, which accrued interest shall be paid by the successful bidder. The award
of the Series B Bonds to the winning bidder will not be effective until the bid has been approved by the
Treasurer and the Board of Selectmen of the Town.
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On or prior to the date of delivery of the Series B Bonds, the successful bidder shall furnish to the Town a
certificate acceptable to Bond Counsel generally to the effect that (i) as of November 20, 2014 (the “Sale
Date”), the Purchaser had offered or reasonably expected to offer all of the Series B Bonds to the general public
(excluding bond houses, brokers, or similar persons acting in the capacity of underwriters or wholesalers) in a
bona fide public offering at the prices set forth in such certificate, plus accrued interest, if any, (ii) such prices
represent fair market prices of the Series B Bonds as of the Sale Date, and (iii) as of the date of such certificate,
all of the Series B Bonds have been offered to the general public in a bona fide offering at the prices set forth in
such certificate, and at least 10% of each maturity of the Bonds actually has been sold to the general public at
such prices. To the extent the certifications described in the preceding sentence are not factually accurate with
respect to the reoffering of the Series B Bonds, Bond Counsel should be consulted by the bidder as to
alternative certifications that will be suitable to establish the “issue price” of the Bonds for federal tax law
purposes. If a municipal bond insurance policy or similar credit enhancement is obtained with respect to the
Series B Bonds by the successful bidder, such bidder will also be required to certify as to the net present value
savings on the Series B Bonds resulting from payment of insurance premiums or other credit enhancement fees.

Immediately following the opening of bids, the Town, acting through its financial advisor, will contact the
apparent successful bidder by telephone to obtain the initial reoffering prices of each maturity of the Series B
Bonds, the premium to be paid on account of bond insurance, if any, and other information relevant to the sale
of the Series B Bonds. The apparent successful bidder shall then immediately deliver to the Town written
confirmation by facsimile transmission as to such reoffering prices and bond insurance premium, if any. Upon
being supplied with such initial reoffering prices and bond insurance premiums, if any, the Town will determine
the amount of Series B Bonds that it may issue under the Internal Revenue Code. The Town will also
determine the need to otherwise re-allocate the principal maturities of the Series B Bonds. The Town will
consult with the successful bidder before adjusting any maturity. The Town expects to advise the successful
bidder as soon as possible, but no later than 5:00 p.m., (Eastern Time), on the date of the sale of the amount, if
any, of any changes in either the aggregate principal amount (which changes will be allocated among several
maturities of the Series B Bonds in a manner to be specified by the Town) or individual maturities (assuming no
changes in the aggregate principal amount of the Series B Bonds).

Within the limits set forth herein, the Town reserves the right to adjust the aggregate principal amount of the
Series B Bonds, and to adjust the principal amount of individual maturities of the Series B Bonds, even if the
aggregate principal amount is unchanged. Any adjustment in either the aggregate principal amount or the
individual maturities of the Series B Bonds will be in an amount of $5,000 or an integral multiple thereof and
will be made only as necessary to effect the refunding in accordance with the Town’s objectives. Those
objectives include maintaining a level annual stream of debt service savings while avoiding an over issuance of
the Series B Bonds. The redemption price of the Series B Refunded Bonds, and Series B Bond issuance costs is
approximately $6,020,000. Underwriters should be advised that a bid for the Series B Bonds that is significantly
different from this amount will likely result in a corresponding change in the par amount of the Series B Bonds.

The dollar amount bid by the successful bidder will be adjusted to reflect any adjustment in the aggregate
principal amount of the Series B Bonds to be issued. The adjusted bid price will reflect changes in the dollar
amount of the underwriter’s discount and original issue discount/premium, if any, but will not change the per-
bond underwriter’s discount as calculated from the bid and reoffering prices required to be delivered to the
Town as stated herein. The successful bidder may not withdraw its bid or change the interest rates bid or initial
reoffering prices as a result of any changes made to the principal amounts within these limits.

The Town has not contracted for the issuance of any policy of municipal bond insurance for the Series B Bonds.
If the Series B Bonds qualify for issuance of any such policy or commitment therefor, any purchase of such
insurance or commitment shall be at the sole option and expense of the bidder. Proposals shall not be
conditioned upon the issuance of any such policy or commitment. Any failure of the Series B Bonds to be so
insured or of any such policy or commitment to be issued shall not in any way relieve the purchaser of his
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contractual obligations arising from the acceptance of a proposal for the purchase of the Series B Bonds.
Should the successful bidder purchase municipal bond insurance, all expenses associated with such policy or
commitment will be borne by the successful bidder, except for the fee paid to Moody’s Investors Service for the
rating of the Series B Bonds. Any such fee paid to Moody’s Investors Service would be borne by the Town.

It shall be a condition to the obligation of the successful bidder to accept delivery of and pay for the Series B
Bonds that the bidder shall be furnished, without cost, with (a) the approving opinion of the firm of Edwards
Wildman Palmer LLP of Boston, Massachusetts, substantially in the form of Appendix C of the Preliminary
Official Statement dated November 12, 2014 included herein, (see “Tax Exemption” and Appendix C in the
Preliminary Official Statement), (b) a certificate in form satisfactory to said firm dated as of the date of delivery
of the Series B Bonds and receipt of payment therefor to the effect that there is no litigation pending or, to the
knowledge of the signers thereof, threatened affecting the validity of the Series B Bonds or the power of the
Town to levy and collect taxes to pay them, (c) a certificate of the Town Treasurer to the effect that, to the best
of his knowledge and belief, both as of the date of sale and of the date of delivery of the Series B Bonds, the
Preliminary Official Statement referred to below does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact and
does not omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made therein, in the light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; and (d) a Continuing Disclosure Certificate to be
dated as of the date of the Bonds and incorporated by reference in the Series B Bonds, substantially in the form
of Appendix D.

It is anticipated that CUSIP identification numbers will be printed on the Series B Bonds, but neither the failure
to print such numbers on any bond, nor any error with respect thereto shall constitute cause for a failure or
refusal by the purchaser thereof to accept delivery of and pay for the Series B Bonds. All expenses in relation
to the printing of CUSIP numbers on the Bonds shall be paid for by the Town; provided, however that the Town
assumes no responsibility for any CUSIP Service Bureau or other charge that may be imposed for the
assignment of such numbers.

In order to assist bidders in complying with Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) promulgated by the Securities and Exchange
Commission, the Town will undertake to provide annual reports and notices of certain significant events. A
description of this undertaking is set forth in the Preliminary Official Statement.

The Series B Bonds, in definitive form, will be delivered to the purchaser at DTC, or the offices of its custodial
agent, on or about December 9, 2014.

The Series B Bonds will NOT be designated as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for purposes of Section
265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

Additional information concerning the Town and the Series B Bonds is contained in the Preliminary Official
Statement dated November 12, 2014, to which prospective bidders are directed. The Preliminary Official
Statement is provided for informational purposes only and is not a part of this Notice of Sale. Such Preliminary
Official Statement is deemed final by the Town as of its date for purposes of SEC Rule 15¢ 2-12(b)(1). Copies
of the Preliminary Official Statement and a suggested form of proposal for the Bonds may be obtained from
David M. Eisenthal, Vice President, UniBank Fiscal Advisory Services, Inc., 49 Church Street, Whitinsville,
Massachusetts 01588, telephone (508) 849-4222. Within seven (7) business days following award of the Bonds
in accordance herewith, 75 copies of a Final Official Statement will be furnished to the successful bidder.
Additional copies may be obtained at the successful bidder’s expense.
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The right is reserved to reject any or all bids and to reject any bid not complying with this Notice of Sale and, so
far as permitted by law, to waive any irregularity with respect to any proposal.

TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT
Massachusetts

/s/ M. Ronald Mendes

Treasurer

Dated: November 12, 2014
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT

TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT
MASSACHUSETTS

$9,008,858*
GENERAL OBLIGATION MUNICIPAL PURPOSE LOAN OF 2014 BONDS, SERIES A

$5,985,000*
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS OF 2014, SERIES B

INTRODUCTION

This Official Statement is provided for the purpose of presenting certain information relating to the Town of
Swampscott, Massachusetts (the "Town") in connection with the sale of $9,008,858* General Obligation
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2014 Bonds, Series A (the “Series A Bonds”), and $5,985,000* General Obligation
Refunding Bonds of 2014, Series B (the “Series B Bonds,” collectively the Series A Bonds and the Series B
Bonds shall be known as the “Bonds”) dated as of their date of delivery by the Town.

The Bonds are being offered for sale at public bidding and a Notice of Sale dated November 12, 2014, has been
furnished to prospective bidders. Reference is hereby made to the Notice of Sale for the terms and conditions of
bidding.

The Bonds will be general obligations of the Town for which its full faith and credit are pledged. They are not
guaranteed by The Commonwealth of Massachusetts (the “Commonwealth”) or any other entity. The security
for the Bonds is more fully described under the caption Security and Remedies. See also the caption Opinion of
Bond Counsel.

Questions regarding information contained in this Official Statement or other matters should be directed to M.
Ronald Mendes, Town Treasurer (781) 596-9553, David M. Eisenthal, Vice President, UniBank Fiscal
Advisory Services, Inc. (508) 849-4222, or Richard A. Manley, Jr., Edwards Wildman Palmer LLP (617) 239-
0384.

The information contained herein has been obtained from the sources indicated or from the Town.

*Preliminary, subject to change.



PART 1
THE BONDS

DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS

The Bonds will be dated as of their date of delivery (December 9, 2014).

The Series A Bonds will mature on January 15 of the years and in the principal amounts as follows:

Due Principal Due Principal
January 15 Amount* January 15 Amount*
2016 $1,033,858 2026 $310,000
2017 1,050,000 2027 320,000
2018 485,000 2028 325,000
2019 490,000 2029 335,000
2020 420,000 2030 345,000
2021 425,000 2031 350,000
2022 430,000 2032 360,000
2023 435,000 2033 370,000
2024 440,000 2034 385,000
2025 305,000 2035 395,000

* Preliminary, subject to change.

The Series B Bonds will mature on May 15 of the years and in the principal amounts as follows:

Due Principal Due Principal
May 15 Amount* May 15 Amount*
2016 $600,000 2026 $260,000
2017 600,000 2027 265,000
2018 220,000 2028 270,000
2019 225,000 2029 280,000
2020 230,000 2030 285,000
2021 235,000 2031 290,000
2022 235,000 2032 300,000
2023 240,000 2033 310,000
2024 245,000 2034 320,000
2025 250,000 2035 325,000

* Preliminary, subject to change.
The Bonds will bear interest at the rate or rates per annum specified by the successful bidder(s).

Principal and semi-annual interest will be paid by U.S. Bank National Association, Boston, Massachusetts, or
its successor, acting as paying agent (the “Paying Agent”). Interest from the date of the Series A Bonds will be
payable on July 15, 2015 and semi-annually thereafter on each January 15 and July 15. Interest from the date of
the Series B Bonds will be payable on May 15, 2015 and semi-annually thereafter on each November 15 and
May 15. So long as The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York, or its nominee, Cede &
Co., is the Bondowner, such payments of principal and interest on each series of the Bonds will be made

directly to such Bondowner. Disbursement of such payments to the DTC Participants is the responsibility of
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DTC and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners is the responsibility of the DTC Participants
and Indirect Participants, as more fully described herein.

The Bonds are issuable only in fully registered form without coupons, and, when issued, will be registered in
the name of Cede & Co., as Bondowner and nominee for DTC. DTC will act as securities depository for the
each series of the Bonds. Purchases of each series of the Bonds will be made in book-entry form, in the
denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof except for one denomination of $3,858 of the Series A
Bonds maturing in 2016. Purchasers will not receive certificates representing their interests in Bonds
purchased. So long as Cede & Co. is the Bondowner, as nominee of DTC, references herein to the Bondowners
or registered owner shall mean Cede & Co., as aforesaid, and shall not mean the Beneficial Owners (as defined
herein) of the Bonds. (See Book-Entry Transfer System herein.)

Record Date

The record date for each payment of interest for the Bonds is the last business day of the month preceding the
interest payment date, provided that, under certain circumstances, the Paying Agent may establish a special
record date. The special record date may not be more than twenty (20) days before the date set for payment.
The Paying Agent will mail notice of a special record date to the bondholders at least ten (10) days before the
special record date.

Book-Entry Transfer System

The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, NY, will act as securities depository for each series of the
Bonds. The Bonds will be issued in fully-registered form registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's
partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One-
fully registered certificate will be issued for each maturity of each series of the Bonds, each in the aggregate
principal amount of such maturity, and each such certificate will be deposited with DTC.

DTC, the world's largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New
York Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of
the Federal Reserve System, a ‘“clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform
Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S.
and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100
countries) that DTC's participants (“Direct Participants™) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade
settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through
electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates
the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S.
securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations.
DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC is the
holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation,
all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access
to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers,
banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a
Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”). DTC has a Standard & Poor's rating of
AA+. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
More information about DTC can be found at www.dtce.com and www.dtc.org.

Purchases of securities deposited with DTC must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive
a credit for such securities on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each security
deposited with DTC (“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants'
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records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial
Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as
periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial
Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in securities deposited with DTC are to be
accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial
Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in securities
deposited with DTC, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for such securities is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all securities deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the
name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized
representative of DTC. The deposit of securities with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or
such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual
Beneficial Owners of the securities deposited with it; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct
Participants to whose accounts such securities are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners.
The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of
their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to
Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed
by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time
to time.

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of a maturity is being redeemed, DTC’s practice is to
determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such maturity to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor such other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to securities
deposited with it unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's MMI Procedures. Under
its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the issuer of such securities or its paying agent as soon as
possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those
Direct Participants to whose accounts the securities are credited on the record date (identified in a listing
attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Principal and interest payments on securities deposited with DTC will be made to Cede & Co., or such other
nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct
Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the issuer of such
securities or its paying agent, on the payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's
records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and
customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered
in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC (nor its nominee), the issuer
of such securities or its paying agent, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect
from time to time. Payment of principal and interest to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested
by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the issuer of such securities or its paying agent,
disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of
such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to securities held by it at any time by
giving reasonable notice to the issuer of such securities or its paying agent. Under such circumstances, in the
event that a successor depository is not obtained, physical certificates are required to be printed and delivered to
Beneficial Owners.

The Town may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a
successor securities depository). In that event, physical certificates will be printed and delivered to Beneficial

Owners.
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The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been obtained from sources
that the Town believes to be reliable, but the Town takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

DTC Practices

The Town can make no assurances that DTC, Direct Participants, Indirect Participants or other nominees of the
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds will act in a manner described in this Official Statement. DTC is required to
act according to rules and procedures established by DTC and its participants which are on file with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

AUTHORIZATION AND USE OF PROCEEDS

$1,603,838 par amount of the Series A Bonds is issued for the following purposes, authorized by votes of the
Town on May 7, 2013 and November 18, 2013, respectively:

Par
Purpose Amount Statute
Paving (5/7/13) $ 150,000 Chapter 44, Section 7(6)
Drainage (11/18/13) 820,000 Chapter 44, Section 7(1)
Technology Upgrades (5/7/13) 105,000 Chapter 44, Section 7(28)
Fisherman’s Beach Improvements (5/7/13) 90,000 Chapter 44, Section 7(9)
Fire Department Asbestos Abatement (5/7/13) 86,380 Chapter 44, Section 7(31)
Odor Mitigation (5/7/13) 77,478 Chapter 44, Section 7(35)
Cassidy Park Seawall (5/7/13) 75,000 Chapter 44, Section 7(7)
Public Building Maintenance (5/7/13) 75,000 Chapter 44, Section 7(3A)
Technology Upgrades (5/7/13) 50,000 Chapter 44, Section 7(28)
Open Space (5/7/13) 50,000 Chapter 44, Section 7(25)
Street Signage (5/7/13) 25,000 Chapter 44, Section 7(1)
Total $1,603,858

The Town currently has a like amount of bond anticipation notes outstanding and maturing on December 22,
2014. These notes will be permanently retired with proceeds of the Series A Bonds.

$7,405,000* par amount of the Series A Bonds (the “Series A Refunding Bonds”) are authorized under Chapter
44, Section 21A, of the Massachusetts General Laws, as amended, and a vote of the Board of Selectmen
expected to be taken on December 2, 2014 for the purpose of refunding on a current basis the Town’s
$14,710,000 General Obligation Bonds dated January 15, 2007 and maturing January 15 in the years 2016
through 2027, inclusive (the “Series A Refunded Bonds”™), in the aggregate principal amount of $7,385,000 and
to pay costs of issuance thereon and further described as follows:



Par Coupon

Amount Maturity Rate CUSIP

$ 775,000 January 15, 2016 4.00 % 869648 PM1
$ 775,000 January 15, 2017 4.00 869648 PN9
$ 575,000 January 15, 2018 4.00 869648 PP4

$ 575,000 January 15, 2019 4.00 869648 PQ2
$ 575,000 January 15, 2020 4.00 869648 PRO
$ 575,000 January 15, 2021 4.00 869648 PS8

§ 575,000 January 15, 2022 4.00 869648 PT6

$ 575,000 January 15, 2023 4.00 869648 PU3

$ 600,000 January 15, 2024 4.00 869648 PV1

$ 600,000 January 15, 2025 4.00 869648 PW9
$ 600,000 January 15, 2026 4.125 869648 PX7
$ 585,000 January 15, 2027 4.125 869648 PY5
$7,385,000

$7,001,400 par amount of the Series A Refunded Bonds was issued for high school construction, the debt
service for which was excluded from the limits of Proposition 2%2. Thus, the debt service on $7,020,000* par
amount of the Series A Refunding Bonds is excluded from the limits of Proposition 2%:. The Series A
Refunded Bonds are to be redeemed on February 1, 2015 at par plus accrued interest to the date of redemption.
In addition, the Town is extending the amortization on this portion of the Series A Refunding Bonds based on
their maximum final maturity date under current Massachusetts law, which is October 20, 2035, in order to
stabilize the tax rate impact of debt service that is excluded from Proposition 2.

The Series B Bonds are authorized under Chapter 44, Section 21A, of the Massachusetts General Laws, as
amended, and a vote of the Board of Selectmen expected to be taken on December 2, 2014 for the purpose of
refunding on a current basis the Town’s $10,363,000 General Obligation Bonds dated October 15, 2006
maturing May 15 in the years 2016 through 2026, inclusive (the “Series B Refunded Bonds”), in the aggregate
principal amount of $3,270,000 and to pay costs of issuance thereon and further described as follows:

Par Coupon

Amount Maturity Rate CUSIP

$ 545,000 May 15,2016 3.625% 869648 NQ4
$ 545,000 May 15,2017 4.00 869648 NR2
$ 545,000 May 15,2018 4.75 869648 NSO
$ 545,000 May 15,2019 4.00 869648 NT8
$ 545,000 May 15,2020 4.00 869648 NUS5
$ 545,000 May 15,2021 4.00 869648 NV3
$ 545,000 May 15,2022 4.00 869648 NW1
$ 545,000 May 15, 2023 4.00 869648 NX9
$ 545,000 May 15,2024 4.00 869648 NY7
$ 545,000 May 15, 2025 4.00 869648 NZ4
$ 545,000 May 15, 2026 4.00 869648 PA7
$3.,270,000

*Preliminary, subject to change.



The Series B Refunded Bonds were issued for high school construction, the debt service for which was
excluded from the limits of Proposition 2’2. Thus, the debt service on the Series B Bonds is excluded from
the limits of Proposition 2%. The Series B Refunded Bonds are to be redeemed on February 1, 2015 at par plus
accrued interest to the date of redemption. In addition, the Town is extending the amortization on the Series B
Bonds based on their maximum final maturity date under current Massachusetts law, which is October 20,
2035, in order to stabilize the tax rate impact of debt service that is excluded from Proposition 2%5.

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

The following information summarizes the sources and uses of funds of the Bonds, excluding accrued interest:

Sources Uses

Par Amount of Bonds $ Redemption Price —

Reoffering Premium Refunded Bonds $ 13,938,194.73
Available Funds Retirement of BANs 1,603,858.00

Issuance Costs and
Underwriters Discount
Other
Total Sources $ Total Uses $

OPTIONAL REDEMPTION — SERIES A BONDS

Series A Bonds maturing in the years 2016 through 2023, inclusive, are not subject to redemption prior to their
stated dates of maturity.

Series A Bonds maturing on and after January 15, 2024 are subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of

the Town, on and after January 15, 2023, either in whole or in part at any time, and if in part, by lot within a
maturity, at par plus accrued interest to the date set for redemption.

OPTIONAL REDEMPTION — SERIES B BONDS

Series B Bonds maturing in the years 2016 through 2023, inclusive, are not subject to redemption prior to their
stated dates of maturity.

Series B Bonds maturing on and after May 15, 2024 are subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the

Town, on and after May 15, 2023, either in whole or in part at any time, and if in part, by lot within a maturity, at
par plus accrued interest to the date set for redemption.

MANDATORY REDEMPTION

Term Bonds, if any are specified by the successful bidder, will be subject to mandatory redemption on January
15 in the case of the Series A bonds and May 15 in the case of the Series B Bonds in each year or years
immediately prior to the stated maturity of such Term Bonds (the particular Bonds of such maturity to be
redeemed to be selected by lot) as indicated on the cover page of the Preliminary Official Statement at the
principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the redemption date.



NOTICE OF REDEMPTION

So long as DTC is the registered owner of the Bonds, notice of any redemption of Bonds, prior to their
maturities, specifying the Bonds (or portions thereof) to be redeemed shall be mailed to DTC not more than 60
days nor less than 30 days prior to the redemption date. Any failure on the part of DTC to notify the DTC
Participants of the redemption or failure on the part of the DTC Participants or of a nominee of a Beneficial
Owner (having received notice from a DTC Participant or otherwise) to notify the Beneficial Owner shall not
affect the validity of the redemption. If moneys for the redemption are held by the Paying Agent on the
redemption date and if notice of the redemption shall have been duly mailed, then from and after the redemption
date interest on the Bonds (or portions thereof) called for redemption shall cease to accrue.

SECURITY AND REMEDIES

Full Faith and Credit. General obligation bonds and notes of a Massachusetts city or town constitute a pledge of
its full faith and credit. Payment is not limited to a particular fund or revenue source. Except for “qualified bonds”
as described above (see “Serial Bonds and Notes” under “TYPES OF OBLIGATIONS” herein) and setoffs of state
distributions as described below (see “State Distributions” herein), no provision is made by the Massachusetts
statutes for priorities among bonds and notes and other general obligations, although the use of certain moneys may
be restricted.

Tax Levy. The Massachusetts statutes direct the municipal assessors to include annually in the tax levy for the
next fiscal year “all debt and interest charges matured and maturing during the next fiscal year and not otherwise
provided for and all amounts necessary to satisfy final judgments”. Specific provision is also made for including in
the next tax levy payments of rebate amounts not otherwise provided for and payment of notes in anticipation of
federal or state aid, if the aid is no longer forthcoming.

The total amount of a tax levy is limited by statute. However, the voters in each municipality may vote to exclude
from the limitation any amounts required to pay debt service on indebtedness incurred before November 4, 1980.
Local voters may also vote to exempt specific subsequent bond issues from the limitation. (See “Tax Limitations”
Under “PROPERTY TAX” herein.) In addition, obligations incurred before November 4, 1980 may be
constitutionally entitled to payment from taxes in excess of the statutory limit. The Town has voted to exclude the
debt service on $24,770,110 par amount of currently outstanding bonds, which includes $7,001.400 par
amount of the Series A Refunded Bonds and all of the Series B Refunded Bonds, from the limitations of
Proposition 2 %, subject to the provisions of Chapter 44, Section 20, of the General Laws.

Except for taxes on the increased value of certain property in designated development districts which may be
pledged for the payment of debt service on bonds issued to finance economic development projects within such
districts, no provision is made for a lien on any portion of the tax levy to secure particular bonds or notes or bonds
and notes generally (or judgments on bonds or notes) in priority to other claims. Provision is made, however, for
borrowing to pay judgments, subject to the General Debt Limit. (See “DEBT LIMITS” herein.) Subject to the
approval of the State Director of Accounts for judgments above $10,000, judgments may also be paid from
available funds without appropriation and included in the next tax levy unless other provision is made.

Court Proceedings. Massachusetts cities and towns are subject to suit on their general obligation bonds and notes
and courts of competent jurisdiction have power in appropriate proceedings to order payment of a judgment on the
bonds or notes from lawfully available funds or, if necessary, to order the city or town to take lawful action to
obtain the required money, including the raising of it in the next annual tax levy, within the limits prescribed by
law. (See “Tax Limitations” under “PROPERTY TAX” herein.) In exercising their discretion as to whether to
enter such an order, the courts could take into account all relevant factors including the current operating needs of
the city or town and the availability and adequacy of other remedies. The Massachusetts Supreme Judicial Court
has stated in the past that a judgment against a municipality can be enforced by the taking and sale of the property
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of any inhabitant. However, there has been no judicial determination as to whether this remedy is constitutional
under current due process and equal protection standards.

Restricted Funds. Massachusetts statutes also provide that certain water, gas and electric, community antenna
television system, telecommunications, sewer, parking meter and passenger ferry fee receipts may be used only for
water, gas and electric, community antenna television system, telecommunications, community preservation and
affordable housing, sewer, parking, mitigation of ferry service impacts, community preservation and affordable
housing purposes, respectively; accordingly, moneys derived from these sources may be unavailable to pay general
obligation bonds and notes issued for other purposes. A city or town that accepts certain other statutory provisions
may establish an enterprise fund for a utility, health care, solid waste, recreational or transportation facility and for
police or fire services; under those provisions any surplus in the fund is restricted to use for capital expenditures or
reduction of user charges. In addition, subject to certain limits, a city or town may annually authorize the
establishment of one or more revolving funds in connection with use of certain revenues for programs that produce
those revenues; interest earned on a revolving fund is treated as general fund revenue. A city or town may also
establish an energy revolving loan fund to provide loans to owners of privately-held property in the city or town for
energy conservation and renewable energy projects, and may borrow to establish such a fund. The loan repayments
and interest earned of the investment of amounts in the fund shall be credited to the fund. Also, the annual
allowance for depreciation of a gas and electric plant or a community antenna television and telecommunications
system is restricted to use for plant or system renewals and improvements, for nuclear decommissioning costs, and
costs of contractual commitments, or, with the approval of the State Department of Telecommunications and
Energy, to pay debt incurred for plant or system reconstruction or renewals. Revenue bonds and notes issued in
anticipation of them may be secured by a prior lien on specific revenues. Receipts from industrial users in
connection with industrial revenue financings are also not available for general municipal purposes.

State Distributions. State grants and distributions may in some circumstances be unavailable to pay general
obligation bonds and notes of a city or town in that the State Treasurer is empowered to deduct from such grants
and distributions the amount of any debt service paid on “qualified bonds” (See “Serial Bonds and Notes” under
“TYPES OF OBLIGATIONS” herein) and any other sums due and payable by the city or town to the
Commonwealth or certain other public entities, including any unpaid assessments for costs of any public
transportation authority (such as the Massachusetts Bay Transportation Authority or a regional transit authority) of
which it is a member, for costs of the Massachusetts Water Resources Authority if the city or town is within the
territory served by the Authority, or for charges necessary to meet obligations under the Commonwealth’s Water
Pollution Abatement or Drinking Water Revolving Loan Programs, including such charges imposed by another
local governmental unit that provides wastewater collection or treatment services or drinking water services to the
city or town.

If a city or town is (or is likely to be) unable to pay principal or interest on its bonds or notes when due, it is
required to notify the State Commissioner of Revenue. The Commissioner shall in turn, after verifying the
inability, certify the inability to the State Treasurer. The State Treasurer shall pay the due or overdue amount to the
paying agent for the bonds or notes, in trust, within three days after the certification or one business day prior to the
due date (whichever is later). This payment is limited, however, to the estimated amount otherwise distributable by
the Commonwealth to the city or town during the remainder of the fiscal year (after the deductions mentioned in
the foregoing paragraph). If for any reason any portion of the certified sum has not been paid at the end of the
fiscal year, the State Treasurer shall pay it as soon as practicable in the next fiscal year to the extent of the estimated
distributions for that fiscal year. The sums so paid shall be charged (with interest and administrative costs) against
the distributions to the city or town.

The foregoing does not constitute a pledge of the faith and credit of the Commonwealth. The Commonwealth has
not agreed to maintain existing levels of state distributions, and the direction to use estimated distributions to pay
debt service may be subject to repeal by future legislation. Moreover, adoption of the annual appropriation act has



sometimes been delayed beyond the beginning of the fiscal year and estimated distributions which are subject to
appropriation may be unavailable to pay local debt service until they are appropriated.

Bankruptcy. Enforcement of a claim for payment of principal or interest on general obligation bonds or notes
would be subject to the applicable provisions of Federal bankruptcy laws and to the provisions of other statutes, if
any, hereafter enacted by the Congress or the State legislature extending the time for payment or imposing other
constraints upon enforcement insofar as the same may be constitutionally applied. Massachusetts municipalities
are not currently authorized by the Massachusetts General Laws to file a petition for bankruptcy under Federal
Bankruptcy laws. In cases involving significant financial difficulties faced by a single city, town, or regional school
district, the Commonwealth has enacted special legislation to permit the appointment of a fiscal overseer, finance
control board or, in the most extreme cases, a state receiver. In a limited number of these situations, such special
legislation has also authorized the filing of federal bankruptcy proceedings, with the prior approval of the
Commonwealth. In each case where such authority was granted, it expired at the termination of the
Commonwealth’s oversight of the financially distressed city, town, or regional school district. To date, no such
filings have been approved or made.

OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL

A copy of the legal opinion of the firm of Edwards Wildman Palmer LLP, of Boston, Massachusetts (see
Appendix C), will be furnished to the successful bidder of each Series of the Bonds. The opinion will be dated
and given on and will speak only as of the date of original delivery of each Series of the Bonds to the successful
bidder.

The scope of engagement of Bond Counsel does not extend to passing upon or assuming responsibility for the
accuracy or adequacy of any statements made in this Official Statement other than matters expressly set forth as
their opinion and they make no representation that they have independently verified the same.

TAX EXEMPTION

In the opinion of Edwards Wildman Palmer LLP, Bond Counsel to the Town (“Bond Counsel”), based upon an
analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings, and court decisions, and assuming, among other matters,
compliance with certain covenants, interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax
purposes under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”). Bond Counsel is of the further
opinion that interest on the Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes of the federal individual or
corporate alternative minimum taxes, although Bond Counsel observes that such interest is included in adjusted
current earnings when calculating corporate alternative minimum taxable income. Bond Counsel expresses no
opinion regarding any other federal tax consequences arising with respect to the ownership or disposition of, or
the accrual or receipt of interest on the Bonds. The Bonds will NOT be designated as “qualified tax-exempt
obligations” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.

The Code imposes various requirements relating to the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax
purposes of interest on obligations such as the Bonds. Failure to comply with these requirements may result in
interest on the Bonds being included in gross income for federal income tax purposes, possibly from the date of
original issuance of the Bonds. The Town has covenanted to comply with such requirements to ensure that
interest on the Bonds will not be included in federal gross income. The opinion of Bond Counsel assumes
compliance with these requirements.

Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that, under existing law, interest on the Bonds is exempt from
Massachusetts personal income taxes, and the Bonds are exempt from Massachusetts personal property taxes.
Bond Counsel has not opined as to other Massachusetts tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds.
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Prospective Bondholders should be aware, however, that the Bonds are included in the measure of
Massachusetts estate and inheritance taxes, and the Bonds and the interest thereon are included in the measure
of certain Massachusetts corporate excise and franchise taxes. Bond Counsel has not opined as to the taxability
of the Bonds or the income therefrom under the laws of any state other than Massachusetts. A complete copy of
the proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel is set forth in Appendix C hereto.

To the extent the issue price of any maturity of the Bonds is less than the amount to be paid at maturity of such
Bonds (excluding amounts stated to be interest and payable at least annually over the term of such Bonds), the
difference constitutes “original issue discount,” the accrual of which, to the extent properly allocable to each
owner thereof, is treated as interest on the Bonds which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax
purposes and is exempt from Massachusetts personal income taxes. For this purpose, the issue price of a
particular maturity of the Bonds is the first price at which a substantial amount of such maturity of the Bonds is
sold to the public (excluding bond houses, brokers, or similar persons or organizations acting in the capacity of
underwriters, placement agents or wholesalers). The original issue discount with respect to any maturity of the
Bonds accrues daily over the term to maturity of such Bonds on the basis of a constant interest rate compounded
semi-annually (with straight-line interpolations between compounding dates). The accruing original issue
discount is added to the adjusted basis of such Bonds to determine taxable gain or loss upon disposition
(including sale, redemption, or payment on maturity) of such Bonds. Bondholders should consult their own tax
advisors with respect to the tax consequences of ownership of Bonds with original issue discount, including the
treatment of purchasers who do not purchase such Bonds in the original offering to the public at the first price at
which a substantial amount of such Bonds is sold to the public.

Bonds purchased, whether at original issuance or otherwise, for an amount greater than the stated principal
amount to be paid at maturity of such Bonds, or, in some cases, at the earlier redemption date of such Bonds
(“Premium Bonds”), will be treated as having amortizable bond premium for federal income tax purposes and
Massachusetts personal income tax purposes. No deduction is allowable for the amortizable bond premium in
the case of obligations, such as the Premium Bonds, the interest on which is excluded from gross income for
federal income tax purposes. However, a Bondholder’s basis in a Premium Bond will be reduced by the amount
of amortizable bond premium properly allocable to such Bondholder. Holders of Premium Bonds should
consult their own tax advisors with respect to the proper treatment of amortizable bond premium in their
particular circumstances.

Bond Counsel has not undertaken to determine (or to inform any person) whether any actions taken (or not
taken) or events occurring (or not occurring) after the date of issuance of the Bonds may adversely affect the
value of, or the tax status of interest on, the Bonds.

Prospective Bondholders should be aware that from time to time, legislation is or may be proposed which, if
enacted into law, could result in interest on the Bonds being subject directly or indirectly to federal income
taxation, or otherwise prevent Bondholders from realizing the full benefit provided under current federal tax law
of the exclusion of interest on the Bonds from gross income. To date, no such legislation has been enacted into
law. However, it is not possible to predict whether any such legislation will be enacted into law. Further, no
assurance can be given that any pending or future legislation, including amendments to the Code, if enacted into
law, or any proposed legislation, including amendments to the Code, or any future judicial, regulatory or
administrative interpretation or development with respect to existing law, will not adversely affect the market
value and marketability of, or the tax status of interest on, the Bonds. Prospective Bondholders are urged to
consult their own tax advisors with respect to any such legislation, interpretation, or development.

Although Bond Counsel is of the opinion that interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal
income tax purposes and is exempt from Massachusetts personal income taxes, the ownership or disposition of,
or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Bonds may otherwise affect the federal or state tax liability of a
Bondholder. Among other possible consequences of ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of
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interest on, the Bonds, the Code requires recipients of certain social security and certain railroad retirement
benefits to take into account receipts or accruals of interest on the Bonds in determining the portion of such
benefits that are included in gross income. The nature and extent of all such other tax consequences will depend
upon the particular tax status of the Bondholder or the Bondholder’s other items of income or deduction.
Except as indicated in the following paragraph, Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any such other
tax consequences, and Bondholders should consult with their own tax advisors with respect to such
consequences.

RATING

Application has been made to Moody’s Investors Service for a rating on the Bonds. Such rating, if obtained,
will reflect only the agency’s view and will be subject to revision or withdrawal which could affect the market
price of the Bonds.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

In order to assist the Underwriters in complying with Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) promulgated by the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “Rule”), the Town will covenant for the benefit of owners of the Bonds to provide
certain financial information and operating data relating to the Town by not later than 270 days after the end of
each fiscal year (the “Annual Report”), and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain enumerated events.

The covenants will be contained in a Continuing Disclosure Certificate, the proposed form of which is provided
in Appendix D. The Certificate will be executed by the signers of the Bonds, and incorporated by reference in
the Bonds. The Town is the only “obligated person” with respect to the Bonds within the meaning of the Rule.

The Town believes that it has complied, in all material respects, with its previous undertakings to provide
financial information and notices of significant events in accordance with the Rule within the past five years.

It should be noted that prior to 2014, the Town’s practice was to submit the its annual audit as part of the next
annual continuing disclosure filing following its release, rather than as a separate filing at the time of the audit’s
release. The Town has changed this practice, and filed its audited financials for the fiscal year ending June 30,
2013 with EMMA when they became generally available to the public; the Town will continue this practice
with its future audits.
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PART II
THE TOWN

Swampscott, Massachusetts (the “Town”) incorporated as a Town in 1852, is governed by a representative town
meeting and a five member Board of Selectmen and is located in southeastern Essex County. The Town covers
an area of approximately 3.05 square miles and is bordered on the east and south by the Atlantic Ocean, on the
west by the City of Lynn and on the north by the City of Salem and the Town of Marblehead.

CONSTITUTIONAL STATUS AND FORM OF GOVERNMENT

Massachusetts cities and towns are subject to the plenary legislative power of the Commonwealth. As stated by
the Supreme Judicial Court:

A town is not an independent sovereignty. It is merely a subordinate agency of State government. It is a
creature of the Commonwealth, from which are derived all its powers and those of its voters and officers.

Cities and towns provide general governmental services at the local level. Municipalities were traditionally
authorized to exercise only those powers granted by the State legislature, but Massachusetts adopted a Home
Rule Amendment to its Constitution in 1966, under which a city or town may exercise by ordinance or by-law
any power which the State legislature could confer upon it, provided that the ordinance or by-law is consistent
with the laws enacted by the State legislature. Certain powers are excluded from home rule and may still be
exercised only when authorized by State law; these powers include the power to levy taxes, the power to borrow
money, and the power to enact private or civil laws governing civil relationships except as an incident to the
exercise of an independent municipal power. Under the Home Rule Amendment the State legislature may enact
general laws relating to a class of two or more municipalities but (except in limited circumstances) may enact a
special law relating to a particular city or town only on request of the city or town or on recommendation of the
governor and passage by a two-thirds vote of both houses of the legislature.

An amendment to the State Constitution provides that any law imposing additional costs on two or more cities
or towns by regulating aspects of municipal employment will not be effective within a city or town until the city
council or town meeting accepts the law. Local acceptance is not required if the legislature has either passed
the law by a two-thirds vote or provided that the additional costs would be assumed by the State.

Cities and towns may change their form of government by adopting home rule charters or amending existing
charters. A town of less than 12,000 population may not change to a city form of government and a town of less
than 6,000 inhabitants may not change from the open town meeting form of government to a limited or
representative town meeting form.

Cities are generally governed by a city council and an elected mayor who has the power to veto council actions;
the council may override a mayoral veto by a two-thirds vote of the councilors. Some cities are governed by a
city council and an appointed city manager who has no power to veto council actions; some municipalities,
although still called “towns”, have adopted a similar form of government with a town council and town
manager or administrator. Provision is often made for a referendum on council actions, and for initiation of
measures, upon petition of a sufficient number of voters.

Most towns are governed by open town meetings in which any voter may participate. Others have an elected
representative town meeting, often with public officers serving as ex officio members of the town meeting.
Provision is usually made for a referendum on actions of the representative town meeting upon petition of a
sufficient number of voters. Administrative affairs are generally managed by a board of three or more
selectmen, sometimes with the assistance of a town manager or executive secretary.
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School affairs of cities and towns are administered by an elected school committee, except in those towns
whose educational functions are carried out entirely through a regional school district.

GOVERNING BODIES AND OFFICERS

Local legislative decisions are made by a representative town meeting consisting of 324 members and a five
member Board of Selectmen in the Town. Subject to the legislative decisions made by town meeting, the
affairs of the Town are generally administered by a five member Board of Selectmen, each of whom is elected
for a staggered three-year term on an at-large basis. Local taxes are assessed by the three member Board of
Assessors, each of whom is elected for staggered three-year terms. The affairs of the schools are generally
administered by a five member School Committee, each of whom is elected for staggered three-year terms on

an at-large basis. The following are the principal officers of the Town:

Office
Selectmen

School Committee

Board of Assessors

Town Moderator

Town Administrator
Superintendent of Schools
Town Accountant
Treasurer/Collector

Town Clerk

Assistant Assessor

Town Counsel

Name
Matthew W. Strauss, Chair
Naomi R. Dreeben, Vice Chair
Glenn Kessler
John J. Callahan
Laura Spathanas

Francis E. Delano, III, Chair
Carin Marshall

Amy O’Connor

Suzanne Wright

Gargi B. Cooper

Neil Sheehan, Chair
Linda Paster
William Sullivan

Joseph Markarian

Thomas Younger

Pamela R. H. Angelakis, M.Ed.

David Castellarin
M. Ronald Mendes
Susan J. Duplin
John B. Speidel

Kopelman & Paige
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Manner of Selection

and Term
Elected / 3 years
Elected / 3 years
Elected / 3 years
Elected / 3 years
Elected / 3 years

Elected / 3 years
Elected / 3 years
Elected / 3 years
Elected / 3 years
Elected / 3 years
Elected / 3 years
Elected / 3 years
Elected / 3 years
Elected / 1 year
Appointed / 5 years
Appointed / 5 years
Appointed /5 years
Appointed / 1 year
Appointed / 1 year
Appointed / 1 year

Appointed / 1 year

Term

Expires
2016

2017
2015
2016
2017
2015
2016
2016
2017
2017
2016
2015
2017
2015
2017
2019
2016
2015
2015
2015

2015



SERVICES

The Town provides general governmental services for the territory within its boundaries, including police and
fire protection, disposal of garbage, public education in grades K though 12, streets, public libraries, parks and
recreation. Water services are provided to essentially all residential, commercial and industrial users by the
Town and through connections to the Massachusetts Water Resources Authority (MWRA). Sewage disposal is
provided to most residential, commercial, and industrial users through a connection with the Lynn Water and
Sewer Commission (LWSC).

Legislation was passed by the state legislature abolishing the county governments of Franklin and Middlesex
Counties as of July 1, 1997, with their assets, functions, debts and other obligations being assumed by the
Commonwealth. The abolishment of the Middlesex County government was in part response to a default by the
County in the payment of general obligation notes of the County. The legislation also abolished the county
governments of Hampden and Worcester Counties as of July 1, 1998. Legislation enacted in 1998 abolished the
county governments of Hampshire, Essex and Berkshire counties as of January 1, 1999, July 1, 1999 and July 1,
2000, respectively. The legislation also required the state secretary for administration and finance to establish a
plan to recover the Commonwealth’s expenditures for the liabilities and other debts assumed and paid by the
Commonwealth on behalf of an abolished county. Unless these provisions are changed by further legislation,
the state treasurer shall assess upon each city and town within the jurisdiction of an abolished county an amount
equal to the county tax paid by each such city and town for the fiscal year immediately prior to the abolishment
of the county (or two years prior in the case of Essex County) until such expenditures by the Commonwealth
are recovered. It is possible that similar legislation will be sought to provide for the abolishment of county
government in other counties.

AUTHORIZATION OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS AND NOTES

Serial bonds and notes are authorized by a two-thirds vote of the representative town meeting. Refunding bonds
and notes are authorized by the selectmen. Borrowings for some purposes require State administrative
approval.

When serial bonds or notes have been authorized, bond anticipation notes may be issued by the officers
authorized to issue the serial bonds or notes. Temporary loans in anticipation of the revenue of the fiscal year in
which the debt is incurred or in anticipation of authorized federal and state aid generally may be incurred by the
Treasurer with the approval of the Selectmen.

DEBT LIMITS

General Debt Limit. The General Debt Limit of the Town consists of a Normal Debt Limit and a Double Debt
Limit. The Normal Debt Limit for the Town is 5 percent of the valuation of taxable property as last equalized
by the State Department of Revenue. The present debt limit of the Town, based on the 2012 equalized
valuation, is $118,549,355. The Town can authorize debt up to this amount without State approval. It can
authorize debt up to twice this amount (the Double Debt Limit) with the approval of the Municipal Finance
Oversight Board, composed of the State Treasurer, the State Auditor, the Attorney General, and the Director of
Accounts.

There are many categories of general obligation debt which are exempt from and do not count against the
General Debt Limit. Among others, these exempt categories include revenue anticipation notes and grant
anticipation notes; emergency loans; loans exempted by special laws; certain school bonds, sewer bonds, solid
waste disposal facility bonds and economic development bonds supported by tax increment financing; and
subject to special debt limits, bonds for water (limited to 10 per cent of equalized valuation), housing, urban
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renewal and economic development (subject to various debt limits), and electric, gas, community antenna
television systems, and telecommunications systems (subject to separate limits). Revenue bonds are not subject
to these debt limits. The General Debt Limit and the special debt limit for water bonds apply at the time the
debt is authorized. The other special debt limits generally apply at the time the debt is incurred.

Revenue Anticipation Notes. The amount borrowed in each fiscal year by the issue of revenue anticipation
notes is limited to the tax levy of the prior fiscal year, together with the net receipts in the prior fiscal year from
the motor vehicle excise and certain payments made by the Commonwealth in lieu of taxes. The fiscal year
ends on June 30. Notes may mature in the following fiscal year, and notes may be refunded into the following
fiscal year to the extent of the uncollected, unabated current tax levy and certain other items, including revenue
deficits, overlay deficits, final judgments and lawful unappropriated expenditures, which are to be added to the
next tax levy, but excluding deficits arising from a failure to collect taxes of earlier years (see “Taxation to Meet
Deficits” herein). In any event, the period from an original borrowing to its final maturity cannot exceed one
year.

TYPES OF OBLIGATIONS

General Obligations. Massachusetts cities and towns are authorized to issue general obligation indebtedness
of these types:

Serial Bonds and Notes. These are generally required to be payable in equal or diminishing annual principal
amounts beginning no later than the end of the next fiscal year commencing after the date of issue and ending
within the terms permitted by law. A level debt service schedule, or a schedule that provides for a more rapid
amortization of principal than level debt service, is permitted. The principal amounts of certain economic
development bonds supported by tax increment financing may be payable in equal, diminishing or increasing
amounts beginning within 5 years after the date of issue. The maximum terms of serial bonds and notes vary
from one year to 40 years, depending on the purpose of the issue. The maximum terms permitted are set forth
in the statutes. In addition, for many projects, the maximum term may be determined in accordance with useful
life guidelines promulgated by the Massachusetts Department of Revenue (“DOR”). Serial bonds and notes may
be issued for the purposes set forth in the statutes. In addition, serial bonds and notes may be issued for any
other public work, improvement, or asset not specifically listed in the Statutes that has a useful life or at least 5
years. Bonds or notes may be made callable and redeemed prior to their maturity, and a redemption premium
may be paid. Refunding bonds or notes may be issued subject to the maximum applicable term measured from
the date of the original bonds or notes and must produce present value savings over the debt service of the
refunded bonds. Generally, the first required annual payment of principal of the refunding bonds cannot be
later than the first principal payment of any of the bonds or notes being refunded thereby, however, principal
payments made before the first principal payment of any of the bonds or notes being refunded thereby may be
in any amount.

Serial bonds may be issued as “qualified bonds” with the approval of the state Municipal Finance Oversight Board
composed of the State Treasurer, the State Auditor, the Attorney General and the Director of Accounts, subject to
such conditions and limitations (including restrictions on future indebtedness) as may be required by the Board.
Qualified bonds may mature not less than 10 nor more than 30 years from their dates and are not subject to the
amortization requirements described above. The State Treasurer is required to pay the debt service on qualified
bonds and thereafter to withhold the amount of the debt service paid by the State from state aid or other state
payments; administrative costs and any loss of interest income to the State are to be assessed upon the city or town.

Tax Credit Bonds and Notes. Subject to certain provisions and conditions, the officers authorized to issue bonds
or notes may designate any duly authorized issue of bonds or notes as “tax credit bonds” to the extent such bonds
and notes are otherwise permitted to be issued with federal tax credits or other similar subsidies for all or a portion
of the borrowing costs. Tax credit bonds may be made payable without regard to the annual installments required
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by any other law, and a sinking fund may be established for the payment of such bonds. Any investment that is part
of such a sinking fund may mature not later than the date fixed for payment or redemption of the applicable bonds.

Bond Anticipation Notes. These generally must mature within two years of their original dates of issuance but
may be refunded from time to time for a period not to exceed five years from their original dates of issuance,
provided that for each year that the notes are refunded beyond the second year they must be paid in part from
revenue funds in an amount at least equal to the minimum annual payment that would have been required if the
bonds had been issued at the end of the second year. For certain school projects, however, notes may be
refunded from time to time for a period not to exceed seven years without having to pay any portion of the
principal of the notes from revenue funds. The maximum term of bonds issued to refund bond anticipation
notes is measured (except for certain school projects) from the date of the original issue of the notes.

Revenue Anticipation Notes. These are issued to meet current expenses in anticipation of taxes and other
revenues. They must mature within one year but, if payable in less than one year, may be refunded from time to
time up to one year from the original date of issue.

Grant Anticipation Notes. These are issued for temporary financing in anticipation of federal grants and state
and county reimbursements. They must generally mature within two years but may be refunded from time to
time as long as the municipality remains entitled to the grant or reimbursement.

Revenue Bonds. Cities and towns may issue revenue bonds for solid waste disposal facilities, for projects
financed under the Commonwealth's Water Pollution Abatement or Drinking Water Revolving Loan Programs
and for certain economic development projects supported by tax increment financing. In addition to general
obligation bonds and notes, cities and towns having electric departments may issue electric revenue bonds, and
notes in anticipation of such bonds, subject to the approval of the State Department of Telecommunications and
Energy. The Town does not have an electric department.
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DEBT (1)

The following shows the direct debt outstanding as of December 9, 2014, including the non-refunding portion
of the Bonds and the Refunded Bonds but not the Refunding Bonds:

General Obligation Bonds:
Within General Debt Limit (2)
Sewers & Drains
Schools
Other Building
Streets Sidewalks & Parking
Departmental Equipment
Architectural & Engineering
Athletic & Recreational Facilities
Other Inside General
The Bonds (non-refunding portion)
Total Within Debt Limit
Outside General Debt Limit:
Sewers (3)
Water (3)

Total Outside Debt Limit
Total Bonds (4)
Temporary Loans in Anticipation of:
Revenue
Bonds (5)
Grants
Total Temporary Loans
Total Direct Debt

§ 755,560
23,213,618
5,948,364
234,000
326,965
188,040
224,500
89,463
1,603,858

252,694
2,891,424

&
o O

$32,584,368

3,144,118
$35,728,486

$ 0
$35,728,486

(1) Principal amount only. Excludes lease and installment purchase obligations, overlapping debt, unfunded pension liability, and

other post-employment benefits liability.

(2) At the present time, the normal general debt limit is $118,549,355 and the double general debt limit is $237,098,710.

(3) Supported by enterprise revenues.

(4) 824,770,110 par amount, including the a portion of the Refunded Bonds, has been exempted from the provisions of Proposition

2Y. $2,770,143 par amount is self supporting.

(5) Does not include $1,603,858 bond anticipation notes that will be permanently retired with Bond proceeds at their current maturity

of December 22, 2014.

AUTHORIZED UNISSUED DEBT AND PROSPECTIVE FINANCING

The following is authorized unissued debt following delivery of the Bonds. The timing of financing of these

purposes is uncertain.

Purpose

Improving Sewer System
Odor Mitigation
MWRA Water Main Replacement

Date of
Vote

05/07/07
05/07/13
05/07/13

Article Unissued
Number
12 $ 969,490
13 2,521
13 151,000
$1,123,011
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FIVE YEARS OUTSTANDING DEBT (1)

As of June 30
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Within the General Debt Limit
Sewers & Drains $ 919,380 $ 1,093,200 $ 397,500 $ 490,000 $ 478,800
Land Acquisition 0 814,438 908,331 1,032,222 1,156,111
Schools 23,759,273 25,850,928 27,735,243 29,976,757 31,714,223
Other Building 6,521,883 4,874,594 3,395,069 4,131,832 3,468,791
Streets, Sidewalks & Parking 369,500 505,000 232,500 300,000 0
Departmental Equipment 470,945 720,394 457,737 733,381 849,349
Appraisal & Revaluation 0 0 0 10,000 20,000
Architectural & Engineering Services 363,220 538,400 349,376 478,753 45,630
Athletic & Recreational Facilities 270,250 328,500 236,750 300,000 232,500
Other 118,426 147,390 65,105 77,821 76,942

Total Within the General Debt Limit 32,792,877 34,872,844 33,777,611 37,530,765 _38,042,346

Outside the General Debt Limit
Sewers 268,179 875,826 2,227,671 3,518,127 4,750,486
Water 3,282,584 2,385,770 3,144,983 3,644,196 3,379,423
Total Outside the General Debt Limit 3,550,763 3,261,596 _ 5,372,654 _ 7,162,323 8,129,909
Total Long-Term Indebtedness $36.343,640 $38,134.440 $39.150.265 $44.693,088 $46,172.255

Short-Term Indebtedness

Revenue Anticipation Notes $ 0 $ 0% 0$ 08 0
Grant Anticipation Notes 0 0 0 0 0
Bond Anticipation Notes 1,603,858 _ 3,350,000 _ 3,068,200 0 _ 1,130,000
Total Short-Term Indebtedness 1,603,858 _ 3,350,000 _ 3,068,200 0 _ 1,130,000
Total Outstanding Indebtedness $37,947,498 $41,484,440 $42.218.465 $44,693,088 $47,302,255

(1) Excludes lease and installment purchase obligations, overlapping debt, unfunded pension liability, and other post-employment
benefits liability.

Bonded Debt vs. Population, Valuations and Income

As of June 30
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Amount (1) (000 omitted) $36,344 $38,134 $39,150 $44,693 $46,172
Per Capita (2) $2,605 $2,740 $2,817 $3,242 $3,288
Percent of Assessed Valuation (3) 1.64% 1.76% 1.77% 1.96% 2.01%
Percent of Equalized Valuation (4) 1.53% 1.61% 1.60% 1.83% 1.67%
Per Capita as a percent of Personal

Income per Capita (2) 5.01% 5.71% 5.86% 6.70% 6.98%

(1) Outstanding principal on general obligation bonds. Excludes lease and installment purchase obligations, overlapping debt,
unfunded pension liability, and post-employment benefits liability.

(2) Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census - latest applicable actuals or estimates.

(3) Source: Board of Assessors - assessed valuation as of the prior January 1.

(4) Source: Massachusetts Department of Revenue. The equalized valuation used here is the equalized valuation in effect for that
fiscal year.
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ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE (1)

Cumulative
Fiscal OQOutstanding as of 12/9/14 Refunded Bonds The Bonds Total Debt % Principal
Year Principal ® Interest Principal ® Interest ®  Principal Interest® Service ¥ Retired ¥
2015  $1,975,000 $ 443,621 ($545,000)  ($224,211) $ 61,588 $1,710,998 4.1%
2016 3,719,298 913,650 (1,320,000) (538,725) $ 1,633,858 370,219 4,777,300 15.5
2017 3,412,591 818,502 (1,320,000) (487,969) 1,650,000 316,806 4,389,931 26.2
2018 3,126,889 724,192 (1,120,000) (435,169) 705,000 283,806 3,284,719 33.9
2019 2,766,196 636,318 (1,120,000) (386,281) 715,000 269,706 2,880,939 40.6
2020 2,586,534 559,363 (1,120,000) (341,481) 650,000 255,406 2,589,822 46.6
2021 2,564,825 485,414 (1,120,000) (296,881) 660,000 242,406 2,535,764 52.6
2022 2,425,179 411,989 (1,120,000) (251,881) 665,000 229,206 2,359,493 58.2
2023 2,390,539 341,838 (1,120,000) (207,081) 675,000 215,906 2,296,202 63.7
2024 2,215,906 274,086 (1,145,000) (162,281) 685,000 202,406 2,070,117 68.7
2025 2,046,280 207,658 (1,145,000) (116,481) 555,000 187,850 1,735,307 72.8
2026 1,791,663 141,204 (1,145,000) (70,681) 570,000 175,363 1,462,548 76.3
2027 1,232,052 78,723 (585,000) (24,131) 585,000 161,825 1,448,469 79.8
2028 647,450 38,284 0 0 595,000 147,200 1,427,934 83.3
2029 472,856 25,250 0 0 615,000 131,581 1,244,687 86.4
2030 452,367 15,697 0 0 630,000 115,438 1,213,502 89.5
2031 100,000 6,250 0 0 640,000 98,900 845,150 91.6
2032 100,000 3,750 0 0 660,000 81,300 845,050 93.7
2033 100,000 1,250 0 0 680,000 63,150 844,400 96.0
2034 0 0 0 0 705,000 42,750 747,750 98.0
2035 0 0 0 0 720,000 21,600 741,600 100.0%

$34,124,628 $6,127,038 ($13,925,000) ($3,543,255) $14,993,858 $3,674,413  $41,451,680

(1) Excludes short-term debt, lease and installment purchase obligations, overlapping debt, unfunded pension liability, and other post-
employment benefits liability, and the Refunding Bonds.

(2) Principal totaling $24,770,110 and interest totaling $5,353,466 has been exempted from the provisions of Proposition 2 %.
Principal totaling 32,770,143 and interest totaling $113,689 is self-supporting.

(3) Average coupon rate for the current issue of non-Refunding Bonds is estimated at 2.00%.

(4) Includes current issue of Bonds.

REVENUE ANTICIPATION BORROWING

The Town has not borrowed in anticipation of revenue in any of the last five fiscal years.

CONTRACTS

Municipal contracts are generally limited to currently available appropriations. A city or town generally has
authority to enter into contracts for the exercise of any of its corporate powers for any period of time deemed to
serve its best interests, but generally only when funds are available for the first fiscal year; obligations for
succeeding fiscal years generally are expressly subject to availability and appropriation of funds. Municipalities
have specific authority in relatively few cases to enter into long-term contractual obligations that are not subject
to annual appropriation, including contracts for refuse disposal and sewage treatment and disposal.
Municipalities may also enter into long-term contracts in aid of housing and renewal projects. There may be
implied authority to make other long-term contracts required to carry out authorized municipal functions, such
as contracts to purchase water from private water companies.

Municipal contracts relating to solid waste disposal facilities may contain provisions requiring the delivery of

minimum amounts of waste and payments based thereon and requiring payments in certain circumstances without
regard to the operational status of the facilities.
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Municipal electric departments have statutory power to enter into long-term contracts for joint ownership and
operation of generating and transmission facilities and for the purchase or sale of capacity, including contracts
requiring payments without regard to the operational status of the facilities. The Town does not have an electric
department.

Cities and towns are authorized to lease (as lessee) off-street parking facilities, school buildings, hospital
equipment, data process equipment, energy conservation equipment and educational equipment for periods
ranging up to 10 years. They may also lease equipment, with option to purchase, for a period up to 10 years.
Contracts may also be made for the installment purchase of energy conservation equipment over a period up to
10 years. Cities and towns may also lease various properties as lessor.

Pursuant to the Home Rule Amendment to the Massachusetts Constitution, cities and towns may also be
empowered to make other contracts and leases.

The Town has the following long-term contracts of a material nature:

Nature of Annual
Name Service Expires Cost
Lynn Water and Sewer Commission Sewage Treatment 6/30/2020 $950,000
Hiltz Disposal Company (1) Rubbish Disposal, 6/30/2014 983,000

Recycling, Recycling Disposal

(1) In negotiation for successor contract. Annual cost is an estimate.

OVERLAPPING DEBT (1)
Assessments for Operations
Authorized and Debt Service
QOutstanding Unissued Fiscal Year 2015
Essex North Shore Regional
Technical School District (2) $16,000,000 $55,662,291 $554,516

(1) Excludes temporary loans in anticipation of revenue. Omits debt of the Commonwealth.

(2) Source: Essex North Shore Regional Vocational Technical School District. The District has authorized $125,000,000 in
borrowing to construct a new facility. The Massachusetts School Building Authority has awarded the District a grant reimbursing 62
percent of approved project costs. Expected local share borrowing for the project is expected to total approximately $53.5 million.
Other members of the District are the Cities of Beverly, Gloucester, and Salem, and the Towns of Boxford, Danvers, Essex, Hamilton,
Lynnfield, Manchester-by-the-Sea, Middleton, Nahant, Rockport, Topsfield, and Wenham. Debt is as of December 9, 2014.

RETIREMENT PLAN

The Massachusetts General Laws provide for the establishment of contributory retirement systems for state
employees, for teachers and for county, city and town employees other than teachers. Teachers are assigned to a
separate statewide teachers’ system and not to the city and town system. For all employees other than teachers, this
law is subject to acceptance in each city and town. Substantially all employees of an accepting city or town are
covered. If a town has a population of less than 10,000 when it accepts the statute, its non-teacher employees
participate through the county system and its share of the county cost is proportionate to the aggregate annual rate
of regular compensation of its covered employees. In addition to the contributory systems, cities and towns provide
non-contributory pensions to a limited number of employees, primarily persons who entered service prior to July 1,
1937 and their dependents. The Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission (“PERAC”) provides
oversight and guidance for and regulates all state and local retirement systems.
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The obligations of a city or town, whether direct or through a county system, are contractual legal obligations and
are required to be included in the annual tax levy. If a city or town, or the county system of which it is a member,
has not established a retirement system funding schedule as described below, the city or town is required to provide
for the payment of the portion of its current pension obligations which is not otherwise covered by employee
contributions and investment income. “Excess earnings,” or earnings on individual employees’ retirement accounts
in excess of a predetermined rate, are required to be set aside in a pension reserve fund for future, not current,
pension liabilities. Cities and towns may voluntarily appropriate to their system’s pension reserve fund in any given
year up to five percent of the preceding year’s tax levy. The aggregate amount in the fund may not exceed ten
percent of the equalized valuation of the city or town.

If a city or town, or each member city and town of a county retirement system, has accepted the applicable law, it is
required to annually appropriate an amount sufficient to pay not only its current pension obligations, but also a
portion of its future pension liability. The portion of each such annual payment allocable to future pension
obligations is required to be deposited in the pension reserve fund. The amount of the annual city or town
appropriation for each such system is prescribed by a retirement system funding schedule which is periodically
reviewed and approved by PERAC. Each system’s retirement funding schedule is designed to reduce the unfunded
actuarial pension liability of the system to zero by not later than June 30, 2030, with annual increases in the
scheduled payment amounts of not more than 4.5 percent. The funding schedule must provide that payment in any
year of the schedule is not less than 95 percent of the amount appropriated in the previous fiscal year. City, town
and county systems which have an approved retirement funding schedule receive annual pension funding grants
from the Commonwealth for the first 16 years of such funding schedule. Pursuant to recent legislation, a system
(other than the state employees’ retirement system and the teachers’ retirement system) which conducts an actuarial
valuation as of January 1, 2009, or later, may establish a revised schedule which reduces the unfunded actuarial
liability to zero by not later than June 30, 2040, subject to certain conditions. The System has elected to retain a
schedule that will extinguish the liability by June 30, 2030.

City, town and county systems may choose to participate in the Pension Reserves Investment Trust Fund (the
“PRIT Fund”), which receives additional state funds to offset future pension costs of participating state and local
systems. If a local system participates in the PRIT Fund, it must transfer ownership and control of all assets of its
system to the Pension Reserves Investment Management Board, which manages the investment and reinvestment
of the PRIT Fund. Cities and towns with systems participating in the PRIT Fund continue to be obligated to fund
their pension obligations in the manner described above. The additional state appropriations to offset future
pension liabilities of state and local systems participating in the PRIT Fund are required to total at least 1.3 percent
of state payroll. Such additional state appropriations are deposited in the PRIT Fund and shared by all participating
systems in proportion to their interests in the assets of the PRIT Fund as of July 1 for each fiscal year.

The Town has a contributory retirement system (the “System”) that is partially funded by employee contributions.
Covered payroll for the system was approximately $11,186,504 as of December 31, 2012. The annual
contributions of the Town to the System for the current (budgeted) and most recent fiscal years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Amount
2015 $4,205,622
2014 4,050,402
2013 3,700,000
2012 3,470,567
2011 3,268,512

As of January 1, 2013, the System's unfunded pension liability was approximately $43,936,261, based on
System assets of $34,140,831 and actuarially accrued liability of $78,077,092, based on a discount rate of
8.00%. The Valuation Report, which was prepared for the System by Stone Consulting, Inc., can be found at
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http://www.mass.gov/perac/swampscott/Swampscottval13.pdf. The following is the funding schedule for the
System.

Swampscott Retirement System Funding Schedule

Fiscal Year
Ended Employer Unfunded Amortization of Nety 3(8)(c) Total
June 30 Normal Cost Liability UAL Payments Contribution
2014 $ 590,267 $45,872,346 $ 3,707,705 $ 83,565 $4,381,537
2015 612,992 45,537,812 3,846,606 83,565 4,543,164
2016 636,592 45,026,502 3,990,963 83,565 4,711,121
2017 661,101 44,318,382 4,140,991 83,565 4,885,657
2018 686,554 43,391,583 4,296,911 83,565 5,067,030
2019 712,986 42,222,245 4,458,957 83,565 5,255,508
2020 740,436 40,784,351 4,496,106 83,565 5,320,107
2021 768,943 39,191,304 4,630,799 83,565 5,483,307
2022 798,547 37,325,345 4,812,700 83,565 5,694,812
2023 829,291 35,113,656 5,001,747 83,565 5,914,603
2024 861,219 32,520,863 5,198,219 83,565 6,143,003
2025 894,376 29,508,455 5,402,408 83,565 6,380,349
2026 928,809 26,034,531 5,614,619 83,565 6,626,993
2027 964,568 22,053,505 5,835,165 83,565 6,883,298
2028 1,001,704 17,515,807 6,064,374 83,565 7,149,644
2029 1,040,270 12,367,548 6,302,587 83,565 7,426,422
2030 1,080,320 6,550,157 6,550,157 83,565 7,714,042
2031 1,121,913 0 0 83,565 1,205,478

Source: Swampscott Retirement System.

The foregoing data do not include the retirement system costs or liabilities attributable to employees of the
county or the retirement system costs or liabilities of any other entity of which the Town is a constituent part.

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

In addition to pension benefits, cities and towns may provide retired employees with health care and life
insurance benefits. The portion of the cost of such benefits paid by cities or towns is generally provided on a
pay-as-you-go basis. The pay-as-you-go cost to the Town for such benefits for fiscal year 2013 was $3,778,910.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) promulgated its Statement Nos. 43 and 45, which
require public sector entities to report the future costs of these non-pension, post-employment benefits in their
financial statements. These accounting standards do not require pre-funding such benefits, but the basis applied by
the standards for measurement of costs and liabilities for these benefits is conservative if they continue to be funded
on a pay-as-you-go basis and will result in larger yearly cost and liability accruals than if such benefits were pre-
funded in a trust fund in the same manner as traditional pension benefits. Cities and towns that choose to self-
insure all or a portion of the cost of the health care benefits they provide to employees and retirees may establish a
trust fund for the purpose of paying claims, and Massachusetts General Laws were recently amended to provide
cities and towns with legal authority to establish a trust fund for the purpose of pre-funding other post employment
benefits liability in the same manner as traditional pension benefits. On May 7, 2013, the Town voted to create an
OPEB Trust Fund under Chapter 32B, Section 20, of the Massachusetts General Laws. The Town also voted to
transfer $500,000 into this fund.

The Town's OPEB expenditures are financed on a pay-as-you-go-basis from annual appropriations and the
Town’s current financial statements do not report the financial impact of OPEB until the benefits are paid. As of

23



July 1, 2010, the Town had approximately 270 active employees who may be eligible for benefits and 318
retirees that received such benefits.

The pay-as-you-go cost to the Town for such benefits in recent years has been as follows:

Fiscal Year Total
2014 (unaudited)  $3,922,374
2013 3,778,910
2012 3,828,266
2011 3,681,695
2010 3,479,070

As of July 1, 2010 (the most recent date available), the annual required contribution (ARC), an amount that if
fully funded would cover normal cost plus any unfunded liabilities, was $5,077,552, of which $2,637,915 was
not funded by the Town. As of July 1, 2010, the actuarial accrued liability for other post-employment benefits
was $71,040,152, based on a discount rate of 3.50%. The Town has undertaken preliminary discussions of
funding options for this liability.

PROPERTY TAXATION AND VALUATION

Tax Rate and Valuation - General. Property is classified for the purpose of taxation according to its use. The
legislature has in substance created three classes of taxable property: (1) residential real property, (2) open space
land, and (3) all other (commercial, industrial and personal property). Within limits, cities and towns are given the
option of determining the share of the annual levy to be borne by each of the three categories. The share required to
be borne by residential real property is at least 50 per cent of its share of the total taxable valuation; the effective
rate for open space must be at least 75 per cent of the effective rate for residential real property; and the share of
commercial, industrial and personal property must not exceed 175 percent of their share of the total valuation. A
city or town may also exempt up to 20 percent of the valuation of residential real property (where used as the
taxpayer’s principal residence) and up to 10 percent of the valuation of commercial real property (where occupied
by certain small businesses). Property may not be classified in a city or town until the State Commissioner of
Revenue certifies that all property in the city or town has been assessed at its fair cash value. Such certification
must take place every three years, or pursuant to a revised schedule as may be issued by the Commissioner.

Related statutes provide that certain forest land, agricultural or horticultural land (assessed at the value it has for
these purposes) and recreational land (assessed on the basis of its use at a maximum of 25 percent of its fair
cash value) are all to be taxed at the rate applicable to commercial property. Land classified as forest land is
valued for this purpose at five percent of fair cash value but not less than ten dollars per acre.

In order to determine appropriate relative values for the purposes of certain distributions to and assessments
upon cities and towns, the Commissioner of Revenue biennially makes a redetermination of the fair cash value
of the taxable property in each municipality. This is known as the “equalized valuation” (see Debt Limits
herein).
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VALUATIONS

The following shows the assessed and equalized valuations for the most recent fiscal years:

For Fiscal Year

2014 2013 2012 2011 (2) 2010

Real Property (1) $2,188,939,225 $2,134,515,225  $2,178,722,02  $2,244,275,78  $2,267,647,85
Personal Property (1) 33,849,520 33,556,820 33,591,190 33,503,530 31,131,380

Total $2,222,788,745 $2.168,072,045 $2,212,313,215 $2,277,779.318 $2,298,779,232
Equalized Valuation (3)  $2,370,987,100 $2,370,987,100 $2,444,603,600 $2,444,603,600 $2,766,258,800
Percent of Total

Assessed to Equalized

Valuation 93.7% 91.4% 90.5% 93.2% 83.1%

(1) As of January 1, 2013, 2012, 2011, 2010, and 2009 respectively.
(2) Revaluation year.
(3) Based on equalized valuation in effect for each year as determined biannually by the State Department of Revenue as of January 1
of even numbered years effective for the next two fiscal years.

The following table shows the breakdown of the total assessed valuation for fiscal years 2014, 2013 and 2012

by classification:

Class
Residential
Commercial
Industrial
Personal

Total

Fiscal 2014
Assessed % of
Valuation Total

$2,057,750,774 92.6%
120,256,551 5.4
10,931,900 0.5
33,849,520 1.5

$2,222,788,745 100.0%

Fiscal 2013
Assessed % of
Valuation Total
$2,010,736,009 92.7%

113,064,616 5.2
10,714,600 0.5
33,556,820 1.5

$2,168,072,045  100.0%
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Fiscal 2012
Assessed % of
Valuation Total

$2,054,011,117 92.8%

113,608,908 5.1
11,102,000 0.5

33,591,190 1.5
$2,212,313,215  100.0%




Tax Rates

The following shows the actual tax rates per $1,000 of assessed valuation, the average tax rate and the estimated
full value rate based on the equalized valuation in effect for the most recent fiscal years:

Fiscal Actual Average Full Value

Year Tax Rate Tax Rate Tax Rate

2014 $18.70 (Residential/Open Space) $19.89 $18.65
34.79(All Other)

2013 18.84 (Residential/Open Space) 20.01 18.30
35.02 (All Other)

2012 17.99 (Residential/Open Space) 19.09 17.28
33.41 (All Other)

2011 16.60 (Residential/Open Space) 17.60 16.40
30.80 (All Other)

2010 16.48 (Residential/Open Space) 17.47 14.52
30.58 (All Other)

2009 14.34 (Residential/Open Space) 15.22 14.00

26.63 (All Other)

LARGEST TAXPAYERS (1)

The following shows the ten largest taxpayers for fiscal 2014:

Total Assessed

Nature of Valuation for Amount Percent of
Name Business 2014 of Tax (1) Total Levy
CC Swampscott Lot BS LP Shopping Center $13,876,500 $482,764 1.18%
Ryan LLC (2) Garden Apts. 13,594,100 254,210 0.62
New Creek 11 LLC Shopping Center 11,141,300 387,606 0.92
Inland American Swampscott LLC Shopping Center 10,279,600 357,628 0.87
Lynn Sand & Stone (3) Quarry 8,038,500 182,656 0.55
Equity One (Swampscott) LLC Supermarket 7,173,700 247,746 0.62
Botsini-Paradise Road LLC Shopping Center 6,690,400 232,760 0.61
CRP/THC Vinnin Square Venture LLC Shopping Center 4,894,200 145,454 0.37
Anthony's Hawthorne Inc. (4) Restaurant 4,206,400 146,340 0.36
Five Hundred Five Paradise Rd LLC Shopping Center 3,823,200 133,888 0.32

$83,717,900 $2,571,052 6.42%

(1) Except as noted in footnote (4), these taxpayers are current on their real and personal property taxes.
(2) Residential property taxed at the lower Residential Tax Rate

(3) Includes 25 parcels classified as either industrial/commercial and/or residential property.

(4) Delinquent on fiscal 2014 real estate taxes.
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TAX LEVIES

Levy-General. The principal tax of Massachusetts cities and towns is the tax on real and personal property.
The amount to be levied in each year is the amount appropriated or required by law to be raised for municipal
expenditures less estimated receipts from other sources and less appropriations voted from funds on hand. The
total amount levied is subject to certain limits prescribed by law; for a description of those limits see “Tax
Limitations” herein. As to the inclusion of debt service and final judgments, see Security and Remedies herein.

The estimated receipts for a fiscal year from sources other than the property tax may not exceed the actual
receipts during the preceding fiscal year from the same sources unless approved by the State Commissioner of
Revenue. Excepting special funds the use of which is otherwise provided for by law, the deduction for
appropriations voted from funds on hand for a fiscal year cannot exceed the “free cash” as of the beginning of
the prior fiscal year as certified by the State Director of Accounts plus up to nine months' collections and
receipts on account of earlier years' taxes after that date. Subject to certain adjustments, free cash is surplus
revenue less uncollected overdue property taxes from earlier years.

Although an allowance is made in the tax levy for abatements (see “Abatements and Overlay” herein) no
reserve is generally provided for uncollectible real property taxes. Since some of the levy is inevitably not
collected, this creates a cash deficiency which may or may not be offset by other items (see “Taxation to Meet
Deficits” herein).

Taxation to Meet Deficits. As noted elsewhere (see “Abatements and Overlay” herein) overlay deficits, i.e.
tax abatements in excess of the overlay included in the tax levy to cover abatements, are required to be added to
the next tax levy. It is generally understood that revenue deficits, i.e. those resulting from non-property tax
revenues being less than anticipated, are also required to be added to the tax levy (at least to the extent not
covered by surplus revenue).

Amounts lawfully expended since the prior tax levy and not included therein are also required to be included in
the annual tax levy. The circumstances under which this can arise are limited since municipal departments are
generally prohibited from incurring liabilities in excess of appropriations except for major disasters, mandated
items, contracts in aid of housing and renewal projects and other long-term contracts. In addition, utilities must
be paid at established rates and certain established salaries, e.g. civil service, must legally be paid for work
actually performed, whether or not covered by appropriations.

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, cities and towns are authorized to appropriate sums, and thus to levy taxes, to
cover deficits arising from other causes, such as “free cash” deficits arising from a failure to collect taxes. This
is not generally understood, however, and it has not been the practice to levy taxes to cover free cash deficits.
Except to the extent that such deficits have been reduced or eliminated by subsequent collections of uncollected
taxes (including sales of tax titles and tax possessions), lapsed appropriations, non-property tax revenues in
excess of estimates, other miscellaneous items or funding loans authorized by special act, they remain in
existence.

Tax Limitations. Chapter 59, Section 21C of the General Laws, also known as Proposition 2)%, imposes two
separate limits on the annual tax levy of a city or town.

The primary limitation is that the tax levy cannot exceed 2% percent of the full and fair cash value. If a city or
town exceeds the primary limitation, it must reduce its tax levy by at least 15 percent annually until it is in
compliance, provided that the reduction can be reduced in any year to not less than 7’2 percent by majority vote
of the voters, or to less than 7% percent by two-thirds vote of the voters.

For cities and towns at or below the primary limit, a secondary limitation is that the tax levy cannot exceed the
maximum levy limit for the preceding fiscal year as determined by the State Commissioner of Revenue by more
than 2'% percent, subject to exceptions for property added to the tax rolls or property which has had an increase,
other than as part of a general revaluation, in its assessed valuation over the prior year's valuation.
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This “growth” limit on the tax levy may be exceeded in any year by a majority vote of the voters, but an
increase in the secondary or growth limit under this procedure does not permit a tax levy in excess of the
primary limitation, since the two limitations apply independently. In addition, if the voters vote to approve taxes
in excess of the “growth” limit for the purpose of funding a stabilization fund, such increased amount may only
be taken into account for purposes of calculating the maximum levy limit in each subsequent year if the board
of selectmen of a town or the city council of a city votes by a two-thirds vote to appropriate such increased
amount in such subsequent year to the stabilization fund. The applicable tax limits may also be reduced in any
year by a majority vote of the voters.

The State Commissioner of Revenue may adjust any tax limit “to counterbalance the effects of extraordinary,
non-recurring events which occurred during the base year”.

The statute further provides that the voters may exclude from the taxes subject to the tax limits and from the
calculations of the maximum tax levy (a) the amount required to pay debt service on bonds and notes issued
before November 4, 1980, if the exclusion is approved by a majority vote of the voters, and (b) the amount
required to pay debt service on any specific subsequent issue for which similar approval is obtained. Even with
voter approval, the holders of the obligations for which unlimited taxes may be assessed do not have a statutory
priority or security interest in the portion of the tax levy attributable to such obligations. The Town has voted to
exclude the debt service on $24,770,110 par amount of currently outstanding bonds, including a portion of
the Series A Bonds and the Series B Bonds, from the limitations of Proposition 2 '3, subject to the provisions
of Chapter 44, Section 20, of the General Laws

It should be noted that Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 44, Section 20 requires that the taxes excluded from
the levy limit to pay debt service on any such bonds and notes be calculated based on the true interest cost of the
issue. Accordingly, the Department of Revenue limits the amount of taxes which may be levied in each year to pay
debt service on any such bonds and notes to the amount of such debt service, less a pro rata portion of any original
issue premium received by the city or town that was not applied to pay costs of issuance.

Voters may also exclude from the Proposition 2% limits the amount required to pay specified capital outlay
expenditures. In addition, the city council of a city, with the approval of the mayor if required, or the board of
selectmen or the town council of a Town may vote to exclude from the Proposition 2% limits taxes raised in lieu
of sewer or water charges to pay debt service on bonds or notes issued by the municipality (or by an
independent authority, commission or district) for water or sewer purposes, provided that the municipality's
sewer or water charges are reduced accordingly.

In addition, Proposition 2% limits the annual increase in the total assessments on cities and towns by any
county, district, authority, the Commonwealth or any other governmental entity (except regional school
districts, the MWRA, and certain districts for which special legislation provides otherwise) to the sum of (a)
2.50 percent of the prior year's assessments and (b) “any increases in costs, charges or fees for services
customarily provided locally or for services subscribed to at local option”. Regional water districts, regional
sewerage districts and regional veteran districts may exceed these limitations under statutory procedures
requiring a two-thirds vote of the district's governing body and either approval of the local appropriating
authorities (by two-thirds vote in districts with more than two members or by majority vote in two-member
districts) or approval of the registered voters in a local election (in the case of two-member districts). Under the
statute any State law to take effect on or after January 1, 1981 imposing a direct service or cost obligation on a
city or town will become effective only if accepted or voluntarily funded by the city or town or if State funding
is provided. Similarly, State rules or regulation imposing additional costs on a city or town or laws granting or
increasing local tax exemptions are to take effect only if adequate State appropriations are provided. These
statutory provisions do not apply to costs resulting from judicial decisions.

Pledged Taxes. Taxes on certain property in designated development districts may be pledged for the payment of
costs of economic development projects within such districts and may therefore be unavailable for other municipal
purposes (see “Tax Increment Financing for Development Districts” herein).
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Initiative Petitions. Various proposals have been made in recent years for legislative amendments to the
Massachusetts Constitution to impose limits on state and local taxes. To be adopted such amendments must be
approved by two successive legislatures and then by the voters at a state election.

CALCULATION OF TAX LEVIES AND LEVY LIMITS

The following table shows the details of the calculation of the tax levies for the most recent fiscal years:

(000 omitted)
For Fiscal Year
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Gross Amount to be Raised:
Appropriations $59,587 $57.414 $57,283 $53,859 $53,343
Other Local Expenditures 24 566 24 23 30
State & County Charges 561 592 685 817 984
Overlay Reserve 241 212 209 187 177
Total Gross Amount To Be Raised $60,413 $58,784 $58,201 $54.,886 $54,534
Less Estimated Receipts & Other Revenue:
Estimated Receipts from State $4,154 $ 3,973 $ 3,688 $ 3,829 $ 4,139
Estimated Receipts — Local 10,151 10,676 9,853 10,197 9,648
Available Funds Appropriated:
Free Cash 925 0 0 0 0
Other Available Funds 802 303 960 233 234
Free Cash & Other Revenue
Used to Reduce Tax Rate 160 440 1,460 539 350
Total Estimated Receipts & Revenue $16,191 $15,391 $15,961 $14,798 $14.370
Net Amount To Be Raised (Tax Levy) $44,222 $43,392 $42.,241 $40,088 $40,164
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The following shows the calculation of levy limits for the most recent fiscal years:

(000 omitted)
For Fiscal Year
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Primary Levy Limit (1) $55,570 $54,202 $55,308 $56,944 $57,469
Prior Fiscal Year Levy Limit 39,714 38,481 37,238 35,993 34,636
2.5% Levy Growth 993 962 931 890 866
New Growth (2) 617 271 312 345 491
Overrides 0 0 0 0 0
Growth Levy Limit 41,324 39,714 38,481 37,238 35,993
Debt Exclusions 3,118 3,885 3,922 2,941 4,175
Other Adjustments 0 0 0 0 0
Tax Levy Limit 44,441 43,599 42,402 40,179 40,168
Actual Levy 44,222 43,392 42,241 40,088 40,164
Unused Levy Capacity (3) $ 220 $ 207 $ 162 $ 90 $ 4
Unused Primary Levy Capacity (4) $14,246 $14.,488 $16,827 $19,708 $21,477

(1) 2.5% of assessed valuation.

(2) Allowed increase for new valuations certified by the Department of Revenue.
(3) Tax Levy Limit less Tax Levy.

(4) Primary Levy Limit less Growth Levy Limit.

TAX COLLECTIONS AND ABATEMENTS

Payment Dates. The taxes for each fiscal year generally are due in two installments on November 1 (subject to
deferral if tax bills are sent out late) and May 1, unless a city or town accepts a statute providing for quarterly
tax payments. Under the statute, preliminary tax payments are to be due on August 1 and November 1 with
payment of the actual tax bill (after credit is given for the preliminary payments) in installments on February 1
and May 1 if actual tax bills are mailed by December 31. The Town voted to implement quarterly tax billing as
of July 1, 1991. Interest accrues on delinquent taxes at the rate of 14 per cent per annum.

Lien. Real property (land and buildings) is subject to a lien for the taxes assessed upon it subject to any
paramount federal lien and subject to bankruptcy and insolvency laws. (In addition, real property is subject to a
lien for certain unpaid municipal charges or fees.) If the property has been transferred, an unenforced lien
expires on the fourth December 31 after the end of the fiscal year to which the tax relates. If the property has
not been transferred by the fourth December 31, an unenforced lien expires upon a later transfer of the property.
Provision is made, however, for continuation of the lien where it could not be enforced because of a legal
impediment.

Personal Liability. The persons against whom real or personal property taxes are assessed are personally liable

for the tax (subject to bankruptcy and insolvency laws.) In the case of real property, this personal liability is
effectively extinguished by sale or taking of the property as described in “Taking and Sale” herein.
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The following shows the total tax levy, the reserve for abatements, the net levy and the amounts collected
during each fiscal year and as of a more recent date for the most recent fiscal years:

For Fiscal Year

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Total Tax Levy $43,542,075 $43,392,174 $42,240,533 $40,088,107 $40,163,797
Overlay Reserve for Abatements 241,273 211,637 209,015 186,588 177,361

Net Tax Levy (1) $43,783,348 $43,180,537 $42,031,518 $39.901,519 $39,986,436
Amount Collected
During FY Payable (2) 42,560,440 41,398,697 $41,370,663 $39,374,772  $39,298,695
Percent of Net Tax Levy 97.2% 95.9% 98.4% 98.7% 98.3%
Amount Collected

As of 6/30/14 $42,635,364 $42,635,364 $41,803,097 $39,721,199 $39,742,645
Percent of Net Tax Levy 97.2% 98.7% 99.5% 99.5% 99.4%

(1) Net after deduction of overlay reserve for abatements.
(2) Actual collections of levy less refunds and amounts refundable but including proceeds of tax titles and tax possessions attributed
to such levy but not including abatements or other credits.

Abatements and Overlay. A city or town is authorized to increase each tax levy by an amount approved by
the State Commissioner of Revenue as an “overlay” to provide for tax abatements. If abatements are granted in
excess of the applicable overlay, the excess is required to be added to the next tax levy.

Abatements are granted where exempt real or personal property has been assessed or where taxable real or
personal property has been overvalued or disproportionately valued. The assessors may also abate uncollectible
personal property taxes. They may abate real and personal property taxes on broad grounds (including inability
to pay) with the approval of the State Commissioner of Revenue. But uncollected real property taxes are
ordinarily not written off until they become municipal “tax titles” by purchase at the public sale or by taking, at
which time the tax is written off in full by reserving the amount of the tax and charging surplus.

The following shows the abatements granted during the fiscal year as well as through a more recent date for the
most recent fiscal years:

For Fiscal Year

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Tax Levy $43,542,075  $43,392,174  $42,240,533  $40,088,107 $40,163,797
Overlay Reserve for Abatements $241,273 $211,637 $209,015 $186,588 $177,361
Percent of Tax Levy 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.4%
Abatements Granted
During Fiscal Year of Levy $99.828 $128,321 $136,371 $137,381 $109,736
Through 6/30/14 $99,828 128,321 $136,371 163,571 154,760

Taking and Sale. Massachusetts law permits a municipality either to sell by public sale (at which the
municipality may become the purchaser) or to take real property for nonpayment of taxes. In either case the
property owner can redeem the property by paying the unpaid taxes, with interest and other charges, but if the
right of redemption is not exercised within six months (which may be extended an additional year in the case of
certain installment payments), it can be foreclosed by petition to the Land Court. Upon foreclosure, a tax title
purchased or taken by the municipality becomes a “tax possession” and may be held and disposed of in the
same manner as other land held for municipal purposes.
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Sale of Tax Receivables. Cities and towns are authorized to sell delinquent property tax receivables by public
sale or auction, either individually or in bulk.

TAXES OUTSTANDING
For Fiscal Year
2014 2013 2012 2011 Prior to 2011
Aggregate $842,550 $677,994 $256,267 $127,357 $525,458
For Current Year (1) 842,550 669,616 106,846 0 10,614
Tax Titles 0 8,378 149,421 127,357 514,844
Tax Possessions 0 0 0 0 0

(1) Excludes tax titles, tax possessions and abated taxes. Includes taxes in litigation, if any.

TOWN FINANCES

Budget and Appropriation Process

The annual appropriations of the Town are ordinarily made at the annual meeting, which takes place in April.
Appropriations may also be voted at special meetings. The Finance Committee (also the Board of Selectmen) is
required to submit reports and recommendations on proposed expenditures at the annual town meeting.

Under certain circumstances and subject to certain limits and requirements, the city council of a city, upon the
recommendation of the mayor, may transfer amounts appropriated for the use of one department (except for a
municipal light department or a school department) to another appropriation for the same department or for the use
of any other department. In a town, town meeting may at any time vote to transfer any amount previously
appropriated to any other authorized use by law, and, under certain circumstances and subject to certain limits and
requirements, the selectmen of a town, with the concurrence of the finance committee, may transfer amounts
appropriated for the use of any department to any other appropriation for the same department or to any other
department.

Water and sewer department expenditures are included in the budgets adopted by town meetings but electric
and gas department funds may be appropriated by the municipal light boards. Under legislation enacted in 1981
any city or town which accepts the legislation may provide that the appropriation for the operating costs of any
department may be offset, in whole or in part, by estimated receipts from fees charged for services provided by
the department. It is assumed that this general provision does not alter the pre-existing power of an electric or
gas department to appropriate its own receipts.

The school budget is limited to the total amount appropriated by the town meeting, but the school committee
retains full power to allocate the funds appropriated. State legislation known as the Education Reform Act of
1993, as amended, imposes certain minimum expenditure requirements on municipalities with respect to
funding for education and related programs and may affect the level of State aid to be received for education.
The requirements are determined on the basis of formulas affected by various measures of wealth and income,
enrollments, prior levels of local spending and state aid, and other factors. In fiscal 1994 through budgeted
2015, the Town’s net school spending exceeded the minimum required local contribution.

State and county assessments, the overlay for abatements in excess of overlays, principal and interest not
otherwise provided for and final judgments are included in the tax levy whether or not included in the budget.
Revenues are not required to be set forth in the budget but estimated non-tax revenues are taken into account by
the assessors in fixing the tax levy. (See Property Taxation and Valuation herein.)
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Budget Comparison

The following table sets forth the general governmental budgets for fiscal years 2011 through 2015:

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
General Government $ 2,332,773 § 1,950,645 §$ 1,867,777 $ 1,695,058 § 1,606,299
Public Safety 7,152,185 6,791,092 6,352,652 6,166,478 6,028,499
Education 25,641,000 24,868,620 24,665,818 23,890,662 23,270,000
Public Works 1,174,569 1,035,836 1,007,712 946,859 892,933

Human/Environmental Services (1)
1,308,136 1,278,826 1,390,523 1,445,731 1,242,146

Information and Recreation (2) 713,623 683,010 656,762 650,123 612,495
Debt & Interest on Debt 4,799,815 4,820,818 5,943,800 6,382,111 6,257,056
Retirement Fund 4,240,122 3,922,374 3,798,025 3,615,567 3,437,012
Unclassified 908,750 841,250 760,675 1,740,800 760,800
Reserve Funds (3) 1,100,000 600,000 200,000 180,000 175,000
Employee Benefits 5,500,000 4,625,000 4,880,000 4,730,000 4,491,000

$54,870,973 $51,417.471 §$51,523,744 $51,443.389 $48,773,240

(1) Health Dept. (incl. Household Trash & Recycling costs), Council on Aging, and Veterans.
(2) Library and Recreation.
(3) Represents budgeted transfers to Stabilization Fund, Capital Stabilization Fund and OPEB Trust Fund

STATE AID

In addition to grants for specified capital purposes (some of which are payable over the life of the bonds issued
for the projects), the Commonwealth provides financial assistance to cities and towns for current purposes.
Payments to cities and towns are derived primarily from a percentage of the State's personal income, sales and
use and corporate excise tax receipts, together with the net receipts from the State Lottery. A municipality's
state aid entitlement is based on a number of different formulas, of which the “schools” and “lottery” formulas
are the most important. Both of the major formulas tend to provide more state aid to poorer communities. The
formulas for determining a municipality’s state aid entitlement are subject to amendment by the state
legislature, and while a formula might indicate that a particular amount of state aid is owed, the amount of state
aid actually paid is limited to the amount appropriated by the state legislature. The state annually estimates
state aid, but the actual state aid payments may vary from the estimate.

In the fall of 1986, both the State Legislature (by statute repealed as of July 1, 1999) and the voters (by initiative
petition) placed limits on the growth of state tax revenues. Although somewhat different in detail, each measure
essentially limited the annual growth in state tax revenues to an average rate of growth in wages and salaries in
the Commonwealth over the three previous calendar years. If not amended, the remaining measure could
restrict the amount of state revenues available for state aid to local communities.
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The following table sets forth the amount of state aid to the Town in recent years as well as the amount
budgeted for 2015:

Fiscal Year State Aid

2015 (budgeted) $4,372,039
2014 (unaudited) 4,154,110
2013 3,687,145
2012 3,734,267
2011 3,842,294

STATE SCHOOL BUILDING ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

Under its school building assistance program, the Commonwealth of Massachusetts provides grants to cities,
towns and regional school districts for school construction projects. Until July 26, 2004, the State Board of
Education was responsible for approving grants for school projects and otherwise administering the program.
Grant amounts ranged from 50% to 90% of approved project costs. Municipalities generally issued bonds to
finance the entire project cost, and the Commonwealth disbursed the grants in equal annual installments over
the term of the related bonds.

Pursuant to legislation which became effective on July 26, 2004, the state legislature created the Massachusetts
School Building Authority (the “Authority”) to finance and administer the school building assistance program.
The Authority has assumed all powers and obligations of the Board of Education with respect to the program.
In addition to certain other amounts, the legislation dedicates a portion of Commonwealth sales tax receipts to
the Authority to finance the program.

Projects previously approved for grants by the State Board of Education are entitled to receive grant payments
from the Authority based on the approved project cost and reimbursement rate applicable under the prior law.
The Authority has paid and is expected to continue to pay the remaining amounts of the grants for such projects
either in annual installments to reimburse debt service on bonds issued by the municipalities to finance such
projects or as lump sum payments to contribute to the defeasance of such bonds.

Projects on the priority waiting list as of July 1, 2004 are also entitled to receive grant payments from the
Authority based on the eligible project costs and reimbursement rates applicable under the prior law. With
limited exceptions, the Authority is required to fund the grants for such projects in the order in which they
appear on the waiting list. Grants for any such projects that have been completed or substantially completed
have been paid and are expected to continue to be paid by the Authority in lump sum payments, thereby
eliminating the need for the Authority to reimburse interest expenses that would otherwise be incurred by the
municipalities to permanently finance the Authority’s share of such project costs. Interest on debt issued by
municipalities prior to July 1, 2004 to finance such project costs, and interest on temporary debt until receipt of
the grant, is included in the approved costs of such projects. Grants for any such projects that have not yet
commenced or that are underway have been and are expected to continue to be paid by the Authority as project
costs are incurred by the municipality pursuant to a project funding agreement between the Authority and the
municipality eliminating the need for the municipality to borrow even on a temporary basis to finance the
Authority’s share of the project costs in most cases.

The range of reimbursement rates for new project grant applications to the Authority on or after July 1, 2007
has been reduced to between 40% and 80% of the approved project costs. The Authority promulgated new
regulations with respect to the application and approval process for projects submitted after July 1, 2007. The
Authority expects to pay grants for such projects as project costs are incurred pursuant to project funding
agreements between the Authority and the municipalities. None of the interest expense incurred on debt issued
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by municipalities to finance their portion of the costs of new projects will be included in the approved project
costs eligible for reimbursement.

MOTOR VEHICLE EXCISE

An excise is imposed on the registration of motor vehicles (subject to exemptions) at the rate of $25 per $1,000
of valuation. The excise is collected by and for the benefit of the municipality in which the motor vehicle is
customarily kept. Valuations are determined by a statutory formula based on manufacturer's list price and year
of manufacture. Bills not paid when due bear interest at 12 percent per annum. Provision is also made, after
notice to the owner, for suspension of the owner's operating license or registration by the registrar of motor
vehicles.

The following table shows the actual receipts from the motor vehicle excise in each of the most recent years and
the amount budgeted for fiscal 2015:

Fiscal Year Excise Tax (1)
2015 (budgeted) $1,600,000
2014 (unaudited) 2,135,317
2013 1,782,015
2012 1,850,241
2011 1,783,303

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The Town accounts for the financial operations of its water and sewer systems through enterprise funds. The
Town’s policy is to cover all costs of these systems through system revenues. The Town most recently
increased rates on July 1, 2012. Water usage is billed at $6.40 per hundred cubic feet of metered water
consumption. Sewer usage is billed at $5.60 per hundred cubic feet of metered water consumption.

The following are water enterprise fund receipts for the five most recent fiscal years.

Fiscal Year Receipts
2014 (unaudited) $3,391,172
2013 3,487,955
2012 3,424,749
2011 3,603,259
2010 3,250,619

The following are sewer enterprise fund receipts for the five most recent fiscal years.

Fiscal Year Receipts
2014 (unaudited) $2,378,277
2013 2,487,945
2012 2,403,509
2011 2,283,413
2010 2,423,559
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COMMUNITY PRESERVATION ACT

The Massachusetts Community Preservation Act (the “CPA”), enacted in September, 2000, permits cities and
towns that accept its provisions to levy a surcharge on its real property tax levy and to receive state matching
funds for the acquisition, creation, preservation, rehabilitation and restoration of open space, historic resources
and affordable housing. The provisions of the CPA must be accepted by the voters of the city or town at an
election after such provisions have first been accepted by either a vote of the legislative body of the city or town
or an initiative petition signed by 5% of its registered voters.

A city or town may approve a surcharge of up to 3% of the real property tax levy, and it may accept one or
more exemptions to the surcharge under the CPA, including an exemption for low-income individuals and
families and for low and moderate-income senior citizens, an exemption for $100,000 of the value of each
taxable parcel of residential real property, and an exemption for commercial and industrial properties in cities
and towns with classified tax rates. The surcharge is not counted in the total taxes assessed for the purpose of
determining the permitted levy amount under Proposition 2% (see “Tax Limitations” under “PROPERTY
TAX” herein). A city or town may revoke its acceptance of the provisions of the CPA at any time after 5 years
from the date of such acceptance and may change the amount of the surcharge or the exemptions to the
surcharge at any time, provided that any such revocation or change must be approved pursuant to the same
process as acceptance of the CPA.

Any city or town that accepts the provisions of the CPA will receive annual state matching grants to supplement
amounts raised by its surcharge on the real property tax levy. The state matching funds are raised from certain
recording and filing fees of the registers of deeds. Those amounts are deposited into a state trust fund and are
distributed to cities and towns that have accepted the provisions of the CPA, which distributions are not subject
to annual appropriation by the state legislature. The amount distributed to each city and town is based on a
statutory formula which requires that 80% of the amount in the state trust fund be used to match an equal
percentage of the amount raised locally by each city and town, and that the remaining 20% of the amount in the
fund be distributed only to those cities and towns that levy the maximum 3% surcharge based on a formula
which takes into account equalized property valuation and population, resulting in larger distributions to those
communities with low valuations and small populations. The total state distribution made to any city or town
may not, however, exceed 100% of the amount raised locally by the surcharge on the real property tax levy.

The amounts raised by the surcharge on real property taxes and received in state matching funds are required to
be deposited in a dedicated community preservation fund. Each city or town that accepts the provisions of the
CPA is required to establish a community preservation committee to study the community preservation needs of
the community and to make recommendations to the legislative body of the city or town regarding the
community preservation projects that should be funded from the community preservation fund. Upon the
recommendations of the committee, the legislative body of the city or town may appropriate amounts from the
fund for permitted community preservation purposes or may reserve amounts for spending in future fiscal years,
provided that at least 70% of the total annual revenues to the fund must be spent or set aside for open space
purposes, 10% for historic resource purposes and 10% for affordable housing purposes.

The CPA authorizes cities and towns that accept its provisions to issue bonds and notes in anticipation of the
receipt of surcharge revenues to finance community preservation projects approved under the provisions of the
CPA. Bonds and notes issued under the CPA are general obligations of the city or town and are payable from
amounts on deposit in the community preservation fund. In the event that a city or town revokes its acceptance
of the provisions of the CPA, the surcharge shall remain in effect until all contractual obligations incurred by
the city or town prior to such revocation, including the payment of bonds or notes issued under the CPA, have
been fully discharged. The Town has not accepted the Community Preservation Act.
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OTHER TAXES

Three additional sources of revenue for local governments are the room occupancy excise tax, local meals
excise tax, and the aviation fuel tax. All taxes take effect only where accepted by individual municipalities.
Under the room occupancy excise tax, local governments may tax the provision of hotel, motel, or lodging
house rooms at a rate not to exceed four percent of the cost of renting such rooms. The tax is paid by the
operator of the hotel, motel, or lodging house to the State Commissioner of Revenue, who in turn pays the tax
back to the municipality in which the rooms are located. The Town has not voted to impose the room
occupancy excise tax.

The local meals excise tax, effective for sales of restaurant meals on or after October 1, 2009, is a three-fourths
percent tax on the gross receipts of a vendor from the sale of restaurant meals. The tax is paid by the vendor to
the State Commissioner of Revenue, who in turn pays the tax to the municipality in which the meal was sold.
The Town adopted local meals excise tax effective July 1, 2011.

The following are collections of meals excise tax for the most recent fiscal years:

Fiscal Year Collections
2014 (unaudited) $237,738
2013 199,587
2012 193,960

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING FOR DEVELOPMENT DISTRICTS

Under recent legislation, cities and towns are authorized to establish development districts to encourage increased
residential, industrial and commercial activity. All or a portion of the taxes on growth in assessed value in such
districts may be pledged and used solely to finance economic development projects pursuant to the city or town’s
development program for the district. This includes pledging such “tax increments” for the payment of bonds
issued to finance such projects. As a result of any such pledge, tax increments raised from new growth properties
in development districts are not available for other municipal purposes. Tax increments are taken into account in
determining the total taxes assessed for the purpose of calculating the maximum permitted tax levy under
Proposition 275.

UNDESIGNATED GENERAL FUND BALANCE AND FREE CASH

Under Massachusetts law an amount known as “free cash” is certified as of the beginning of each fiscal year by
the State Bureau of Accounts and this, together with certain subsequent tax receipts, is used as the basis for
subsequent appropriations from available funds, which are not required to be included in the annual tax levy.
Subject to certain adjustments, free cash is surplus revenue less uncollected and overdue property taxes from
prior years. The Town Accountant may certify as available for appropriation an adjusted free cash figure by
adding back those uncollected and overdue property taxes which are subsequently collected between July 1 and
the following March 31 of any year.
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The following shows the unassigned and undesignated general fund balance and free cash for the most recent
fiscal years:

Unassigned/
Undesignated General
July 1, Fund Balance (1) Free Cash
2014 (2) $5,660,763 $2,587,853
2013 4,018,582 2,429,278
2012 5,603,341 2,975,937
2011 3,049,292 2,122,834
2010 3,424,891 2,795,646

(1) Beginning in Fiscal 2011, the Town’s audited financial statements have been prepared in compliance with GASB Statement No.
54. The Town’s Stabilization Fund is included in Unassigned Fund Balance in the Town’s audited financial statements.

(2) The ‘“unassigned/undesignated” estimate for fiscal 2014 is from the Town Accountant’s financial statements, which are not
prepared on the basis of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).1t includes the Stabilization Fund.

STABILIZATION FUND

The Town has maintained a Stabilization Fund for several years. Under Massachusetts statutes, funds may be
appropriated from the Fund for any municipal purpose by a two thirds vote of the town meeting. The following
is the balance in the account at the end of the most recent fiscal years:

June 30 Balance (1)
2014 (unaudited) $1,296,893
2013 1,242,417
2012 1,188,059
2011 784,377
2010 655,149

(1) Beginning in fiscal 2011, the Stabilization Fund is included in Unassigned General Fund Balance.

In addition to the regular Stabilization Fund, the Town established a Capital Stabilization Fund during fiscal
year 2012. While this fund is targeted specifically for capital purposes, as with the regular Stabilization Fund,
funds may be appropriated from the Fund for any municipal purpose by a two thirds vote of the town meeting.
The following are balances as of the end of the most recent fiscal years:

June 30 Balance (1)
2014 $200,513
2013 150,209
2012 100,007

(1) Beginning in fiscal 2011, Capital Stabilization Fund is included in Committed General Fund Balance.

INVESTMENTS

Investments of funds of cities and towns, except for trust funds, are generally restricted by Massachusetts
General Laws Chapter 44, section 55. That statute permits investments of available revenue funds and bond
and note proceeds in term deposits and certificates of deposits of banks and trust companies, in obligations
issued or unconditionally guaranteed by the federal government of an agency thereof with a maturity of not
more than one year, in repurchase agreements, with a maturity of not more than 90 days secured by federal or
federal agency securities, or in participation units in the Massachusetts Municipal Depository Trust (“MMDT”),
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or in shares of SEC-registered money market funds with the highest possible rating from at least one nationally
recognized rating organization.

MMDT is an investment pool created by the Commonwealth under the supervision of the State Treasurer’s
office. According to the State Treasurer the Trust’s investment policy is designed to maintain an average
weighted maturity of 90 days or less and is limited to high-quality, readily marketable fixed income
instruments, including U.S. Government obligations and highly-rated corporate securities with maturities of one
year or less.

Trust funds, unless otherwise provided by the donor, may be invested in accordance with section 54 of Chapter
44 of the General Laws, which permits a broader range of investments than section 55, including any bonds or
notes that are legal investments for savings banks in the Commonwealth. The restrictions imposed by sections
54 and 55 do not apply to city and town retirement systems.

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING

City and town employees (other than managerial and confidential employees) are entitled to join unions and to
bargain collectively on questions of wages, hours and other terms and conditions of employment.

The Town has approximately 820 full and part-time employees, of which approximately 47% belong to unions
or other collective bargaining groups as follows:

Union Department Number of People Contract Expires
AFL/CIO 285 Library 12 6/30/2017
AFSCME 2610 Town Clerical 9 6/30/2017
AFSCME 2610 DPW Laborers 15 6/30/2017
FIRE UNION Fire Department 33 6/30/2017
POLICE UNION Police Department 31 6/30/2017
AFSCME 2610  School Custodians 13 6/30/2015
AFSCME 2610 School Clerical 15 6/30/2015
SEA Union ESP 45 8/31/2015
SEA Union School 210 8/31/2017
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PHYSICAL AND ECONOMIC CHARACTERISTICS

General

The Town is located approximately 12 miles northeast of downtown Boston. It is a seaside residential
community with a land area of 3.05 square miles and a population of 13,787 (2010 census). Income and wealth
in the Town ranges primarily from middle income to affluent. The Town borders the Atlantic Ocean on the east
and south, the City of Salem and the Town of Marblehead on the north, and the City of Lynn on the west. The
Town has convenient access to Logan International Airport and to the MBTA commuter rail, which has a
station stop in the Town. The Town is served by state routes 1A and 129. Interstate 95, U.S. Route 1, and State
Route 128 are also accessible. The opening of the Massachusetts Turnpike to Logan Airport in early 2003 has
improved the Town’s access to points west and south of Boston. The Town’s economic base is primarily
residential, with relatively small commercial and industrial sectors.
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Principal Employers

Other than the Town itself, the following are the principal employers located in the Town:

Approximate
Company Nature of Business Current Employees
Stop & Shop Grocery Store 225
Whole Foods Market Grocery Store 210
Bertucci’s Restaurant 84
T.J. Maxx Retail Store 50
Marshall’s Retail Store 50
Uno Chicago Grill Restaurant 48
Anthony’s Pier 4 Cafe Restaurant 40
CVS Pharmacy 30
Beach Club Restaurant 27
Cut Rate Tree Landscaping/Tree Removal 25

Source: The Town, the Massachusetts Department of Labor and Workplace Development, and the Employers.

Employment and Payrolls (1)

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Construction & Natural Resources 219 213 220 231 232
Manufacturing NA NA 18 32 30
Trade, Transportation & Utilities 841 852 770 757 732
Financial Activities 120 136 130 151 167
Professional & Business Services 189 248 252 217 197
Education & Health Services 715 704 710 667 717
Leisure & Hospitality 551 617 610 603 561
Information & Other Services 196 220 165 144 153
Total Employment 3,381 3,539 3,448 3,365 3,359
Number of Establishments 348 356 364 351 352
Total Annual Wage (000) $135,697 $137,645 $131,747 $126,491 $127,474
Average Weekly Wage $ 772 § 748 $§ 735 § 723 $§ 730

Source: Massachusetts Executive Office of Labor & Workforce Development.

(1) Total employment may differ from the sum of the given column; it includes information from firms for which employment figures are

confidential.
Building Permits
Calendar Year Number Estimated Value
2014 (1) 595 $ 37,496,388
2013 556 17,882,676
2012 (2) 502 18,947,679
2011 537 13,012,531
2010 525 11,027,780

(1) Through November 5, 2014. Includes one large-scal residential development valued at $22,402,000.
(2) 2012 includes two single family homes under renovations totaling more than 32 million. Also, includes value of temporary
soundstage used by Columbia Pictures in the making of a film. The estimated value of the soundstage was $1 million.

40



OTHER DATA

Unemployment (1)

Year
2014 (September)
2013
2012
2011
2010

Swampscott

4.7%
6.0
5.3
5.5
7.1

Massachusetts
6.2%
7.1
6.8
7.3
8.3

United States
5.7%
7.4
8.1
8.9
9.6

(1) Massachusetts Department of Employment and Training. Full year annual averages except for 2014 which is for the month

indicated.

Population (1)

Swampscott Essex County Massachusetts
Year Number % Change Number % Change Number % Change
2013 Estimate 13,951 1.2% 762,550 2.6% 6,692,824 2.2%
2010 13,787 (4.3) 743,159 2.7 6,547,629 3.1
2000 14,412 5.6 723,419 8.0 6,349,097 5.5
1990 13,650 (1.4) 670,080 5.8 6,016,425 4.9
1980 13,837 633,632 5,737,037 0.8
(1) Source: U.S. Department of Commerce.
Population Density (1)

Swampscott Essex County Massachusetts
Year Number Density (2) Number Density Number Density
2013 Estimate 13,951 4,575.6 762,550 1,531.0 6,692,824 853.9
2010 13,787 4,521.8 743,159 1,492.1 6,547,629 835.4
2000 14,412 4,726.8 723,419 1,452.4 6,349,097 810.0
1990 13,650 4,476.9 670,080 1,345.4 6,016,425 767.6
1980 13,837 4,538.2 633,632 1,272.2 5,737,037 732.0
1970 13,578 4,453.3 637,887 1,280.7 5,689,170 725.8
(1) Source: U.S. Department of Commerce.
(2) Based on 3.0 square miles.
Population Composition by Age 2012 S-year estimates (1)

Swampscott Essex County Massachusetts
Age Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
Under 5 Years 805 5.8% 43,523 5.8% 366,952 5.6%
5 Years to 19 Years 2,519 18.2 148,741 20.2 1,257,302 19.2
20 Years to 64 Years 8,128 58.8 446,491 59.9 4,025,262 61.4
65 Years & Over 2,371 17.2 106,206 14.3 911,079 13.9

Total 13,823 100.0% 744,961 100.0% 6,560,595 100.0%

Median Age 44.5 40.4 39.1
Median Age (2000) 41.5 37.5 36.5

(1) Source: U.S. Department of Commerce.
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Income Levels (1)

Swampscott Essex County

Massachusetts

% Change from % Change from

% Change from

Year Amount Previous Census Amount Previous Census Amount Previous Census
Per Capita-Personal
2013 5-yr est. $51,948 46.4% $35,369 34.2% $35,485 36.7%
1999 35,487 38.8 26,358 49.9 25,952 50.7
1989 25,576 146.7 17,586 129.2 17,224 131.0
1979 10,366 7,673 7,457
Median Family
Income (2012) $116,663 $84,083 $84,380
Median Household
Income (2012)  $93,281 $66,918 $66,658
% Below Poverty
Level (2012) 4.9% 11.0% 11.0%
(1) Source: U.S. Department of Commerce.
Family Income Distribution 2012 5 Year Estimates (1)
Swampscott Essex County Massachusetts
Income for Families Families Percent Families Percent Families Percent
Less than $10,000 99 2.5% 6,701 3.5% 57,204 3.6%
$10,000 - $24,999 174 4.5 16,733 8.8 132,790 8.3
$25,000 - $49,999 202 5.2 31,014 16.4 260,930 16.3
$50,000 - $74,999 443 11.4 29,416 15.5 257,973 16.1
$75,000 - $99,999 653 16.8 27,982 14.8 235,746 14.7
$100,000 - $149,999 955 24.6 38,374 20.3 331,738 20.7
$150,000 or more 1,359 35.0 39,167 _20.7 327,825 204
Total 3,885 100.0% 189,387 100.0% 1,604,206 100.0%
(1) Source: U.S. Department of Commerce.
Household Income Distribution 2012 Five Year Estimates (1)
Swampscott Essex County Massachusetts
Income for Households Households Percent Households Percent Households Percent
Less than $10,000 253 4.5% 17,398 6.1% 159,535 6.3%
$10,000 - $24,999 560 9.9 39,724 13.9 345,816 13.7
$25,000 - $49,999 573 10.2 53,932 18.9 472,301 18.7
$50,000 - $74,999 816 14.5 45,139 15.8 412,921 16.3
$75,000 - $99,999 813 14.4 37,491 13.1 329,572 13.0
$100,000 - $149,999 1,116 19.8 47,050 16.5 422,194 16.7
$150,000 or more 1,508 26.7 44,410 15.6 383,355 15.2
Total 5,639 100.0% 285,144 100.0% 2,525,694 100.0%

(1) Source: U.S. Department of Commerce.
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Value Distribution Of Specified Owner-Occupied Housing Units 2012 Five Year Estimates (1)

Swampscott Essex County Massachusetts

Units Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
Less than $100,000 140 3.2% 5,466 3.0% 55,908 3.5%
$100,000 - $199,999 133 3.1 16,152 8.8 201,702 12.6
$200,000 - $299,999 734 16.9 43,572 23.8 402,530 25.2
$300,000 - $499,999 2,200 50.6 75,734 414 603,907 37.8
$500,000 - $999,999 895 20.6 36,400 19.9 276,805 17.3
$1,000,000 or more 250 57 5,754 3.1 55,107 3.5

Total 4,352 100.0% 183,078 100.0% 1,595,959 100.0%
Median Value $412,000 $354,700 $335,500
(1) Source: U.S. Department of Commerce
Age Distribution Housing Units 2012 Five Year Estimates (1)

Swampscott Essex County Massachusetts

Year Built Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
2000 or later 87 1.5% 20,696 6.8% 199,233 7.1%
1980 to 1999 547 9.5 52,534 17.1 508,334 18.1
1940 to 1979 2,118 36.8 112,462 36.7 1,115,159 39.8
1939 or Earlier 2.997 52.1 120,630 39.4 981,480 35.0

Total 5,749 100.0% 306,322 100.0% 2,804,206 100.0%
(1) Source: U.S. Department of Commerce.
Housing Unit Inventory 2012 Five Year Estimates (1)

Swampscott Essex County Massachusetts

Units in Structure Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
1, Detached 3,568 62.1% 154,742 50.5% 1,471,460 52.5%
1, Attached 269 4.7 18,593 6.1 141,098 5.0
2to4 1,133 19.7 70,491 23.0 596,892 21.3
5t09 106 1.8 16,842 5.5 168,231 6.0
10to 19 9 0.2 12,774 4.2 120,233 4.3
20 or More 664 11.5 30,916 10.1 281,775 10.0
Mobil Home, Trailer, or Other 0 0.0 1,964 0.6 24,517 0.9

Total 5,749 100.0% 306,322 100.0% 2,804,206 100.0%

(1) Source: U.S. Department of Commerce.
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Educational Attainment 2012 (1)

Swampscott Essex County Massachusetts

Years of School Completed Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent
Less than 9th Grade 94 0.9% 27,408 5.4% 216,669 4.9%
9th to 12th Grade, No Diploma 125 1.3 29,693 5.9 268,218 6.0
High School Graduate 1,842 18.4 134,289 26.5 1,156,650 25.9
Some College, No Degree 1,517 15.2 89,435 17.6 739,171 16.6
Associate’s Degree 768 7.7 41,700 8.2 344,724 7.7
Bachelor’s Degree 2,958 29.6 109,985 21.7 989,299 22.2
Graduate or Professional Degree 2,684 26.9 74,986 _14.8 751,167 _16.8

Total 9,988 100.0% 507,496 100.0% 4,465,898 100.0%
High School Graduate or Higher 9,769 97.8% 450,395 88.7% 3,981,011 89.1%
Bachelor’s Degree or Higher 5,642 56.5% 184,971 36.4% 1,740,466 39.0%

(1) Source: U.S. Department of Commerce.

LITIGATION

At present there are a number of suits pending in which the Town is a defendant. In the opinion of the Town,
there is no litigation, either pending or threatened, which is considered likely to result, either individually or in
the aggregate, in final judgments which would materially affect the Town's financial position.

TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT
Massachusetts

By: /s/ M. Ronald Mendes
Town Treasurer

Dated: November 12, 2014

44



APPENDIX A

The General Fund Balance Sheet for the year ended June 30, 2014 is extracted from the Town Accountant’s
records. It is not prepared based on General Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). Comparisons between
this balance sheet and GAAP-based financial statements may not be valid.

The General Fund Balance Sheets for June 30, 2009 through June 30, 2013 and the General Fund Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance for fiscal years June 30, 2009 through 2013 are extracted
from the audit reports of Sullivan, Rogers & Company, LLC. Audited financial statements for fiscal year 2013
are presented in Appendix B.



TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT

MASSACHUSETTS
BALANCE SHEET (1)
GENERAL FUND
June 30,
2014
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $6,142,091
Receivables
Real Estate and Personal Property 1,198,328
Tax Liens 907,474
Motor Vehicle and Boat Excise 259,044
Total Assets $8,511,452
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Allowance for Abatements 461,907
Other Liabilities 222,857
Deferred Revenue 1,907,453
Total Liabilities 2,592,217
Fund Balances:
Reserved for Expenditures 1,200,000
Reserved for Encumbrances 355,365
Unreserved and Undesignated 4,363,870
Total Fund Balances 5,919,235
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $8,511,452

(1) Excerpted from Town Accountant’s records. Not prepared based on General Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).
Comparisons between this balance sheet and GAAP-based financial statements may not be valid.
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Assets
Cash
Property Tax Receivables
Tax Liens
Departmental and Other
Motor Vehicle & Other Excise Taxes
Intergovernmental
Due from other funds
Total Assets

Liabilities & Fund Equity

Liabilities:
Warrants Payable
Deferred Revenues
Accrued Short Term Interest
Accrued Payroll
Tax Refund Payable
Other Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Fund Balances — Reserved
Unreserved, Designated
Unreserved, Undesignated

Total Fund Equity

Total Liabilities & Fund Equity

TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT

MASSACHUSETTS
BALANCE SHEET (1)
GENERAL FUND
June 30,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
$ 7,479,895 $ 6,763,955 $6,639,038 $5,885,539 $3,450,217
868,778 820,496 711,879 676,047 1,203,245
993,758 886,047 769,403 820,760 486,980
44,930 35,280 37,705 37,975 37,133
124,542 124,589 132,613 118,280 148,455
53,752 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 316,276
$9,565,655  $8,630,367 8,290,638 7,538,601 5,642,306
$ 883,710 $§ 492,443 $514,835 398,187 498,889
1,852,052 1,726,576 1,533,846 1,532,016 1,193,450
0 0 0 0 217,345
58,001 63,575 301,187 235,344 190,707
457,074 106,247 327,102 262,721 116,648
273,057 252,910 268,047 311,733 344,689
$3,523,894  $2.641,751 2,945,017 2,740,001 2,561,728
$ 860,209 $§ 540,007 $1,460,000
1,162,970 797,194 836,329
4,018,582 4,651,415 3,049,292
0 0 0 $1,523,143 $618,271
0 0 0 200,000 350,000
0 0 0 _3,075.457 2,112,307
$6,041,761 5,988,616 5,345,621 4,798,600 3,080,578
$9,565,655  $8,630,367 $8,290,638 $7,538,601 $5,642,306

(1) Excerpts taken from the audited financial statements of Sullivan, Rogers and Company, LLC.
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Revenues:

Property Taxes
Motor Vehicle Excise

Tax Liens

Licenses and Permits

Fines & Forfeitures

Penalties & Interest on Taxes
Intergovernmental Revenue
Departmental and Other
Other Charges

Interest

Payments in Lieu of Taxes
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
General Government

Education
Public Safety
Public Works
Debt Service
Pensions

Employee Benefits

State and County Assessments
Human Services

Cultural and Recreation

Other

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (under)

Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Premium from Issuance of Bonds
Proceeds from Capital Leases
Operating Transfers - In
Operating Transfers - Out

Total Other Financing Sources

Revenues and other financing sources
over (under) expenditures and other
financing (uses)

Beginning Fund Equity (deficit) (2)
Ending Fund Equity (deficit)

TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT

Combined Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and changes in Fund Balances (1)

MASSACHUSETTS
June 30,

2013 2012
$42,652,643  $41,885,611
2,052,796 2,049,265
99,703 172,196
260,969 341,016
73,955 92,533
206,033 187,918
9,028,767 8,841,879
1,302,050 1,784,568
0 0
34,624 127,018
8,075 8,075
$55,719,615  $55,386,660
$ 1,831,003 $ 1,313,367
24,323,161 23,926,719
6,782,853 6,693,567
1,082,130 875,157
4,406,578 4,900,588
8,710,246 8,397,114
5,217,563 4,681,627
646,881 750,825
1,192,449 1,188,236
645,262 652,535
500,428 311,975
$55,338,554 $53,691,710
$ 381,061 $ 1,694,950
95,284 0
0 0
802,000 760,000
(1,225,200) (1,811,955)
(_327.916) (1,051,955)
53,145 642,995
$5.988.616 $5.345.621
$6,041,761 $5,988.616

2011 2010 2009
$39,766,925  $39,214,756  $38,734,604
1,791,328 1,700,678 1,864,938
124,645 526,279 9,342
207,475 175,853 186,101
87,225 86,582 86,630
168,189 267,522 163,367
8,688,205 9,315,239 9,106,536

0 0 0

1,652,976 1,738,668 1,609,772
41,651 29,215 96,830
8.075 8.075 8.075
$52,536,694  $53.062.867  $51.866.203
$ 1,534,751 $ 1,408911 $ 1,712,407
23,194,315 22,808,791 21,691,147
6,413,070 6,234,472 6,107,160
1,065,555 934,990 1,089,142
4,874,437 4,713,935 5,065,178
8,104,804 7,693,786 7,232,748
4,301,769 3,896,967 4,710,996
723,393 995,786 975,144
1,224,950 1,199,392 1,176,687
620,864 600,363 598,637
320,528 329,544 275,577
$52,378.,436  $50,816,937  $50,634.823
$ 158,258 § 2,245930 § 1,231,380
119,700 0 115,787

0 0 0

760,000 760,000 750,000
(1,146.086) (1,287.908) (1,077,132)
(266.386) (527.908) (211.345)
(108,128) 1,718,022 1,020,035
$5.453.749 3,080,578 2,060,543
$5,345,621 $4,798,600 $3,080,578

(1) Excerpts taken from the audited financial statements of Sullivan, Rogers and Company, LLC.
(2) Fiscal 2011 beginning fund balance was adjusted to reflect the implementation of GASB Rule #54, which provided for the

reallocation of fund balances.
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APPENDIX B

There follows in this Appendix audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 together
with the report of the certified public accountants, Sullivan, Rogers & Company, LLC.
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Independent Auditors” Report

To the Honorable Board of Selectmen
Town of Swampscott, Massachusetts

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Swampscott,
Massachusetts, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013 (except for the Swampscott Retirement System, which is
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2012), and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Town of Swampscott, Massachusetts’ basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Town of Swampscott, Massachusetts, as of June 30, 2013 (except for the
Swampscott Retirement System, which is as of and for the year ended December 31, 2012), and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis (located on pages 4 through 13) and general fund budgetary comparison and certain
pension and other postemployment benefits information (located on pages 61 through 66) be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic; or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 21, 2014 on our
consideration of the Town of Swampscott, Massachusetts” internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town of Swampscott, Massachusetts” internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
August 21, 2014
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TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE30, 2013

As management of the Town of Swampscott, Massachusetts (Town), we offer readers of these financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the Town’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30,

2013,
Financial Highlights
» The assets of the Town exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $50,989,865 (net
position). The Town’s governmental activities had negative unrestricted net position totaling

{$11,612,432) and $3,366,058 in unrestricted net position for its business-type activities.

The Town's total net position increased $468,063.

v

As of the close of the fiscal year, the Town’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances totaling $11,671,220, an increase of $402,475 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately
$3,933,000 represents unassigned fund balance.

v

» At the end of the fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund totaled $4,018,582, or 7.1
percent of total general fund expenditures and transfers out.

» The Town's total bonded debt decreased by $484,025 during the fiscal year; $8,919,400 of new debt was
issued.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the basic financial statements, which consists
of the following three components:

1. Government-wide financial statements
2.  Fund financial statements
3. Notes to the basic financial statements.

This report also contains required supplementary information in addition to the basis financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Town’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Town's non-fiduciary assets, deferred outflows,
deferred inflows and liabilities, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position, changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes,
accrued interest on long-term debt, etc.).
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TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2013

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-fype activities).
Governmental activities include general government, public safety, education, public works, health and human
services, culture and recreation and debt service-interest. Business-type activities include water and sewer
operations.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 15-17 of this report.

Fund financial statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific activities or objectives. The Town, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds can be divided into
the following categories and are described below:

1. Governmental funds
2. Proprietary funds
3. Fiduciary funds

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental funds financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of expendable resources, as
well as on balances of expendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be
useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term effect of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental funds
balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Town maintains 188 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances for the general and capital articles {capital projects) funds, each of which are considered

to be major funds. Data from the other 186 governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation titled nonmajor governmental funds.

The basic governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 18-21 of this report.

Proprietary funds

The Town maintains one type of proprietary fund.

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-
wide financial statements. The Town uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer operations, both of
which are considered to be major funds.

The basic proprietary funds financial statements can be found on pages 22-24 of this report.
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TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2013

Fiduciary funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those
funds are not available to support the Town’s programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is similar to
that used for proprietary funds.

The fiduciary funds provide separate information for the Town's pension trust fund. Private-purpose trust funds
and agency funds are reported and combined into a single, aggregate presentation in the fiduciary funds financial
statements under the captions “private purpose trust funds” and “agency funds”, respectively.

The basic fiduciary funds financial statements can be found on pages 25-26 of this report.
Notes to the basic financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 27-

59 of this report.
Required supplementary information
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required

supplementary information. Presented in this information is the budget comparison for the general fund and
certain pension and other postemployment benefits information, which can be found on pages 61-66 of this

report.
Government-Wide Financial Analysis

The following tables present current and prior year data on the government-wide financial statements.
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TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2013

Net Position

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The
Town'’s assets exceeded liabilities by $50,989,865 at the close of the fiscal year and are summarized as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2013 2612 25 2012 2013 2012
Assets
Current ABSEEE. . co.ovves firennvercinaonnan $ 15,567,863 § 14274617 & 4304777 % 4,480,286 § 19,892,640 5 18,763,906
MNoncurrent assets {(excluding
capital assets) - - - 93,567 ~ 93,567
Capital assets (Bet)..cooouiiienirinrenii. 75,068,214 72,215,308 19,349,570 20,006,674 94,417,784 92,221,982
Total 485018, . oveiiiisincnv i 90,636,077 86,489,925 23,674,347 24,589,530 114,310,424 111,079,455
Liabilities
Current liabilities
{excluding debtlo. i 2,698,691 1,989,132 259,689 74,256 2,958,380 2,063,388
MNoncurrent Habilities
(excluding debtho.cvvinrniviinn 18,529,375 16,009,807 348,357 265,986 18,877,732 16,275,793
Current.debt ... oo iimoyon i, 3,651,927 3,312,147 1.463.874 2,456,278 5,115,801 5,768,425
MNoncurrent debb. ..o i 33,778,998 32,516,525 2,589,648 3,933,522 36,368,646 36,450,047
Total labilites........ocomein 58,658,991 53,807,611 4,661,568 6,730,042 63,320,559 601,557,653
Net Position
Net inveshment in capital assets......, 40,146,798 38,967,128 15,646,721 13,971,209 55,783,519 52,938,337
Restrictet. v viee s oo arsivi i onns 3442720 2,818,116 - - 3,442,720 2,818,116
Unrestricted (11,612,432) 9,122,930) 3,366,058 3,888,279 (8,246,374) (5,234,6513
Total net position... ..o $ 3977086 5 32662314 % 19012779 § 17,859,488 & 50,989,865 $ 50,521,802

The largest portion of the Town's net position ($55,793,519) reflect its investment in capital assets (e.g., land,
construction in progress, land improvements, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment, and
infrastructure); less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. These capital assets are used to
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to
repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to
liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the Town’s net position ($3,442,720) represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used.

Unrestricted net position of $3,366,058 may be used to support business-type activities. The Town has no
unrestricted net position available for the support of governmental activities. Such resources have been
consumed with the recognition of other post-employment benefits liabilities.



TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30,2013

Changes in Net Position

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the Town's total net position increased by $468,063, compared to an
increase of $1,459,241 in the prior fiscal year. These amounts are summarized as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2013 2012 203 2012 2033 piitved
Rewvenues
Program Revenues:
Charges FOT ServiCes. .. . ouaerrnmreriecirnnnens $ 3,495,466 $ 3,942,189 % 5983,157 % 5,789,514 § 9,478,623 % 9,731,673
Operating grants and contributons. ... ....... 10,700,648 10,632,218 57,865 110,515 10,758,513 10,742,733
Capital grants and contributions.........«v... 680,173 425,420 - = 680,173 425,420
(eneral Revenues:
Real estate, personal property taxes
ANA EAX THONS. vv v ivesvresirrsirgs st oias o puissivn e 42,868,219 42,260,984 - = 42,868,219 42,260,984
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes... 2,052,748 2,041,242 - - 2,052,748 2,041,242
Penalties and interest oM taxXes...o.vsvvreiinss 206,033 187,918 . » 206,033 187,918
Payments inlieu of taxes....covvvvecorenninnnes 8,075 8.075 - - 8,075 8,075
Grants and conkributions not restricted
10 SPECIfic PROFTATOS. .. cvvrrnneern e e e rens 1,118,659 1,112,248 - + 1,118,659 1,112,248
Unrestricted investmentincome. ............... 30:065 19,910 - = 30,065 19,910
Contributions to permanent funds............. 9,450 13,200 - - 9,450 13,200
(117 S S SR 280,988 267,152 B - 280,988 267,152
Total TEVENUES.. .vveescererraereerrrinss 61,450,524 60,910,526 6,041,022 5,900,029 67,491,546 66,810,555
Expenses
Gereral EOVErnmient. ..o vvvrierceininen i cercen s 2,611,724 2,255,692 - - 2,611,724 2,255,692
Public safely ... oo inn i i i st e e s 11,857,484 11,177,206 = = 11,857,484 11,177,206
Education.... 40,953,277 41,480,023 - - 40,953,277 41,480,023
TPublic works 2,197,423 1,246,932 - = 2,197,423 1,246,932
Health and human Services. ... o eee s vriinrnin. 1747413 1,737,258 - - 1,747,413 1,737,258
Cultiire and Fecreation.......v.vvseriensorerorsrnrsions 1,264,276 1,345,008 - = 1,264,276 1,345,008
Debt service - INMEETESt. ..o vive s viirsinrenrrmsrnsnsesruns 1,081,052 1,182,496 - = 1,081,052 1,182,496
- - 2,747,393 2,435,580 2,747,393 2,435,580
- - 2,563,441 2,491,119 2,563,441 2491119
Total eXPeNnses. ..o vceeicin i i 61,712,649 601,424,615 5,310,834 4,926,699 67,023,483 65,351,314
Change in net position beforetransfers. ... b (262,125) 485,911 730,188 973,330 468,063 1,459,241
Transfers, Netv i st v iviinviins i e s (423,103) (451,955) 423,103 451,955 e »
Change i et POSTHON. et o vt iaiianie i sncnsnes (685,228) 33,956 1,153,291 1,425,285 468,063 1,459,241
Net position - Beginning of yeat......uiin s G 32,662,314 32,628,358 17,859,488 16,434,203 50,521,802 49,062,561
Net position < end 0F Year. .....veeivieivcnincnnnn RO 31,977,086 % 32662314 § 19,012,779 & 17859488 § 50,989,865 $ 50,521,802

Governmental activities decreased the Town's net position by $685,228. In the prior year, governmental activities
increased the Town’s net position by $33,956.

Business-fype activities increased the Town's net position by $1,153,291. In the prior year, business-type activities
increased the Town’s net position by $1,425,285.
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TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2013

Fund Financial Statement Analysis

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental funds

The focus of the governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of
expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Town’s financing requirements. In particular,
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at
the end of the fiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances totaling
$11,671,220, an increase of $402,475 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately $3,933,000 represents
unassigned fund balance. The remainder of fund balance includes the following constraints:

» Nonspendable ($427,652)
¥ Restricted (55,287,505)
»  Committed ($860,209)
» Assigned ($1,162,970)

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the Town. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund
balance of the general fund totaled $4,018,582, while total fund balance was $6,041,761. As a measure of the
general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total
general fund expenditures and transfers out. Unassigned fund balance represents 7.1% of total general fund
expenditures and transfers out, while total fund balance represents 10.7% of that same amount.

The balance of the Town’s general fund increased by $53,145 during fiscal year 2013. The Town recognized a
budgetary surplus of $1,426,043 (excluding encumbrances and continuing appropriations) and utilized $1,226,074
of reserves to fund appropriations during fiscal year 2013. In addition, on a budgetary basis of accounting, the
Town transferred $50,000 (net) from the general fund to stabilization funds.

Financial highlights of the Town’s other major governmental fund is as follows:

The fund balance of the capital articles fund (capital project) decreased by $174,055 during the current fiscal year.
The fund recognized $4,736,000 of bond proceeds and incurred $4,910,055 of expenditures.

Proprietary funds

The Town's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the water and sewer enterprise funds at the end of the year amounted to $2,248,272 and
$1,117,785, respectively. The water and sewer enterprise funds had increases in net assets for the year fotaling
$334,181 and $819,110, respectively. Other factors concerning the finances of these two funds have already been
addressed in the discussion of the Town's business-type activities.



TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2013

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The original general fund budget of $52,467,880 was increased by $180,708 during the fiscal year. The following
table summarizes the increase:

Purpose of Increase Amount Funding Source
To fund workers compensation insurance........................ $ 170,000  Unassigned fund balance
To fund unpaid bills expense.......c...ccveiniiiivininnnnn 10,708  Unassigned fund balance
Total INCIeAse. ....couet i et e $ 180,708

During the year, general fund revenues and expenditures and encumbrances and continuing appropriations and
other financing sources (uses) were less than budgetary estimates, resulting in a positive overall budget to actual
variance of approximately $263,000.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets

The Town’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities at the end of the fiscal
year totaled $94,417,784 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land,
construction in progress, land improvements, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment and
infrastructure. The total increase in the investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year totaled 2.4%.

Major capital asset events that occurred during the current fiscal year include the following:

» New Police station construction in progress ($3,619,057)
» Governmental infrastructure ($1,115,654)

The following table summarizes the Town’s capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Rand. o e e et e % 4,269,080 $ 4,269,080 $ 252,182 § 252,182 & 4521262 % 4,521,262
Land improvements. . voouicuins 728,588 792,605 2,250 2,550 730,838 795,155
Buildings. .ovvevecnmereenieciininns 56,550,540 58,281,719 596,627 637,183 57,147,167 58,918,902
Machinery and equipment....... 1,175,207 1,325,676 1,007,358 1,039,878 2,182,565 2,365,554
Ifrastacture. e vaee 7,182,118 6,259,321 17,491,153 18,074,881 24,673,272 24,334,202
Construction in progress. ,....... 5,162,681 1,286,907 - - 5,162,681 1,286,907
Total capital assets............ou... 5 75068214 $ 72215308 $ 19349570 & 20006674 B 94,417,784 $ 92,221,982

I T R ————
B e S e

Additional information on the Town's capital assets can be found in Note 5 on pages 42-43 of this report.



TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2013

Long=Term Debt

At the end of the current fiscal year, total bonded debt outstanding was $41,484,447, which is backed by the full
faith and credit of the Town, and is summarized as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

2013 2012 2013 2012 2003 2012
General obligation bonds....... $ 37430925 $ 35828672 % 1L171,920 & 1,577,146 % 38,602,845 $§ 37405812
MWRA notes v s - - 2,005,776 2,534,989 2,005,776 2,534,989
MWPAT notes. ..o v asninn - - 875,826 2,027,671 875,826 2,027,671
Total bonds and notes........... $ 37,430,925 % 35,828,672 % 4,053,522 $ 6,139,800 $ 41484447 § 41,968,472

The Town's total bonded debt decreased by $484,025 (1.2%) during the current fiscal year, with new debt
issuances totaling $8,919,400. Included in this activity, there was a refunding transaction totaling $3,790,000 with
an economic gain of approximately $507,000.

The Town's bond rating from Moody's Investors Services for the September 2013 bond issue was Aa2.
Additional information on the Town's long-term debt can be found in Note 9 on pages 46-50 of this report.
Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The Fiscal Year 2014 budget for the Town of Swampscott totals $59.1 million, inclusive of debt exclusions for the
Lynn sewer connection and the new high school of $3.1 million. Swampscott's total budget is comprised of a
General Fund component and the Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund component. The General Fund Budget for
Fiscal Year 2014 totals $52.9 million inclusive of the debt exclusions previously mentioned. This projected level of
spending is $387,905 more than the Fiscal Year 2013 budget. The Enterprise Fund Budget for Fiscal Year 2014
totals $6.1 million an increase of $263,617, or 4.5%, as compared to the Fiscal Year 2013 Enterprise Fund Budget.
The following is a discussion of several highlights in each component.

The General Fund Budget supports the operations of all Town departments as well as fixed costs such as non-
Enterprise Fund Debt Service, Employee Benefits and Insurance, and the Town's contribution to the School
Department. The total appropriation required to support Town departments, excluding schools, and shared
expenses such as employee benefits and the Town’s contribution to the Retirement System , is approximately
$11.96 million for Fiscal Year 2014, down $420,088 from Fiscal Year 2013. This includes projected salary step
increases within existing collective bargaining agreements and an assumption of a 2% cost of living increase for
non-contract employees. General Fund Debt Service included in the Fiscal Year 2014 budget totals $5.3 million.
Approximately $3.1 million of this line item represents principal and interest payments outstanding on debt
exclusions for the connection to the Lynn sewer system, agreed to nearly two decades ago, and the new high
school. Increases in the Town's contribution to the Town's Retirement System will exceed $141,000. State
Assessments, or charges, are projected to increase by approximately $3,453 in Fiscal Year 2014 primarily as a
result of a reduction in the number of students attending the local charter school. In addition, Iam
recommending a $100,000 appropriation be made to the Town's stabilization funds in Fiscal Year 2014.

Funding for Education, which includes the Town's contribution to the School Department and the North Shore
Regional Vocational School Assessment, is anticipated to be $24,868,620 for Fiscal Year 2014. Included in this line
item is a projected increase of $135,000 for the Swampscott School Department. The vocational school
appropriation is projected to increase for the third year in row.



TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2013

The Enterprise Fund Budget for Fiscal Year 2014 totals $6.1 million, representing a 4.5% increase over Fiscal Year
2013. Approximately $3.7 million, or 63% of total expenditures, will be funded through water user charges and
$2.4 million, or 37%, funded through sewer user charges. Reserves established in these funds resulting from
efficiencies implemented during the past several years will continue to be used to help mitigate rate increases due
to the increase in requested appropriations.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town's finances for all those with an
interest in its finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional financial information should be addressed to the Town Accountant, Administrative Offices, 22
Monument Avenue, Swampscott, Massachusetts 01907.
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TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2013
Primary Government
Governmental Business-type
ASSETS Activities Activities Tatal
Current assets:
Cash.and cash eqUIVAIENIS. ... .vvsuresorciri i orecss i re g niir s st eemnmsvraressiser 7479895 § 2,130,341 9,610,236
Restricted cash-and cash equivalents.........covnininiiion e reesr i s 5,730,460 350,674 6,081,134
Receivables, niet of allowance for uncollectible amounts:
Redl estate and personal Property tXes. . oviveerieroreresvesscoreasesssrerssssrnens 868,778 » 868,778
F'ax HeMS. o i v vecvins wnvsemegor e e cnsosone 993,758 96,438 1,090,196
Metor vehicle and other excise taxes. . 124,542 - 124,542
Water,..ouio Fe i e B - 908,796 908,796
- 744,961 744,961
Departmental and Oher.......c.oi e are e e snte s 102,152 - 102,152
InHETZOVRIIINEIIAL - 1o v v s et s sem et e e 268,278 93,567 361,845
Total CUITEEASSEES. . 1uvvrvcinsveern cirmae gy s ebassire sy bn v st e s b 15,567,863 4,324,777 19,892,640
Nongurrent assets:
Capital assets not being depreciated. ..........ccoeeriirrmrie e 9,431,761 252,182 9,683,943
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation...c...c.ovcrcue cinnnsevnnesuesesneeens 65,636,453 19,097,388 84,733,841
Total nongurrent assets.............. he A Lo s L 28 428 S g g2 Y 75,068,214 19,349,570 94,417,784
TOAL ASSES. 01t vterereris e e s ens s e aessne e sescent s asnssn s s nes 90,636,077 23,674,347 114,310,424
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
WArTants PAYADIE, ......upieriie i ssicis ieenines st e esase sossmneasses s cnssnsssnssensessnenn 1,196,567 238,317 1,434,884
Accrued payroll........coocoiinnes e e e £ e e e £t e b e e 60,671 4,232 64,903
Tax refunds payable 457,074 = 457,074
Other liabilities....... . 273,057 * 273,057
ACCIIEd THEETESE. 11 chn et e e e b e ensemeesme e e ane s 335,657 16,584 352,241
Capital lease 0blZatoNS. . c.c,riicrewivorerereoimcinsiseneesaneeessasnmmsssnmeessosnresesas 31,485 - 31,485
Workers' cOMPENSAtON CLAMS, .o vuvivtarin s s rsirieeassnirreassanerarionenmssnsrersaesss 153,919 - 153,919
Compensated absences..,.....o.oeoni 190,261 556 190,817
Long-term bonds and notes payable..........coovevernrionieeamiine s e 3,651,927 1,463,874 3,115,801
Total CUrTent HabITES, i iu it isimrrmrnermssnmesns mesnmssonmsss sesanssensesscsnsosen 6,350,618 1,723,563 8,074,181
Noncurrent liabilities:
Capital lease obligations..........covviivi i i, R 143,013 - 143,013
Workers' compensation claims. ... 1,385,269 - 1,385,269
Compensated absences......iv... . 1,712,348 5,006 1,717,354
Net OPEB oblGation:. .. iui ww it tiresiue i vums diass i a6 52500 i s st smme s s sres areses roan 15,288,745 343,351 15,632,096
Long-term bonds.and notes payable. ..cciiiiiiiiinivn e e i 33,778,998 2,589,648 36,368,646
Total moncurtent Habilities. ... ovvvvei e e visie s s v 55 52,308,373 2,938,005 55,246,378
Total BabiliHes: oo vv i vt i smsernnsrssesses s csmnssnsmsnens 58,658,991 4,661,568 63,320,559
NET POSITION
Net investrent in CApItal 85515 1. ciuu it i iimninsreees s saenensnsrnners srassnss svossneesee 40,146,798 15,646,721 55,793,519
Restricted for:
Permanent funds:
BExpendable......ooiiniiniiiii e e Ereve e v e aies 182,804 = 182,804
Nonexpendable - 427,652 - 427,652
Othet SPecific PUPBOSES. 1140 iii 0 itheireerr s rms e s e sernersvressasesmnns vasssvssnncons 2,832,264 = 2,832,264
URP@SHICIOA vt iws 558 0 i e 5 200w i Bt S s e 45 Fo % bbb b 2 5 e frerren (11,612,432} 3,366,058 (8,246,374)
T Ol 1Ot POSTHOMN  un sttty e nsccaee s eneeennnenn e sensrvs ceemmssss casnntran sen e s ereenes 31,977,086 % 19,012,779 50,989,865




TOWN OQF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 20,2013

Program Revenues

Operating Capital Net
Charges for Grarits and Grants and (Expense)/
Functions/ Programs Expenses Serviess Contributions Contributions Revenue
Primary govemment:
Governmental achvifies:
General GOVBITIIENE. «vvvve v sinareovvn ir v st s o i s rvmnnears 9 2,611,724 % 223,701 & 70,734 3 = % (2,307.289)
Fublic safety... 11,857,484 942,751 9,736 £ {10,904,997)
Education.... o 40,853,277 1,876,863 10,232,227 * (28,844,187)
Public WorkS.. oo s i v ra s b B e naa e 2197423 128,829 1,661 B8(,173 {1,386,750)
Health and human services: 1,747,413 83,434 67,941 - {1,596,038)
Cidture and recreation. ... 1,264,276 229 888 22,349 - {1,012,039)
Dhelbt service ~interest. .. 1,081,052 - 296,000 = (785,052)
Total governmental ACHVIHES. ....vr v oo s 61,712,649 3,495,466 1,700,648 680,173 (46,836,362)
Business-type activities:
R bk o e a0 b i b 0 d 5y i 8 0 b9t e 2,747,393 3,481,314 1,260 # TERIEL
GO gy s gt s sy mi st W SRS o i R RS e 2,563,441 2,501,843 56,605 “ {4,953}
Total business-type activilies. . ..o i b . 5,310,834 5,983,157 57.865 “ T30 188
Total Primiary BOVERITIEI. i sia o ibonimas as b satins ssie sinien iencuss % 67023483 % 9478623 & 10,758,513 % 680,173 & 546;1%1?4%
{pantinued)

The accompanying riotes are an integral part of the financial statements;
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TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (Continited)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

BSSR——— S

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Changes in net position:
Net (expense)/revenue (from previous Page).........ccorccrenrirmnans % (46,836,362) % 730,188 %  (46106,174)
General revenues:

Real estate and personal property taxes...........ccccevniiciciicinns 42,868,219 « 42,868,219
Motor vehicle and other exciSe taxes. ....vvvvireer e renciennnnnns 2,052,748 - 2,052,748
Penalties and interest 0N BAXES. ... ..vevvurreerereerererconnseesarnnans 206,033 - 206,033
Payments in lieu 0f tBXES...c.ovvvinniinriiiniensiiiiiir e 8,075 - 8,075

Grants and contributions not restricted to
SPECIIC PTOGTAMS. ..ot iriniirianvrersosnbos s v e vs crisns 63 Spvsssis i 1,118,659 - 1,118,659
Unirestricted mvestment iNCOMIE. .....ocovvvvvinirerssirsrvrenrisenians 30,065 “ 30,065
Contributions to permanent funds............cooviiiniiinne 9,450 - 9,450
L8 2 1T S TP 280,988 “ 280,988
TPANSIETS, EL <o iiie s v s crnes e vtsmas e ns s ens ss s kbt e s nn s ar e {423,103) 423,103 “
Total general revenues and transfers... v mms i b e 46,151,134 423,103 46,574,237
Change I Net POSHION. ... vt vsri v snsariosmn s e es v o in s sismininsensines (685,228) 1,153,291 468,063
Net position - beginning of Year. .. o it vt ioiisinins bsee 32,662,314 17,859,488 50,521,802
Net position - end 6EYear.....c.oooiviiiiinirerieieieieonneereeanagrassreeors % 31,977,086 & 19,012,779 % 50,989,865
{concluded)

Primary Government




TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCESHEET
JTUNE 30,2013
Nonmajor Total
Governmental Governmertal
ASSETS _ General Capital Articles Funds Funds
Cashand cash equivalents........c.ocooriviiiiiiieiieciiie e ernanas $ 7479895 $ = 8 - § 7,479,895
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounis:
868,778 - . 868,778
‘o 993,758 E - 993,758

Motor vehicle and other eXCISE XE8u...... s i ieimrsins iomsrevevvessee cneanns 124,542 - - 124,542

Departmental and OthET. . .oiw oo ivirinire con o oviminsn o nmvese osirseisson s 44,930 = 57,222 102,152

IntergOVEITIMIENtal. ... ..vivairiioriianconnrirassn e et < esin eraee cn s 53,752 - 214,526 268,278
Restricted assets:

Cashiand cash equivalents,.........c..oocoeveiirersiiver s e nee s e - 2;410,842 3,319,618 3,730,460
TOTAL ASSETS. . o1 ivvivintimieiin i ciinis v e neenie e sens o assia s s i $ 9,565,655 % 2410842 % 3,591,366 % 15,567,863
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES:

Warrants PAYADLE. .. ..coiiiiirioe i e & 883,710 $ 162,883 % 149974 $ 1,196,567

Accrued PAYTOLL. .. uvrirries i 58,001 - 2,670 60,671

Tax refunds Payable.. .o vieas s anses 457,074 . - 457,074

Other liabilities.....,, . 273,057 # - 273,057

Deferred revenue. .. e pe £y R e i v s o rn s 1,852,052 - 57,222 1,909,274
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ... vvvs e vevereenrsonrnransrs s bt aaera s neat e sk ame s sV 3,523,894 162,883 209,866 3,896,643
FUND BALANCES:

Nonspendable:.........oovnn Sineemmeeees e tet e et et s et eae s « - 427,652 427,652

Restricted. . iu. uv o cviiipinin s - 2,247,959 3,039,546 5,287,505

Committed........, 860,209 - - 660,209

Assigned. ..o, Lot s o oK o e e b e s 56 p s b 1,162,970 - - 1,162,970

Unassigned............. R et e e e e e r e s 4,018,582 - (85,698) 3,932,884
TOTAL FUND BALANCES. ......uoectiierimrsieerinresssisersnenstsmmnanssrssnsens 6,041,761 2,247,959 3,381,500 11,671,220
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES. ... oveccurinsnsionnerosarenisnsses $ 9,565,655 § 2,410,842 & 3,591,366 % 15,567,863

E— e —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACIIUSETTS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Nonmajor Total
Governmental Governmental
General Capital Articles Funds Funids
REVENUES
Real estate and personal property axes::....c..covervireiicever oo 42,652,643 $ - % = & 42,652,643
Motor vehicle and other excise TaxeS. ..o ereorvs cnmenieeanecs srnees 2,052,796 - - 2,052,796
TaX JHEIIS. « o v veises v e e es s ns v m s b e e b 99,703 e - 99,703
Payments i Hew of taXe8.., .o voviarvrr onnnie e crnssmcsne s e 8,075 - - 8,075
Charges fOr SRIVICES. oo ren v ior v s e s s st . W 1,270,706 1,270,706
Intergovernmental ... ..o i s e 9,028,767 - 2,735,007 11,763,774
Penalties and Interest OM f8XE5. ... ..rueesssns s enr-bians s s smmsirssisns 206,033 = - 206,033
Licenses and permits,. ..., 260,969 = = 260,969
Fines and forfeitures 73,955 A - 73,955
Departmental and other 1,302,050 - 986,718 2,288,768
CONETTBUEIOTIS . v voisis s s sin ey st s gy e g st e s sbae e & 257,624 257,624
IS TIEI L ITVCOMIE. 14 e s er e crerenmtmn s fenr e eas s esen s inn e et oo s 34,624 - 2,159 36,783
TOTAL REVENUES oy s et 55,719,615 = 5,252,214 60,971,829
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General GQOVEITUIENE, .. ... ivvinrriie roie e irnomns e vranssnssrasn s 1,831,003 57,165 95,649 1,983,817
Publicsafety ... .o i miiior s s s cansrs s e e e s 6,782,853 3,784,213 475,154 11,042,220
FRUCAtON  vs i eneces i cnns s ree 6 os s st saw s mnesre s reensnnnsearensronn 24,323,161 139,354 3,402,701 27,865,216
PUBIECWOIKS. . o2 oeeye e oer nrossnnnnenrnss s e pre ssomrsmecne s s snnnss 1,082,130 929,323 754,978 2,746,431
Health and Rutmian SOTVICES. oo s nrns e ercaesmtsnnnensis 1,192,449 - 79.888 1,272,337
Culture.and 1eCrEAtON. . ... vreeriresenerrcrinesresermasernnamares 645,262 * 246,911 892,173
Pension benefits. ... 8,710,246 - e 8,710,246
Employee benefits.......coooeeinns 5,217,563 e - 5,217,563
Property and Hability insufance. .......ocooovieees s 500,428 - - 500,428
State and cOULY CHATERS. ... oeeveiiniervssrmscrme i e s rsin s arenesenins 646,881 “ « 646,881
Debt service:
Principal 3,317,147 - 3,880,000 7197147
TEURETEBY sy s m om0 o sy 1228 0l 1,089,431 - 77,761 1,167,192
TOTAL EXPENDITURES. ... o coviesgren s s sssiass oo on 55,338,554 4,910,055 8,993,042 69,241,651
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES. /.y vt e st vd s ibnsie i en e e rprssoare can 381,061 (4,910,055) (3,740,828} (8,269,822)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
K Y1 72 o o N D S P OU O PRPEEUU R S oo 802,000 = 97 802,097
Proceeds of bonds and noles. ..o oo iiw e oo - 4,736,000 273,400 5009400
Premium from issuance of borids and notes 95,284 - = 95,284
Proceeds of refunding bonds........co.iviviiciiiinini oo, - - 3,790,000 3,790,000
Premium from issuance of refunding bonds....coooo i = = 200,716 200,716
TratisFers QUL Lo iiivn i e 7 Ea ek ks mms e e e re s e s {1,225,200) = = (1,225,200)
TOTALOTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)....co. (327,916) 4,736,000 4,264,213 8,672,297
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES. oo 53,145 {174,055) 523,385 402,475
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.....coviiiisinnaniid 5,988,616 2422014 2,858,115 11,268,745
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR.. ..ot v v cin s 6,041,761 % 2247959 % 3,381,500 % 11,671,220

Thie accompanying notes are.an integral part of the financial statéments.
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TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TOTAL FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2013

Total governmental fund balances (PAZe T8 it ittt et e s e e e

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) used in governumental activities are not
financial resources.and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds: .o oo i

Othier assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and,
therefore, are deferred in the governmental funds........covenvminnciaresirmnens L b RS

In the statement of net position, interest is accrued on cutstanding long-term debt,
whereas in the governmental funds interest is not reported until due......c.coooccccarirninirimnnririnen.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds:
Bonds and Notes PAYADIE. .. oiiviii sttty b e a g e
Capital lease ObHGAtIONS. ...u.iivviire e e e
Workers' compensation ClalIS. . .co.ioeivoriiiie i i et e e n e e e
ComMPensated ABSEIICES. . .. vuri ettt st et e e s e ae ettt
Net OPEB OBHZATION. ... iiveiiiiiitia i s faeiinns s ae s e e an s s sttt a et et s acnnessaean

Net position of governmental achivities (PABe T5).....ccoiiuiiiiiin i ciiains it s vencns vssesass s s enan s e censrssass

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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11,671,220

75,068,214

1,509,274

(335,657)

(37,430,925)
(174,498)
(1,539,188)
(1,902,609)

(15,288,745)

31,977,086



TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS
RECONCILIATION OF THESTATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FORTHE E&AL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 19)....covii i i $ 402,475

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as.depreciation expense. These amounts represent the related activity

of the current period,
Capital OUHAYS. .. vvvve e nivinn it v e e R 88 RN £ 5,155,996
DIEPEOCIATION  « .1ttt sn s s et e et ec e s s s e e b e e £ s et e e i i S et (2,303,089)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are fully deferred in the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances. Therefore, the recognition of revenue for various types of accounts receivable
(i.e., real estate and personal property, motor vehicle excise, ete)) differ between the
two statements. This amount represents the net change in deferred revenue........ococioieeeinnennes 182,698

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds and leases) provides eurrent financial resources
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes
the financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any
impact on net position, Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts
are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. These amounts represent the
related activity of the current period.

BONE PEOCREAS oL ivriuumim s s oot a i xnnsdhaahanss Vas s £ o550 b b b i e (5,009,400)
Proceeds of refunding bonds......... emmrAs S e £Eennmrn At SR f oA s e eve a8 at 5 % b 8 n R £ 3 8t n g (3,790,000)
BT mATUTTEEE. Lot tarns e iovmn e i a e rn ek b b KRk i S R 7,197,147
Capital 1ease ODHZAHONS. .. xvismninrromrummaiorns ireer ssirs o sn e sinss d2 nascias 4 505 o0 wn 50 530 d Fordss Ve 26,943

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on-outstanding long-term debt,
whereas in the governmental funds interest is not reported until due. This amount
represents the net change in accrued interest payable ..o 8,376

Some expenses reported in the statement activitics do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reporied in the governmental funds.
These amounts represent the net changes:

WOTKErs' COMPENSATION. civniinn et ene et ainreticmrs s es st s ot oo smmn s mn o o e oot e st g n g6 44,557

Compensated absences.......... fengniyaiintiknting : : (127,758}

INet OPEB OBHEALON. .. oveve e cinnnncsoras i arcn casns s seae e ian et 5 s b v es et it sor s semnn s rsnsn (2,476,172}
Changes in net position of governmental activities (Page 17). ..o iiiciins st e srr s nan s $ (685,228}

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FUND NET POSITION
- JUNE 30, 2013
Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds
ASSETS Water Sewer Total
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalens. ... ..o i s rsas s ssae e i evien 1,464,510 % 665831 &% 2,130,341
Restricted cash and cash equivalents ..o oo e rnrns 156,105 194,569 350,674
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:
TWATEI et vt s e a s s e s b s e e e s 908,796 - 908,796
OWEL & i o0 o3k b ba g K HF 00T 04 h o b T e e 8044 0 bt w555 BT 1 b 7 - 744,961 744,961
TTHIEY HOIIS. o cie v sieviavensmevs saims ios s ebivas v e e siva o sn b0 65 n a0« s hina oo s 66,323 30,115 96,438
INtergoverTIENEAL .. ..uireeiisscriin e e s r s s aa e s b s n e - 93,567 93,567
Total current assets: . s i i sl 2,505,734 1,729,043 4,324 777
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets not being depreciated. ... 2,542 249,640 252,182
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation.......ccocivei i, 5,860,320 13,237,068 19,097,388
Total NOTNCULTEIIE ASSOES. .veiinireanron vram e vnsrs eaen e neenidh s s s s s b s 5,862,862 13,486,708 19,349,570
Total assets...... SR e e e b b bR e o PR ERLS CE A SRS 8,458,596 15,215,751 23,674,347
LYABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Warrants Payabli. . oiim viieds iibiihosi v s s rs ke s b i a4 e 843 237 474 238,317
Acarted PAYTOLli.. vt e s e e s e 2,033 2,199 4,232
FaTam D 1=s Bt a1 1=y 4=t RO T OO U AT 4,454 12,130 16,584
Compensated ADSEMCES. ..uu.iuiivciriiim e e e sean 556 . 556
Long-term bonds and notes payable.. .o ciii i e s 710,657 763,217 1,463,874
Total ctrent Habilites .. oo i it s i ki s s 718,543 1,005,020 1,723,563
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated aDBENCET. ... ..uuro it iiicaiae e s e oo sa s eas s s nnis 5,006 - 5,006
Net OPEB ObHZaHOM: wwv v arssiviimarrivs et suveins £ vvma i e wine v stasasnee ivrannevins 178,465 164,886 343,351
Long-term bonds and riotes payable.. ... i o ceineniniireco e 1,849,839 739,809 2,589,648
Total noncurrertt HBabiies. ..., s rvs s cone s srvmsvosionisoncisoniv i i 2,033,310 904,695 2,938,005
Total Habilites: i i i i v s ses e e S 2,751,853 1,909,715 4,661,568
FUND NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assels. o i 3,458,471 12,188,251 15,646,721
UnrestrictRq i vioii s iims s oh e s ois s aie sin unn 2,248,272 1,117,785 3,366,058

Total et POSHION. v aruir vrriciimi veddinh i 3 55000 e T i 60wt dr i v Coanems AL

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

T SR s

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer Total
OPFRATING REVENUES
Charges fOF SEIVICES, . vi v rrririmiisis sresineveiis e assvase s s s sbbs s S rmnrinions % 3428391 & 2465734 % 5,894,125
Penaltios And IEIeST. . v i irrn s ve s nenesa s fonsns sonnt o sad e 52,923 36,109 89,032
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES. ... covvienivensrr s sresrieiasarineeasans 3,481,314 2,501,843 5,983,157
OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of service and adminiStration.. ... oovreririrrrrcoscimnnnns e s cimsminies 826,941 867,140 1,694,081
IVIWR A B8SOSSTTIOTIE .« evevssterser s srssssssaesscnrenea st amenaeessretnsnsesonnsan 1,666,495 - 1,666,495
LyNn asseSSMERT. ....oovviirii ittt ioe e e s e e - 1,094,138 1,094,138
DePTeCiation. ..ot it e e s e 231,767 542,562 774,329
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES. ... cccvvivsrsnesomnssnn s nsnsnsnesosscncns 2,725,203 2,503,840 5,229,043
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS).. o1 v sr i immmsins o s s pnsiiningonn et es seios 756,111 (1,997) 754,114
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Intergovernmental..........coooiiiii i s e e = 55,792 55,792
INVESHNENE INCOMI. ... ia s cusnas o n s s g s ne wrsasn s o s o oo 5 g womins 1,260 813 2,073
INETEST @XPOIIB oo vmr v on v e ssmsns oo s fmema g s f o s e b e s w0 {22,190) {59,601) {81,791
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES), NET.......... {20,930) {2,996) (23,926)
INCOME BEFORE TRANSEERS......cveiiiiiiirrinncinriennsssvarecseeann 735,181 (4,993) 730,188
TRANSFERS
[ VT s - | P TP * 1,225,103 1,225,103
TrANSEETS OUE. ..ottt (401,000) {401,000) {802,000y
TOTAL TRANSEERS. . i1 i cvsus i stie ikt vemns s snnenvsnssser se e cmensanmiassnonns (401,000) 824,103 423,103
CHANGE IN FUND NET POSITION ..cciviieseivis daiinin e o mmmniiiiininns evssias o 334,181 819,110 1,153,291
FUND NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR. .. covcvinvovene i st arinin 5,372,562 12,486,926 17,859,488
FUND NETPOSITION ATEND OF YEAR  ..c.vvvir i ivis cviviiisnnnvs ot oinins $ 5,706,743 & 13,306,036 § 19,012,779

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from CuStOmMers and WSETS. ... .uuu i vieevvrns fus oo v sossne rasis s i s o snsns s

Paymerits 10 vendors: wiiimd i

Paymenits to employees..

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES - ot s eviinsnsinsanss

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

TTANSERIB M.t vere s e o s ca st rmt s ars s e e b b s s et e ey e

Transfers out

Interest expense. , ... v r..vi 53 £aeed SE R e dn R e R €y m b F ¢ o g n e

NET CASH FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES.......cvcn-..

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

TIVESTMETIE ITUCOTIIE, (1 1y trie b e em e s e s et s en e e e e saeen e s s me st s e s magnmaer e s ommp e e ers o

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND . CASH EQUIVALENTS oiiiitiiniibin i il i s

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
(Includes $155,910 and $198,424 reported-as restricted in the

Water Enterprise Fund and Sewer Enterprise Fund, respectively).....iv.orvieeiirwsirinrvinoens

CASH AND:CASH FQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
(Includes $156,105 and $194,569 reported as restricted in the

Water Enterprise Fund.and Sewer Enterprise Fund, respectively).........occoiiinnerinarennnni

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating inCormie (J088) ... iiuis s i i i v i en i s e b s st g i i

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash from operating activities:
Changes in assets and liabilities not requiring current cash flows:

DePreCiation ... vt vrti st vt rbne s st Ss cvbedahede e s S P R e

Net OPEB obligation
Effect of changes in operating assets and labilities:

W AECT USET CRAFERS ... 1o vvvenes s vveciad v s di o d e e s b S5 e
SEWET USEI CRATEES .. e vv e iv vt ansvnie e v s s e ae e a e d i e s i

Intergovernmental accourits receivable..

WArTants Payable: . i i i it i i e e e cescenesenesene s s re s reaene e e
Acerted payroll.. it R S e o
Acerued compensated aDSERCES. .v.uuws. v iviiiiin it i e i

Total adJustments. ..o vivii s s i et it e e nonns e e s e reen

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES. v ivvis cninn v comnis s e e oo st

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Intergovernmental debt subsidies (MWPATY. .« oo ivensiinii i vivncss i ivrssie e s e ans

Theaccompanying notes atre an integral part of the financial statements.
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Business-Type: Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer Total
3,487,018 § 2,651,954 & 6,138,972
(2,086,072) (1,407,854} (3,493,926)
(378,098) (279,250) (657,348)
1,022,848 964,850 1,987,698
- 1,225,103 1,225,103
(401,000) (401,000) (802,000}
(401,000) 824,103 423,103
60,000 60,000 120,000
(59,250} (57,975) (117,225)
(992,433) {1,462,845) (2,456,278)
(24,068) (37,567) (61,635)
(1,016,751) (1,498,387) (2,515,138)
1,260 813 2,073
(393,643} 291,379 (102,264)
2,014,258 569,021 2,583,279
1,620,615 $ 860,400 § 2,481,015
756,111 § (1,997) § 754,114
231,767 542, 562 774,329
35,972 44,915 80,887
2,799 (606) 2,193
2,905 - 2,905
- (14,008) {14,008)
- 164,725 164,725
(8,079) 229,193 221,114
(276) 66 {210
1,649 5 1,649
266,737 966,847 1,233,584
1,022,848 % 964,850 % 1,987,698
= 220,517 -§ 220,517




TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 201
b S S S A e S R
Pension Private
Trust Fund Purpose Agency
ASBSBETS (Asof12/31/12) Trust Funds Funds
Cash and cash equivalents. ... oot vveieiiiorn it s e e $ 495,275 $ 296,249 % 194,827
I @S IINOTIES oyt in chim e et end oy vc ot odiedin s s i e e ms a s o s mmest e oe e s e 33,481,827 - -
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:
L0 11 ¢ 1= S OO 104,154 - -
L T T 34,081,256 296,249 194,827
LIABILITIES
Warrants payable, ... cnmin i 193,650 16,950 1,963
Liabilities due depositors... ...........ooviieirnis i vornrieresaesenniris - - 192,864
TOtAl HaDIIHES. ... .o ey vir e e vcon vren s e cecnemses e e st nme s s es s i 193,650 16,950 194,827
NET POSITION
Held in trust for pension benefits and other purposes......c......... $ 33,887,606 % 279299 % -

The accompanying notes are'an integral part of the financial statements.
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TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Pension Private
Trust Fund Purpose
{Asof12/31/12) Trust Funds
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
504y o oS OO S PSUUUD R % 4,038,896 % “
PR IVOIIDETS. .. yvesnevrneryinsss s nin s cossnmaes saababsonnsnsaiinnnotsnsesoniss s 1,062,848 -
Transfers from Oher SYSIEIMS. .. ....vve it iirirenes o e nri s e s e rricn 332,854 -
Private donatlons. .o v oo vossnons sessissm s smsasbin s s nshasin s - 2,729
Total CONBIIBUHONS. .. v s mscens vt s mmsi s mb s e msmnt simm mos it b e s bt e 5,434,578 2,729

Net investment income:

Net appreciation/ (depreciation) in fair value of investments............ 3,149,381 -
T2 Loy B B T T St SN 1,055,500 414
Total investment income (1088).....vvieinieniiiiiiiii i iaes 4,204,881 414
Less investment eXpense... ...t s na e (230,783) -
Net investment income (1088} ...oiioioriiinirin s rimmrccorrnerneeees 3,974,098 414
Intergovernmental............cooovviiiiiiiiniin i 111,287 =
TOTAL ADDITIONS. ....ooniiiiiiin it nrenn e enaie s 9,519,963 3,143
DEDUCTIONS
¥yt Tiabicinvz1n s 1 ORI 145,994 -
Retirement benefits and 1efunids. .. oov oot s e o s esemr e e e 4,571,277 &
Transfers to Other SYSIeMS. ... iuiiiiii it e i s cann e eeaaes 560,662 -
Scholarships awarded.......o.iiiiiini i i s - 35,600
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS. et emn e 5,278,133 35,600
CHANGE IN NET POSITION. .. c.ovviieiiiiiiiiininien e aereees 4,241,830 (32,457)
NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR ....c0ovemsmssmnmonsnnssnns sessmseess 29,645,776 311,756
NET POSITION ATEND OF YEAR...cccoviiiiiiiiiiiiiciiniiinaein e cinaaannan $ 33,887,606 % 279,299

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. General

The basic financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant
accounting policies are described herein.

B. Reporting Entity

The Town of Swampscott, Massachusetts (Town) is a municipal corporation that is governed by an elected Board
of Selectmen.

For financial reporting purposes, the basic financial statements include all funds, organizations, agencies, boards,
commissions and institutions that are not legally separate from the Town.

The Town has also considered all potential component units for which it is financially accountable as well as
other organizations for which the nature and/or significance of their relationship with the Town are such that
exclusion would cause the Town’s basic financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

The Town has included the Swampscott Contributory Retirement System as a component unit (fiduciary fund) in
the reporting entity because of the significance of its operational and financial relationship with the Town.
Fiduciary fund component units are entities that are legally separate from the Town, but are so related that they
are, in substance, the same as the Town or entities providing services entirely or almost entirely for the benefit of
the Town.

Fiduciary Fund Component Unit

The Swampscott Contributory Retirement System (System) was established to provide retirement benefits to
Town employees, the Swampscott Housing Authority employees, and their beneficiaries. The System is
governed by a five-member board comprised of the Town Accountant (ex-officio), two members elected by the
System'’s participants, one member appointed by the Board of Selectmen and one member appointed by the
Retirement Board’s members. The System is presented using the accrual basis of accounting and is reported as a
pension trust fund in the fiduciary funds financial statements.

The System does not issue a separate audited financial statement. The System issues a publicly available
unaudited financial report in accordance with guidelines established by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts’
(Commonwealth) Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission (PERAC). That report may be
obtained by contacting the System located at 22 Monument Avenue, Swampscott, Massachusetts 01907.

Joint Venture

A joint venture is an organization (resulting from a contractual arrangement) that is owned, operated or governed
by two or more participants as a separate and specific activity subject to joint control in which the participants
retain an ongoing financial interest or ongoing financial responsibility. Joint control means that no single
participant has the ability to unilaterally control the financial or operating policies of the joint venture.

The Town participates in one joint venture with other municipalities to pool resources and share the costs, risks

and rewards of providing goods and services to venture participants directly, or for the benefit of the general
public or specified recipients. The following identifies the Town's joint venture and related information:

B-29



TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013

North Shore Technical School

The North Shore Technical School is governed by a sixteen member school district committee consisting of one
elected representative of the Town. The Town is indirectly liable for the North Shore Technical School debt and
expenditures and is assessed annually for its share of operating and capital costs. For the fiscal year ended June
30, 2013, the Town's assessment totaled approximately $357,000. Separate financial statements may be obtained

by writing to the Treasurer of the North Shore Technical School at 30 Log Bridge Road, Middleton, Massachusetts
01949,

C. Implementation of New Accounting Principles
For the year ending June 30, 2013, the Town implemented the following pronouncements issued by the GASB:
s  GASB Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements

¢  GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus —an amendment of GASB Statements
No. 14 and No. 34

» GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-
November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements

o GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position

GASB Statement No. 63 identifies net position as the residual of all other elements presented in a statement of
financial position, which amends the net asset reporting requirements of Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements — and Management's Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments, and other
pronouncements, by renaming net assets to net position and defining net position to incorporate the effects of
deferred inflows and outflows.

The implementation of GASB Statement No.’s 60, 61 and 62 had no reporting impact for the Town.

D. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report
information on all non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. Governmental
activities, which are primarily supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
bustness-type activities, which are primarily supported by user fees.

Pund Financial Statements

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial

statements. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and displayed in a single column.

Fiduciary funds arve reported by fund type.
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TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013

E. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statementds

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when the liabilities are incurred. Real estate and personal property taxes are recognized as revenues in the fiscal
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a function or segment are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Program revenues include the following:

» Charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment.

Grants and contributions which are restricted to meeting the operational requirements of a specific
function or segment.

"]

¥ Grants and contributions which are restricted to meeting the capital requirements of a specific function or
segment.

Taxes and other items not identifiable as program revenues are reported as general revenues.
Except for charges between the general fund and enterprise funds, the effect of interfund activity has been
eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct

costs and program revenues reported for the functions affected.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental funds financial statements are reported using the flow of current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., measurable and available). Measurable means the amount of the
transaction can be determined and available means collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due, and certain
compensated absences, claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations are expected to be
liquidated with current expendable available resources.

Real estate and personal property tax revenues are considered available if they are collected within 60-days after
the end of the fiscal year. Investment income is susceptible to accrual. Other receipts and tax revenues become

measurable and available when the cash is received and are recognized as revenue at that time.

Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria
is met. Expenditure driven grants recognize revenue when the qualifying expenditures are incurred and all other
grant requirements are met.

The following major governmental funds are reported:

The general fund is used to account for and report all financial resources not accounted for and reported in another
fund.,
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TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013

The capital articles fund is a capital projects fund used to accumulate financial resources for various bonded
construction projects.

The nonmajor governmental funds consist of other special revenue, capital projects and permanent funds that are
aggregated and presented in the nonmajor governmental funds column on the governmental funds financial
statements. The following describes the general use of these fund types:

Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted
or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects.

Capital profects funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, committed, or
assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other
capital assets. Capital projects funds exclude those types of capital-related outflows financed by proprietary
funds or for assets that will be held in trust for individuals, private organizations, or other governments.

Permanent funds are used to account for and report resources that are restricted to the extent that only earnings,
and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the government’s programs and benefit the government
orits citizenry. Expendable permanent funds represent the earnings that can be spent. Nonexpendable
permanent fund represent the principal that cannot be spent.

Proprietary funds financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when the liabilities are incurred.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with
the proprietary funds principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

The following major proprietary funds are reported:

The water enterprise fund is used to account for the Town'’s water activities.

The sewer enterprise fund is used to account for the Town’s sewer activities.

Fiduciary funds financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
use the accrual basis of accounting. Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee capacity for
others that cannot be used to support the government’s programs.

The following fiduciary fund types are reported:

The pension trust fund is used to account for the activities of the System, which accumulates resources to provide
pension benefits to eligible retirees and their beneficiaries.

The private-purpose trust fund is used to account for trust arrangements, other than those properly reported in the
permanent fund, under which principal and investment income exclusively benefits individuals, private
organizations, or other governments,

The agency fund is used to account for assets held in a custodial capacity. Such assets consist of student activity
funds and performance bonds. Agency funds do not present the results of operations or have a measurement
focus.
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TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013

E. Deposits and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with
an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments are cartied at fair value. Fair value is based on quotations from a national securities exchange except
for pooled funds, alternative investments and real estate, for which fair value is determined as follows:

Pooled Funds
The fair value of shares in managed investment pools is based on unit value reported by the funds.

Alternative Investiments

Alternative investments are recorded at fair value as determined in good faith by the general partners of the
venture capital firms after consideration of pertinent information, including current financial position and
operating results, price-earnings multiples and available market prices of similar companies’ securities, the nature
of securities, marketability, restrictions on disposition and other appropriation and do not necessarily represent
amounts which might ultimately be realized, since such amounts depend on future circumstances and cannot
reasonably be determined until individual securities are liquidated.

Real Fstate

The fair value of real estate funds is based on independent third-party appraisals. The investment managers of
the funds are responsible for the reported value of those investments. However, the structure, risk profile, return
potential and marketability of those investments differ from traditional equity and fixed income investments.
Determination of the value of these investments involves subjective judgment because the actual market value
can be determined only by negotiation between the parties to a sales transaction. As a result, the estimated values
may differ significantly from the values that would have been used had a ready market for the real estate existed,
and the differences could be material.

F.  Accounts Receivable

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The recognition of revenue related to accounts receivable reported in the government-wide and proprietary funds
financial statements are reported under the accrual basis of accounting. The recognition of revenue related to
accounts receivable reported in the governmental funds financial statements are reported under the modified
accrual basis of accounting,.

Real Estate Taxes, Personal Property Taxes and Tax Liens

Real estate and personal property taxes are levied and based on values assessed on January 15t of every year.
Assessed values are established by the Board of Assessor’s for 100% of the estimated fair market value. Taxes are
due on August 15, November 15¢, February 15t and May 1% and are subject to penalties and interest if they are not
paid by the respective due date.

Real estate tax liens are processed during the fourth quarter of every year on delinquent properties and are
recorded as receivables in the fiscal year they are processed.
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TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
TUNE 30, 2013

Motor Vehicle Excise Taxes

Motor vehicle excise taxes are assessed annually for each vehicle registered in the Town and are recorded as
receivables in the fiscal year of the levy. The Commonwealth is responsible for reporting the number of vehicles
registered and the fair values of those vehicles to the Town. The tax calculation is the fair value of the vehicle
multiplied by $25 per $1,000 of value.

Water and Sewer
User fees are levied quarterly based on individual meter readings and are subject to penalties and interest if they
are not paid by the respective due date. Water and sewer liens are processed in December of every year and are

included as a lien on the property owner’s tax bill. Water and sewer charges are recorded as receivables in the
fiscal year of the levy.

Intergovernmental

Various state and federal operating and capital grants are applied for and received annually. For non-
expenditure driven grants, revenue is recognized as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider
have been met. For expenditure driven grants, revenue is recognized when the qualifying expenditures are
incurred and all other grant requirements are met.

G. Allowance for Uncollectible Amounts

The allowance for uncollectible amounts is estimated based on historical trends and specific account analysis for
the following accounts receivable:

» Personal property taxes
» Motor vehicle and other excise taxes
» Departmental and other

At June 30, 2013 the allowance related to personal property taxes and departmental and other are immaterial and
therefore not reported.

The following types of accounts receivable are secured via the lien process and are considered 100% collectible.
Accordingly, an allowance for uncollectible amounts is not reported.

» Real estate taxes and liens
» Water and sewer charges and liens

Intergovernmental receivables are considered 100% collectible.
H. Inventories

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Inventories are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase. Such inventories consist primarily of supplies
and are not material in total to the government-wide and fund financial statements and therefore are not

reported.
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TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Transactions of a buyer/seller nature between governmental funds are eliminated from the governmental
activities in the statement of net assets. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities
and business-type activities are reported in the statement of net assets as “internal balances”.

Fund Financial Statements

Transactions of a buyer/seller nature between funds are not eliminated from the individual fund statements.
Receivables and payables resulting from these transactions are classified as “Due from other funds” or “Due to
other funds” on the balance sheet.

L. Interfund Transfers

During the course of its operations, resources are permanently reallocated between funds.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Transfers between governmental funds are eliminated from the governmental activities in the statement of net
position. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the statement of activities as “Transfers, net”,

Fund Financial Statements

Transfers between funds are not eliminated from the individual fund statements and are reported as transfers in
and transfers out.

M. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue at the fund financial statement level represents billed receivables that do not meet the available
criterion in accordance with the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Deferred revenue is recognized as revenue in the conversion to the government-wide financial
statements (full accrual).

N. Net Position and Fund Balances

Government-Wide Financial Statements and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements (Net Assets

Net assets are reported as restricted when amounts are restricted by outside parties for a specific future use.
Net assets have been “restricted” for the following:

“Permanent funds - expendable” represents amounts held in trust for which the expenditures are restricted by
various trust agreements.

“Permanent funds - nonexpendable” represents amounts held in trust for which only investment earnings may
be expended.

“QOther specific purposes” represents other restrictions placed on assets from outside parties.
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TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013

Governmental Funds Financial Statements (Fund Balances)

The following fund balance classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints:

Nonspendable — represents amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable form (i.e.,
prepaid amounts) or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact (i.e., principal of
permanent fund).

Restricted — represents amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional provisions
or enabling legislation or because of constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors,
or the laws or regulations of other governments.

Committed — represents amounts that can be used only for specific purposes imposed by a formal action of Town
meeting, which is the highest level of decision-making authority for the Town. Committed amounts may be
established, modified, or rescinded only through actions approved by Town meeting.

Assigned — represents amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed but are
intended to be used for specific purposes. Under the Town’s structure, only authorized assignments for non-
contractual encumbrances can be made by individual department heads.

Unassigned — represents the residual fund balance for the General Fund and the negative residual fund balance of
any other governmental fund that cannot be eliminated by offsetting assigned fund balance amounts.

In circumstances when an expenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts are available in multiple fund
balance classifications, fund balance is depleted in the order of restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.

Encumbrance amounts have been assigned for specific purposes for which resources already have been allocated.
O. Long-term Debt

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Long-term debt is reported as liabilities in the government-wide and proprietary fund statements of net assets.
Material bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-
line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. At June 30, 2013, no
material premiums or discounts are reported.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

The face amount of governmental funds long-term debt is reported as other financing sources when the debt is
issued. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are recognized in the current period. Bond
premiums are reported as other financing sources and bond discounts are reported as other financing uses.

Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual bond proceeds received, are reported as general
government expenditures.

P. Investment Income
Excluding the permanent funds, investment income derived from major and nonmajor governmental funds is

legally assigned to the general fund unless otherwise directed by Massachusetts General Law (MGL). Investment
income from permanent funds are retained in the funds.
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TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013
Investment income from the water and sewer enterprise funds is retained in the respective funds.

Q. Compensated Absences

Employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on collective bargaining agreements,
state laws and executive policies.

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave are reported as liabilities and expenses as incurred.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave, which will be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources, are reported as expenditures and fund liabilities upon employee retirements and resignations.

R. Post Retirement Benefits
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

In addition to providing pension benefits, and as more fully described in Note 11, the Town provides health and
life insurance coverage for current and future retirees and their spouses.

S. Use of Estimates

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure for contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the fiscal year. Actual results could vary from estimates that were used.

T. Total Column
Government-Wide Financial Statements

The total column presented on the government-wide financial statements represents consolidated financial
information.

Fund Financial Statements

The total column presented on the fund financial statements is presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data
in this column is not the equivalent of consolidated financial information.
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TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. Budgetary Information

Municipal Law requires the adoption of a balanced budget that is approved by Town Meeting vote. The Finance
Committee presents an annual budget to Town Meeting, which includes estimates of revenues and other
financing sources and recommendations of expenditures and other financing uses. Town Meeting, which has full
authority to amend and/or reject the budget or any line item, adopts the expenditure budget by majority vote.

Increases to the original budget subsequent to the approval of the annual budget requires Special Town Meeting
approval.

The majority of appropriations are non-continuing which lapse at the end of each fiscal year. Others are
continuing appropriations for which the governing body has authorized that an unspent balance from a prior

fiscal year be carried forward and made available for spending in the current fiscal year.

Generally, expenditures may not exceed the legal level of spending (salaries, expenses and capital) authorized for
an appropriation account. However, the Town is statutorily required to pay debt service, regardless of whether
such amounts are appropriated.

Anannual budget is adopted for the general fund in conformity with the guidelines described above. The fiscal
year 2013 approved budget for the general fund authorized $52,467,880 in appropriations. During fiscal year
2013, supplemental appropriations totaling $180,708 were authorized.

The Accountant’s office has the responsibility to ensure that budgetary control is maintained. Budgetary control
is exercised through the accounting system.

B. Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, expenditures exceeded appropriations for state and county charges.
C. Fund Deficits

At June 30, 2013, the following governmental funds deficits exist:

Fund Amount Funding Source
School Lunch Grant..coiiinn.. § 65,041 Federal grant
SPED Community Partnership...... 10,509 State grant
Mass CECGrant. ......covericsininnes 10,148 State grant

$ 85,698

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The municipal finance laws of the Commonwealth authorize the Town to invest temporarily idle cash in bank
term deposits and certificates of deposits, and treasury and agency obligations of the United States government,
with maturities of one year or less; U.S. treasury or agency repurchase agreements with maturities of not more
than 90 days; money market accounts; and the state treasurer’s investment pool - the Massachusetts Municipal
Depository Trust (MMDT).
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The MMDT meets the criteria of an external investment pool and operates in accordance with applicable state
laws and regulations. The Treasurer of the Commonwealth serves as Trustee. The reported value of the pool is
the same as the fair value of pool shares.

A cash and investment pool is maintained that is available for use by all funds with unrestricted cash and
investments. The deposits and investments of private purpose trust funds and the pension trust fund are held
separately from other Town funds.

Deposits and Investments of the Town (excluding the Pension Trust Fund)

Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Town’s deposits may not be
recovered. The Town does not have a policy for custodial credit risk of deposits. As of June 30, 2013, $16,160,357
of the Town's bank balance of $16,914,770 was uninsured and uncollateralized and, therefore, exposed to
custodial credit risk.

Investments Summary

The Town's investment at June 30, 2013 consisted of $87,143 in MMDT and is reported as cash and cash
equivalents,

Investments - Interest Rate Risk of Debt Securities

Interest rate risk for debt securities is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt securities will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. The Town does not have a policy for interest rate risk of debt securities.

Investments - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Town will
not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
party. The Town does not have a policy for custodial credit risk of investments. As of June 30, 2013, the Town’s
investment in MMDT was not exposed to custodial credit risk.

Investments - Credit Risk of Debt Securities

Credit risk for investments is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to a debt security will not fulfill its
obligations. The Town does not have a policy for credit risk of debt securities. As of June 30, 2013, the Town's
investment in MMDT was unrated by a national credit rating organization.

Investments ~ Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the Town’s investment in a single
issuer. The Town does not have a policy for concentration of credit risk. As of June 30, 2013 the Town was not
exposed to concentration of credit risk.

Deposits and Investmnents of the Pension Trust Fund (The System)

The System has expanded investment powers, including the ability to invest in equity securities, corporate bonds
and other specified investments,

B-40



TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013

The Pension Reserve Investment Trust (PRIT) meets the criteria of an external investment pool and operates in
accordance with applicable state laws and regulations. The Treasurer of the Commonwealth serves as Trustee
and provides regulatory oversight. The reported value of the pool is the same as the fair value of the Town’s
position in pool shares.

Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the System’s deposits may not be
recovered. The System does not have a policy for custodial credit risk of deposits. As of December 31, 2012, the
System was not exposed to custodial credit risk.

Investments Summary

The System’s investments at December 31, 2012, are presented below. All investments are presented by
investment type, with debt securities presented by maturity.

Investment
Maturities (in
Years)
Fair Less
Investment Type Value Than 1
Debt Securities:
Money market mutual funds*......c.cccovivnmininnce $ 99,135 $ 99,135
Debt security mutual funds. ..o, 605,850 605,850
External investment pool (PRIT).....ciiinnnnenniio 26,844,004 26,844,004
Total debt SeCUTIHES . .vvrni vy veseicrsnsvicsnmsrsenssinnnes 27,548,989 % 27,548,989
Other Investments:
Equity securities....oviivinncnimicn e 323,757
Equity matual funds. ... amnnnn 3,154,614
Real estate INVestmMenES. . .. cove oo irerneerinsssneives o 1,449,028
Alternative INVESHMIEIIS . o vr e e cee s ims e s sns vencrs s 1,104,574
Total other InVestMents vl b v, 6,031,973
Total INVESENENES . v crss s s aemas s seciamaisinens seremreinns B 33,580,962

* Included in cash and cash equivalenits

Investments - Interest Rate Risk of Debt Securities

Interest rate risk for debt securities is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt securities will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. The System does not have a policy for interest rate risk of debt securities.
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Investments - Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the System will
not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
party. The System does not have a policy for custodial credit risk of investments. As of December 31, 2012,
$1,199,081 of the System’s investments was uninsured, not registered in the name of the System and exposed to
custodial credit risk as follows:

Held by
Fair Counterparty’s
Investment Type Value Trust or Agent
Real estate investments................. $ 1,199,081 § 1,199,081

Investments - Credit Risk of Debt Securities

Credit risk for debt securities is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to a debt security will not fulfill its
obligations. The System does not have a policy for credit risk of debt securities. As of December 31, 2012, the
credit quality ratings of the System’s debt securities are as follows:

Quality Ratings *
Fair
Investment Type Value Unrated
Money market mutual funds........ $ 99,135 % 99,135
Debt security mutual funds.......... 605,850 605,850
External investment pools........... 26,844,004 26,844,004
TOtal. oot i i v e ven i $ 27,548,989 $ 27,548,989

* Per the rating scale of Standard and Poor’s (a national credit rating organization)

Investments - Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the Town’s investment in a single
issuer. The Town does not have a policy for concentration of credit risk. As of June 30, 2013, the Town was not
exposed to concentration of credit risk.
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NOTE 4 ~ ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

At June 30, 2013, receivables for the individual major and nonmajor governmental funds, in the aggregate,
including the applicable allowances for uncollectible amounts, are as follows:

Allowance
Gross for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount
Receivables:
Real estate and personal property taxes... $ 868,778 $ - % 868,778
TAX HEIIS . csvcva s vasamns e v s v stamanassmsmsinors 51 s 993,758 - 993,758
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes........ 232474 {(107,932) 124,542
Departmental and other.........ccccoveerinnenn. 102,152 . 102,152
$ 2’465’4& $ (107,932) $ 2,357,508

At June 30, 2013, receivables for the water and sewer enterprise funds consist of the following:

Allowance
Gross for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount
Receivables:
WateT. v e $ 908,79 $ - % 908,796
SRWEL. 1 ev e eneeneseeenenssnsninenemenennenaen o 744,961 & 744 961
Utility Hens.......ooviieeciiiininiviiiiie i, 96,438 - 96,438
Intergovernmental......cooveoiieniinsconencenn. 93,567 - 93,567
$ 1,843,762 $ - % 1,843,762

At December 31, 2012, receivables for the pension trust fund totaled $104,154.

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to
be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. The following identifies the various components of
deferred revenue reported in the governmental funds:

Nonmajor
General Governmental
Fund Funds Total
Receivable type:
Real estate and personal property taxes...ovvieiiviin. $ 688822 % - % 688,822
Tax and utility Hens.......covvivnnsiviiios i o cinens 993,758 * 993,758
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes.........ooccvveenenns 124,542 - 124,542
Departmental and other.......cccoveviiiviiniiiiiniciee e 44,930 57,222 102,152
Totalimnssnminrsssnmanussassmanass § 0 1,852,052 § 57222 § 1,909,274
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NOTES - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
- 4 ¢ TR S, & 4,269,080 $ - % - 8 4,269,080
Construction in PIOZIESS. covisisrrsrmimrninirrrinsennn: 1,286,907 3,875,774 “ 5,162,681
Total capital assets not being depreciated....... 5,555,987 3,875,774 - 9,431,761
Capital assets being depreciated:
Land imProvementsS. .o vecrnrrirs e 1,704,358 - E 1,704,358
Buildirigs and improvements............ooovoiian e 75,761,671 112,492 @ 75,874,163
Machinery and equipment. . oo v s 4,422 577 52,075 - 4,474 652
gt s Y00 b e 1 o SR PURT 8,691,664 1,115,654 (597,337} 9,209,981
Total capital assets being depreciated............ 90,580,270 1,280,221 (597,337) 91,263,154
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land ImprovementS.. c. oo v s varns i enesens (911,753 {64,017) - (975,770)
Buildings and improvements. ...................ee.or. (17,479,952) (1,843,671) : (19,323,623)
Machinery and equipment oo e i nnans (3,096,901) (202,544) - (3,299,445)
| 1y YL n ) < TP {(2432,343) (192,857} 597,337 (2,027,863)
Total accumulated depreciation........ccocoeees (23,920,949) (2,303,089) 597,337 (25,626,701)
Total capital assets being depreciated, neti......o.oe 66,659,321 (1,022,868) - 65,636,453
Total governmental activities capital assets, net......... % 72,215,308 & 2,852,906 $ - & 75,068,214
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Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business-Type Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

LI T S S & 252,182 % = & = % 252,182
Capital asseis being depreciated:

Land improvements........ccocoeriiniiniieinernmnnennin 6,000 - S 6,000

Buildings and improvements..........oeevvnirnenrinenn 2,785,115 - - 2,785,115

Machinery and equipment.......coovvei i 1,820,863 117,225 - 1,938,088

JERT 4 o1 n e e o) o = TSP 29,208,111 - - 29,208,111

Total capital assets being depreciated.....o i eun 33,820,089 117,225 - 33,937,314

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Land Improvements. .......o.o v vivimniiiiiics e, (3,450) (300) - {3,750)

Buildings and improvements...........ccooo i cnnns {2,147,932) {40,556) - (2,188,488)

Machinery and equipment........c..ocovivineninnnnnnn. (780,985} (149,745} = (930,730)

JaY S 1:1 0 g s Lol n b3 - S S SO (11,133,230 (583,728) - (11,716,958)

Total accamulated depreciation......co.vune.eness (14,065,597) (774,329) “ (14,839,926)

Total capital assets being depreciated, net................ 19,754,492 (657,104} - 19,097,388
Total business-type activities capital assets, net......... $ 20,006,674 & (657,104 $ - % 19,349,570

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/ programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General government. . ....oo v erncerneenninnn e eoe 3 173,668
PubHE afety.coiv v o i e e s e 157,206
F 06 A3 Tar=1 o To) 4 MU O PO 1,609,524
Public WOTKS ..o iiviies et v cevie e ie vasins s o s va samains 286,012
Health and human SeIvICES. ... coicviiimins coersrs s cnmsnnin 1,862
Culture and 1ecteatON. ..vveopesssrssvsssomeneesmmmos s smms s 74,817

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities ... $ 2,303,089
foosn

Business-Type Activities:

N <) SRR . 231,767
eI 0 AR RS R SO e e 542,562
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities................ § 774,329

Poee s
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NOTE 6 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Interfund transfers for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, are summarized as follows:

Transfers In:
Nonmajor Sewer
General Governmental Enterprise
Transfers Out: Fund Punds Fund Total
General Fund......ccove i iisoinne, 3 - 8 97 % 1,225,103 % 1,225,200 (1)
Water Enterprise Fund.....co.. 401,000 - - 401,000 (2)
Sewer Enterprise Fund. oo 401,000 = - 401,000 (2)
$ 802,000 % 97 $_ 1225103 § 2,027,200

(1) Represents budgeted transfers to the police station capital projects fund and sewer enterprise fund for the
subsidy of debt service principal and interest

{(2) Represents budgeted transfers for indirect costs

NOTE 7 - SHORT-TERM FINANCING
Short-term debt may be authorized and issued to fund the following;:

¢ Current operating costs prior to the collection of revenues through issuance of revenue anticipation notes
(RAN) or tax anticipation notes (TAN).

¢ Capital project costs and other approved expenditures incurred prior to obtaining permanent financing
through issuance of bond anticipation notes (BAN) or grant anticipation notes (GAN).

Short-term loans are general obligations and carry maturity dates that are limited by statute. Interest
expenditures and expenses for short-term borrowings are accounted for in the general fund and water and sewer

enterprise funds, respectively.
Details related to the short-term debt activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, is as follows:

Notes Payable - Governmental Funds

Qrigination Maturity Interest Balance at Decreases/ Balance at
Type Description Date Date Rate June 30, 2012 Iricreases Reclassifications June 30, 2013
BAN  Police Station......cocevninronnnn 12/20/12  9/20/13 045% § - § 1,000,000 B 1,000,000y § -
BAN Police Station.....c..cvevveieeianne 12/20/12  9/20/13 050% - 2,350,000 {2,350,000) »
Total.,. oo i 3 - % 3350000 & {3,350,000) $ -
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Notes Payable - Enterprise Funds
Origination. Maturity Interest Balance at Balance:at
Type Description Date Dite Rate Jung 30, 2012 Inicreases Diecreases Tune 30, 2013
BAN Water main improvements.... 6/19/12  1/24/13 045% § 250,000 $ - % {250,000y % =

Subsequent Events

On September 15, 2013 the Town issued $3,350,000 of general obligation bonds. The entire issuance was used to
retire Police Station BAN’s outstanding at June 30, 2013. Accordingly, $3,350,000 of BAN’s have been reclassified
to long-term debt at June 30, 2013.

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

The following represents a summary of changes that occurred in long-term obligations during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2013:

Balance Balance
June 30, Increases/ June 30, Current
2012 Reclassifications Decreases 2013 Portion

Governmental Activities:
Bonds and notes payable........... $ 35828672 $ 8799400 $ (7,197,147) $ 37430925 $ 3,651,927
Workers' compensation claims... 1,583,745 474,313 (518,870) 1,539,188 153,919
Capital lease obligations............ 204,441 % (29,943) 174,498 31,485
Net OPEB obligation.......c...ooouv. 12,812,573 3,842,378 (1,366,206) 15,288,745 -
Compensated absences.............. 1,774,851 1,152,410 (1,024,652) 1,902,609 190,261
Totalioiwi i opiriiiainng:. § 52,204,282 % 14,268,501 $ (10,136,818) $ 56,335,965 § 4,027,592
Business-type Activities:
Bonds and notes payable........... $ 67139800 & 120,000 $ (2,206,278) & 4,053,522 $ 1463874
Net OPEB obligation......ccoccovvenns 262,464 125,515 (44,628) 343,351 -
Compensated absences.............. 3,913 4,645 (2,996) 5,562 556
Total v naneans. 3 6406177 % 250,160 $ (2,253902) $ 4402435 % 1

The governmental activities long-term liabilities are generally liquidated by the general fund.
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NOTE 9 ~ LONG-TERM DEBT

Details related to the outstanding indebtedness at June 30, 2013, and the debt service requirements are as follows:

Bonds and Notes Payable ~ Governmental Funds

Outstanding Outstanding
Maturity Interest at June 30, at June 30,
Project Date Rate 2012 Issued Redeerned 2013
Municipal Purpose Loanof 2003, ..o 06/15/13 1.5-3.0% & 90,000 ¢ - % {90,000) $ =
Mumnicipal Purpose Loan of 2004, ... 06/01/14 3.0-4.0% 240,000 & (120,000) 120,000
Drainage IMprovements, . ... .o voisimssanminien 06/01/14 3.0-4.0% 30,000 - (15,000} 15,000
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2005.........covimnns 04/15/25 32-50% 4,370,000 - (4,370,000) .
High School Loan of 2006..cc.c..omoiii. . 05/15/26 3.7-4.0% 7,630,000 » (545,000} 7,085,000
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2006. ..o, 02/15/19  40-41% 1,300,000 - {205,000} 1,095,000
High SChool. ..o e 01/15/27 4.0% 8,751,000 - (583,200} 8,167,800
Forest Avenue Ball Fields Improvements....... 06/01/14  3.0-4.0% 116,000 . (58,000) 58,000
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2007.................. 01/15/27  35-5.0% 674,000 ’ (134,800) 539,200
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2008,........c00m0ee. 08/15/18 3.0-45% 1,192,560 * {291,280) 901,280
Sehool ConstuctOrL v i o o sn e 11/01/29 2.00% 6,342,612 - (352,367 5,990,245
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2010:............. 09/15/22 2.5-3.0% 2,477,500 - {427,500) 2,050,000
Muricipal Purpose Loan of 2013............cenn.. 08/15/32 2.0-25% 2,615,000 1,659,400 = 4,274,400
General Obligation Refunding Bonds........... 04/15/25 20-3.0% - 3,790,000 (5,000) 3,785,000
Bond Anticipation Notes - Police Station.......  09/15/33  2.0-4.25% ~ 3,350,000 - 3,350,000
Total governmental funds. ... $ 35828672 $ B8,799400 $ (7,197,147) $ 37,430,925
e = e

During fiscal year 2013, the Town issued $1,659,400 of general obligation bonds for purchase of a delivery van,
paving, public building maintenance, technology upgrades, drainage, and other various municipal purposes.

Current Refunding - JTanuary 2013

The Town issued $3,790,000 in current refunding bonds to refund $3,880,000 of previously issued school
construction and other municipal purpose outstanding bonds to take advantage of favorable interest rates.

The net proceeds of approximately $3,958,000 (after payment of approximately $32,000 in bond issuance costs and
premium of approximately $200,000) were used to retire the outstanding bonds and the related accrued interest
on April 15, 2013.

As a result of this refunding, the Town will reduce its total gross debt service payments over the remaining life of

the bonds by approximately $559,000 and will realize an economic gain (difference between the present values of
the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of approximately $507,000.
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Debt service requirements for principal and interest for governmental bonds and notes payable in future fiscal
years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

20140 $ 3,651,927 & 1,040,228 $§ 4,692,155
2015...0n0ne 3,525,047 1,065,046 4,590,093
20165 svs0xmwis 3,157,547 967,650 4,125,197
2017, 2,947,547 867,806 3,815,353
2018 s 2,797,047 773,882 3,570,929
2019, 2,526,047 683,601 3,209,648
2020.50mceis 2,381,047 602,767 2,983,814
2021.ciiiinnns 2,251,047 526,914 2,777,961
2022, 2,211,047 453,918 2,664,965
202300000 2,201,047 381,454 2,582,501
2024 i 2,037,367 314,082 2,351,449
2025 crvcssaner 2,027,368 237,529 2,264,897
2026.. 00000 1,772,368 176,557 1,948,925
20270 vcieinn 1,212,368 114,465 1,326,833
2028, i 627,368 74,423 701,791
2029 602,368 58,795 661,163
20300 602,368 43,447 645,815
2031, 00eevennes 250,000 28,000 278,000
20320 250,000 19,500 269,500
20330 unine 250,000 10,813 260,813
2034...00ernen 150,000 3,186 153,186
Total.......... $ 37430925 $ 8444063 $ 45,874,988
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OGutstanding QOutstanding
Maturity Interest at Tune 30, at June 30,
Project Date Rate 2012 Issued Redeemed 2013

Water (MWRAY oot 05/15/13 00% % 56,026 - & (56,026) % -
Water (MWRA).....oovvrvevereorcrns 08/15/13 0.0% 224,052 . (112,026 112,026
Water Meter Replacement......ooiunss g6/01/14 30-4.0% 284,000 - (142,000% 142,000
Water (MWRA)..........coorierrrrernnn. 08/15/14 0.0% 168,081 - (56,027) 112,054
Water (MWRA ..o 08/15/15 0.0% 224,108 - {56,027) 168,081
Water (MWERAY........coiiiniin e 08/15/16 0.0% 280,135 - (56,027) 224,108
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2007..... 01/15/27 35-5.0% 142,500 = {28,500) 114,000
Water (MWERA) . coocoiveririrsmeresorinses 08/15/17 0.00% 336,162 - (56,027) 280,135
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2008, ... 08/15/18 3.0-45% 237,440 - (43,720} 193,720
Water (MWERA) ..o, 08/15/19 0.0% 96,437 - {12,054) 84,383
Water (MWRAY .. 08/15/20 0.0% 899,988 - {99,999 799,989
Water (MWRA) oo 08/15/21 0.0% 250,000 - {25,000) 225,000
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2013.... 08/15/17 20-2.5% 45,000 60,000 - 105,000
Total water enterprise fund. o & 3,243,929 § 60,000 % (743,433) $ 256049

During fiscal year 2013, the Town issued $60,000 of general obligation bonds for a utility truck.

Debt service requirements for principal and interest for water enterprise fund bonds and notes payable in future

fiscal years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

201400 $ 710,657 $ 18,121 § 728,778
2015, 442,911 9,699 452,610
2016.......... 386,885 7,250 394,135
2017 . cini. 330,858 4,614 335472
2018.......... 235,081 1,918 236,999
2019 . 167,054 560 167,614
2020000 137,054 - 137,054
20210 124,996 » 124,996
Total......... $ 2,560,496 $ 42,162 § 2,602,658

The Massachusetts Water Resource Authority (MWRA) operates an Infiltration/ Inflow Financial Assistance
Program for community owned collection systems. For each community approved for the project, financial
assistance received from the MWRA consists of a non-interest bearing loan (payable in ten equal annual
installments). At June 30, 2013, the outstanding principal amount of these loans totaled $2,005,776.
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Bonds and Notes Payable - Sewer Enterprise Fund

Outstanding Outstanding
Maturity Interest at June 30, at June 30,
Project Date Rate 2012 Issued Redeemed 2013

SEWET .. vcvivscnarimnnaminnnts e oo onsmn i s 01/15/13 45-75% § 200,000 $ =5 {200,000} 5 -
Sewer 91-05 (IMWPAT)...cvoivvniinenannnin 08/01/13 23-56% 23,973 # (15,760} 8,213
Sewer 91-36 (MWPAT)......o e vininnns 08/01/13 23-56% 558,369 - (367,083} 191,286
Sewer 93-03 (MWPAT)..cooivvnnn v 08/01/13 23-56% 8,554 - (5,624} 2,930
Sewer 93-04 (MWPAT).....cooiivninnrin, 08/01/13 23-56% 359,101 - (236,080) 123,021
Sewer 91-47 (MWPAT)wvviinnnienin 08/01/13 23-5.6% 69,929 (45,973) 23,956
Sewer 91-20 (MWPAT)......ocvvivienionn 08/01/13 23-56% 615,735 s (404,797) 210,938
Sewer 93-05 (MWPAT).....cocooooniinieen, 08/01/13 34-56% 93,775 - (61,650) 32,125
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2007........ 01/15/27 35-5.0% 142,500 - (28,500) 114,000
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2008........ 08/15/18  3.0-45% 210,000 . (30,000) 180,000
Sewer 07-22 (MWPAT)...covaann o 07/15/28 2.00% 298,235 - (14,878) 283,357
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2010........ 09/15/14 25-3.0% 157,500 - (52,500} 105,000
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2013........ 08/15/22 2.0-25% 158,200 60,000 - 218,200
Total sewer enterprise fund..............: % 2,895,871 § 60,000 §  (1,462,845) $ 1,493,026

During fiscal year 2013, the Town issued $60,000 of general obligation bonds for a utility truck.

Debt service requirements for principal and interest for sewer enterprise fund bonds and notes payable in future

fiscal years are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2014 $ 753,217 % 27,500 $ 780,717
2015............ 161,055 17,421 178,476
2016............ 108,868 13,844 122,712
2017, 109,187 10,663 119,850
20180 69,762 7,414 77,176
2019....coiiieee 58,095 5,498 63,593
2020, 28,434 4,372 32,806
2021, 28,779 3,800 32,579
2022, iy 29,132 3,222 32,354
2023...iiiiinn 29,492 2,635 32,127
20240 18,539 2,155 20,694
20250 18,913 1,781 20,694
2026............ 19,296 1,399 20,695
2027 i 19,685 1,009 20,694
2028, 20,083 611 20,694
2029............ 20,489 205 20,694
Total........... $ 1,493,026 $ 103,529 § 1,596,555
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The Town receives subsidy assistance from the Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust (MWPAT).
Principal and interest on the outstanding bonds for MWPAT is subsidized over the life of the bonds to assist the
Town in the repayment of this future debt. During fiscal year 2013, the Town’s subsidy totaled $220,517. Future
subsidies total approximately $99,000. The amount of MWPAT bonds outstanding at June 30, 2013, totaled
$875,826.

Authorized and Unissued Debt

The Town is subject to various debt limits by statute and may issue additional general obligation debt under the
normal debt limit. At June 30, 2013, the Town had the following authorized and unissued debt:

Purpose Amount
MWRA. e % 1,751,000
Improving Sewer System........co.cocviviiannn. 969,490
Multiple Purposes............covviiivn i 786,380
G | SO PN $ 6,856,870

NOTE 10 ~ CAPITAL LEASES

The Town has entered into a capital lease agreement for a fire truck under which the fire truck will become
property of the Town when all terms of the lease agreement are met. The agreement also contains early purchase
options which would allow the Town to purchase the fire truck before the end of the lease term.

The following schedule represents the future minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2013:

Fiscal Years Governmental
Ending June 30 Activities
ZO14....i s crvinvine v vivsvan s sissevss s sosmimins v avaars B 40,472
2005, i s 40,472
2008 v vvicmne s crvsnini e e e e cne s 40,472
2 Py SN 40472
2008, 0t s e s 40,472
Total minimum lease payments.................. 202,360
Less: amounts representing interest........... (27,862)
Present value of minimum lease payments.. § 174,498
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The fire truck and the related accumulated amortization under capital leases are as follows:

Governmerntal
Activities
Asset:
Machinery and equipment.......c..cvconiiniinnenn. $ 300,000
Less: accumulated amortization..........cocooeonne (95,109}
TOBEE v i1 tnnresninsinastam s sy vuns s 65mas funn o nionis $ 204,891

Amortization of the leased fire truck under capital leases is included with depreciation expense, which is
allocated functionally.

NOTE 11 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description - The Town provides health and life insurance coverage for its retirees and their survivors
(hereinafter referred to as the “Plan”) as a single-employer defined benefit Other Post Employment Benefit
(OPEB) plan. Chapter 32B of the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions. Changes to
plan design and contribution rates must be accomplished through the collective bargaining process. The Plan
does not issue a stand alone financial report.

The number of participants as of July 1, 2012, the latest actuarial valuation, is as follows:

Active employees.....cc.ccivin s 269
Retirees, beneficiaries and dependents............. 378
Total.. i i i o s s sins 647

Funding Policy - The contribution requirements of Plan members and the Town are established and may be
amended by the Town. The required health insurance contribution rates (including Medicare Part B) of Plan
members and the Town are 40% and 60%, respectively. Also, Plan members and the Town contribute 40% and
60%, respectively, towards a $2,000 term life insurance policy. The Town currently contributes enough money to
the Plan to satisfy current obligations on a pay-as-you-go basis. The costs of administering the Plan are paid by
the Town.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation - The Town’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on
the annual required contribution (ARC) of the employer, an actuarially determined amount that is calculated in
accordance with the parameters set forth in GASB Statement #45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if
paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial
liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components
of the Town’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the actual amount contributed to the plan, and changes in the
Town's net OPEB obligation:
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Amount
Annual required contribution.............ccooeviiiiviiiennnn. $ 3,946,102
Interest on net OPEB obligation. .....cccovvrvscneiinrncrecnnnenn 457,626
Adjustment to annual required contribution......c....ce.o.. (435,835)
Armutal OPEB €08t e sunverinsasmsinesannes s e e b 3,967,893
Contributions made. . ... imiamriorr i oes e ssen s ness {1,410,834)
Increase in net OPEB obligation.........c.c.ocoo i 2,557,059
Net OPEB obligation at beginning of year..................... 13,075,037
Net OPEB obligation atend of year..............coccovinennnn. $ 15,632,096

Trend information regarding annual OPEB cost, the percentage of the annual OPEB cost contributed and the net
OPEB obligation is as follows:

Annual Percentage Net
Fiscal Year OPEB Cost of AOPEBC OPEB
Ending (AOPEBC) Contributed Obligation
June 30, 201710 vininins $ 5,109,350 28.8% 9,316,539
June 30, 20120000 5,301,642 29.1% 13,075,037
June 30, 2013......ocvvenn.. 3,967,893 35.6% 15,632,096

Funded Status and Funding Progress - The funded status of the Plan at July 1, 2012, the most recent actuarial
valuation, was as follows:

Actuarial
Accrued UAAL asa
Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Projected Unit AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (A) () (B-A) (A/B) © (B-4)/)
07/01/12 % - % 55,970,796 $ 55,970,796 - $ 24,654,366 227.0%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedules of funding
progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements,
presents multi-year trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.
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Methods and Assumptions - Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive
Plan (the Plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at
the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and Plan
members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to
reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the
long-term perspective of the calculations.

The significant methods and assumptions as of the latest actuarial valuation are as follows:

Valuation date; July 1, 2012

Actuarial cost method: Projected Unit Credit

Amortization method: Increasing dollar amortization at 3.50%
Remaining amortization period: 30 years (open)

Interest discount rate: 3.50%

Healthcare/Medical cost trend rate: 9.00% decreasing by 0.50% for eight years to an ultimate level of 5.00%

Projected salary increases: 3.50% annually

Allocation of AOPEBC - AOPEBC costs were allocated to the Town’s functions as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General oVernmMent......cocueivirererinirieririinnsesnenin $ 217,972
Public safety.......c.coovverniiiiniiiiici e 1,497,081
| 276 ERTOZ:T o o 1 S S S 1,864,926
Public WOrks. ...uoviiieiiiei v e ce e s e 97,394
Health and human Services. ... .....cocvveiivrsvaninciinin, 56,356
Culture and recreation. ..o iivmsminy bis s iisvsm i 108,649
Total AOPEBC - governmental activities. ...o.vovninnin 3,842,378

Business-Type Activities:

L ST 55,819
BeWeT. ...t e e 69,696
Total AOPEBC - business-type activities.......c.co.o..oonue 125,515
Total AOPEBC. ... i s iniin e $ 3,967,893
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NOTE 12 - RISK FINANCING

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; and natural disasters for which the Town carries commercial insurance. The Town participates in
the Commonwealth’s Group Insurance Commission (GIC), which offers a variety of premium based health
insurance plans for the Town's employees and retirees. The amount of claim settlements has not exceeded
insurance coverage in any of the previous three fiscal years.

The Town participates in a premium-based workers” compensation plan. In prior years, the Town was self-
insured for workers’ compensation and is liable for the payment of certain claims from those periods. The claims
are administered by a third party administrator and are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis from annual
appropriations. The estimated future liability is based on history and injury type.

The liability at June 30, 2013, totaled $1,539,188. Changes in the reported Hability since July 1, 2011, are as follows:

Current Year
Balance at Claims and Balance at
Beginning of Changes in Claims Fiscal
Fiscal Year Estimate Payments Year-end
Fiscal year2012.........cccooeeenee. $ 1,649411 % 272,674 % (338,340) $ 1,583,745
Fiscal year 2018.........cccoevrune. 1,583,745 474,313 (518,870) 1,539,188
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NOTE 13 - FUND BALANCES

The constraints on fund balances as listed in aggregate in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet are detailed as
follows:

Nonmajor Total
Capital Governmental Governmerntal
General Articles Funds Funds
Nonspendable:
Permanent fund principal.................. $ - % - % 427652 % 427,652
Restricted:
Capital....oooooveririiiiini e - 2,247 959 - 2,247,959
Municipal television access................ - - 225,861 225,861
Saleof land.......coovevvieinieeireen i - - 176,555 176,555
Circuit breaker.......oviviiviineviiniininnons - - 680,533 680,533
Discretionary donations........ococu e - - 100,908 100,908
Feasibility/new school............oc i - - 273,165 273,165
Sale-of cemetery lots.......o.oooiiiiiiinnns - - 210,805 210,805
Recreation revolving..........c.cooeviinnes - - 153,870 153,870
General government........cocoevnenoonn - - 238,319 238,319
Public safety......ooiiiivminnciver s - - 78,800 78,800
EAUCAHON. oo iov v e n e vt e e miscn e - - 604,128 604,128
Public Works...oooovev i ceni e - - 188,338 188,338
Health and human services................ - - 16,845 16,845
Culture and recreation............ooovvve.n. - - 91,419 91,419
Sub-total - Restricted......cocovvvrvnnes, - 2,247 959 3,039,546 5,287,505
Committed:
Subsequent year's expenditures.......... 710,000 - < 710,000
Capital.....cooiiiiiin i e 150,209 - - 150,209
Sub-total - Committed. .....comsemmmen 860,209 - « 860,209
Assigned:
EACumbrances. oo viviovimiiniinmossns s 1,162,970 - - 1,162,970
Unassigned... covemsommsmirsor vivuraios swasassois 4,018,582 » {85,698) 3,932,884

$ 6,041,761 § 2247959 % 3,381,500 & 11,671,220
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NOTE 14 - STABILIZATION FUNDS

The Town maintains general and capital stabilization funds that were established under MGL Chapter 40, Section
5B. Appropriations in and out of the stabilization funds require two-thirds vote of Town meeting. Investment
income is retained by the funds.

The balance of the general and capital stabilization funds at June 30, 2013 total $1,242,417 and $150,209,
respectively, and are reported in the general fund as unassigned and committed fund balance, respectively.

NOTE 15 ~ PENSION PLAN

Plan Description - The Town contributes to the System, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan administered by the Swampscott Contributory Retirement Board. Substantially all employees of the
Town are members of the System, except for public school teachers and certain administrators who are members
of the Massachusetts Teachers Retirement System (MTRS).

Chapter 32 of the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan. The System
provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Cost-of-living adjustments
granted between 1981 and 1997 and any increases in other benefits imposed by the Commonwealth’s state law
during those years are borne by the Commonwealth and are deposited into the pension fund. Cost-of-living
adjustments granted after 1997 must be authorized by the Swampscott Contributory Retirement Board and are
borne by the System.

Plan Membership - At December 31, 2012 the System’s membership consists of the following:

Active members. ... .. oo i 242
Inactive MEMBETS . .. io i coimiins s i s s 183
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benenfits...... 203

TOABL s corarmnom s asmosir smtmemsassimmsuspioers rims Sops by apvaie s e sy 628

Funding Policy - Chapter 32 of MGL governs the contributions of plan members and the Town. Plan members
are required to contribute to the System at rates ranging from 5% to 11% of annual covered compensation. The
Town is required to pay into the System its share of the system-wide actuarial determined contribution that is
apportioned among the employers based on annual current payroll.

Contributions are recognized as additions in the period when they become due pursuant to formal commitments,
statutory or contractual requirements. Benefits and refunds are recognized as deductions when incurred and
administrative expenses are funded through investment earnings.

Annual Pension Cost - The Town's contributions to the System for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and
2010 were $3,955,463, $3,739,031, and $3,508,981, respectively, which equaled 100% of the required contribution
for each fiscal year. The current and two preceding fiscal years apportionment of the annual pension cost
between the two employers in the System required the Town to contribute approximately 99% of the total. At
June 30, 2013, the Town did not have a net pension obligation.
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Funded Status and Funding Progress — The funded status of the plan at January 1, 2012, the most recent actuarial
valuation date, is as follows:

Actuarial UAALasa

Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (A) (B) (B-A) (A/B) © (B-A)/C)

01/01/11 $ 33,177,769 % 71,822,178 $ 38,644,409 46.2% $ 10,953,584 352.8%

The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI) following the notes to
the financial statements, present multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial values of plan assets
are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the AAL for benefits.

Methods and Assumptions - The significant methods and assumptions as of the latest actuarial valuation are as
follows:

Valuation date: January 1, 2011

Actuarial cost method: Entry age normal

Amortization method: Level percentage of projected payroll
Remaining amortization period: 18 years at January 1, 2011

Asset valuation method: Actuarial value, 5-year smoothing

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of returi: 8.00%

Projected salary increases: Group 1 and 2, 7.0% first 4 years with an ultimate rate of
4.0%; Group 4, 8% grading down to 4.25% after 5 years

Cost of living adjustments: 3.00% of first $12,000 of retirement income

Interest rate credited to the annuity savings fund: 2.00%
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Legally Required Reserve Accounts - The balance in the System’s legally required reserves as of December 31,
2012, are as follows:

Description Amount Putpose
Annuity Savings Fund......... 3 11,931,989 Active members' contribution balance
Anmuity Reserve Fund......... 2,755,603 Retired members' contribution account
Pension Reserve Fund......... 997,536 Amounts appropriated to fund future retirement
PensionFund. ..o 18,202,478 Remaining net position
Total..ccooooiiiiiiiiiii $ 33,887,606

Noncontributory Retirement Allowance - The Town pays the entire retirement allowance for certain retirees who
are eligible for noncontributory benefits and are not members of the System. The general fund expenditure for
fiscal year 2013 totaled approximately $89,000.

MNOTE 16 - MASSACHUSETTS TEACHERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Public school teachers and certain administrators are members of the Massachusetts Teachers Retirement System,
to which the Town does not contribute. Pension benefits and administrative expenses paid by the Teachers
Retirement Board are the legal responsibility of the Commonwealth. The amount of these on-behalf payments
totaled $4,931,336 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, and, accordingly, are reported in the general fund as
intergovernmental revenues and pension expenditures.

NOTE 17 ~ COMMITMENTS

The Town has entered into a five-year contract with Hiltz Waste Disposal, Inc. for trash disposal and recycling
services that expires June 30, 2014. The base contract costs for fiscal year 2014 is $1,039,000. The cost of the
contract for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, totaled approximately $904,000.

The Town has also entered into, or is planning to enter into, contracts totaling approximately $6,900,000 for the
construction of a new police station, improvements of the sewer system, school, public safety and public works
projects.

Other significant commitments include encumbrances outstanding for the general fund, which totaled $1,162,970
at June 30, 2013,

NOTE 18 - CONTINGENCIES

Various legal actions and claims are pending against the Town. Litigation is subject to many uncertainties, and
the outcome of individual litigated matters is not always predictable. Although the amount of liability, if any, at

June 30, 2013, cannot be ascertained, management believes any resulting liability should not materially affect the
financial position of the Town at June 30, 2013.
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The Town participates in a number of federal award programs. Although the grant programs have been audited
in accordance with the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 through June 30, 2013, these
programs are still subject to financial and compliance audits. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the Town expects such amounts,
if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE 19 - FUTURE IMPLEMENTATION OF GASB PRONOUCEMENTS

The GASB has issued the following statements:

¥

Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, which is required to be implemented
during fiscal year 2014. Management does not believe the implementation of this Statement will
significantly impact the basic financial statements.

Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections — 2012 — an amendment of GASB Statements No. 10 and No. 62, which
is required to be implemented during fiscal year 2014. Management does not believe the implementation
of this Statement will impact the basic financial statements.

Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pensions Plans - an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 25, which is
required to be implemented during fiscal year 2014. The implementation of this Statement will require a

change to the title of the Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets to the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position, as

well as expanded note disclosures and required supplementary information.

Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — an Amendment of GASB Statement No,
27, which is required to be implemented during fiscal year 2015. The implementation of this Statement
will represent a significant change in the accounting and reporting of pension expense and the related
liability. For the first time, the Town will be required to recognize its long-term obligation for pension
benefits as a liability and to more comprehensively measure the annual costs of pension benefits. The
implementation of this Statement also expands pension related note disclosures and required
supplementary information.

Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations, which is required to be
implemented during fiscal year 2015. Management does not believe the implementation of this Statement
will impact the basic financial statements.

Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees, which is
required to be implemented during fiscal year 2014. Management does not believe the implementation of
this Statement will impact the basic financial statements.

This information is an integral part of the accompanying financial statements.
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Prior Year
Encumbrances Supplemental
and Continuing Original Appropriations Einal
Appropriations Budget and Transfers Budget
REVENUES
Real estate and personal property tXeS. vve rreeeiinnsesiraeresones oo $ - % 43,180,537 § - § 43,180,537
WMotor vehicle and ofher exCiSe taXeS. ... rvvrne . enenrnrsesrsrernrnseeeen - 1,970,000 = 1,970,000
Tax and utility Hens. . co v - - - -
Payments in Het OF TAXES. .o iiivscrrieiorrerieeersremcsinsrecrsnsennsacrennns - 8,075 P 8,075
IntergOVETIIIEIHAL ... 1o cis coesidiines e ns e vsiecaeengecensaessmasansane . 4,058,023 - 4,058,023
Penalties and interest on taxes. - 180,000 = 180,000
Licensesand permits.......,c.... - 175,000 - 175,000
Fines and forfeitUTes. .. v ooreininiien e ssnesssesiesesan e esamstsemsnseeensn - 90,000 - 90,000
Departmental and Oer. .. c.oovves 5enren oo veeine e aeie i e enaanss = 1,691,075 - 1,691,075
Investment iNCOMIS. ... ..ooiiiiieincrngieomsmmns s s ennesansoemsaaengesare - 15,000 - 15,000
TOTALREVENUES. ... ciineeesorciansncsrssnn s samemrnnsnssrsares = 51,367,710 = 51,367,710
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General GOVETTTIENE. .. .v.uervievn s creoresraessecnnse o seeascnsernnsacin 63,415 1,841,928 144433 2,049,776
PUBEE SBIOIY .o it ven s e b s a et 30,297 6,610,241 211,550 6,852,088
Education.. . . ....ouvieevirsomn s cion e nesosasas it s omen e anve vk nioss dens 675,395 24,665,818 - 25,341,215
Public WOrkS.....oeverecimmneeinnes 24,357 1,154,879 (31,401) 1,147,835
Health and humanservices,... 715 1,273,922 {52,740) 1,221,897
Culture and recreation....,........ - 658,262 (1,500) 656,762
Pension benefits..........coverees e boxea e s ao e s e - 3,801,040 (3,015) 3,798,025
Employee benefits. .. ..cuo oo s ke s b s Hn S 3,015 5,268,660 (27,655) 5,244,020
Property and liability insurance, - 650,000 - 650,000
State and county charges.............. . - 501,802 - 591,802
Debt service:
Principal - 3,312,151 - 3,312,151
Interest - 1,262,994 (58,964) 1,204,030
TOTAL EXPENDITURES. .....omve s v aer s baves vore s s eeninsann 797,194 51,091,697 180,708 52,069,601
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES ......0.ootiviirieoiee s insor s inissersiearsasens (797,194) M4 (180,708) (701,893
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
TIANSIOTS ML iiviadivma s dh s s b0 fa 80 63 a5 Funahan s mrmas n e s s ares - 802,000 - 802,000
Preminm from issuance of bonds and notes., - 50,000 « 50,000
TPANSEOTS OUL. e et it 3 e e ennens s - (1,376,183 = (1,376,183)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES}......co....... - (524,183} - (524,183
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE..... it ot iasites o on st (797,194) (248,170) {180,708} (1,226,074)
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OFYEAR. .. .oivvriiee e evinnnns 4,730,535 4,730,535 4,730,535 4,730,535
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR. o i vt v ivmsd fons i ribnsits v on s mee 3933341 % 4482365 . % 4549827 % 3504461



Current Year Actual and

Encurmabrances Encumbrances Variance
and Continuing and Continuing Positive/
Actual Appropriations _Appropriations {Negative)

b 42,963,352 & - & 42,963,352 § {217,185)
2,052,79% “ 2,052,796 82,796
99,703 - 99,703 99,703
8075 “ 8,075 “
4,045,679 - 4,043,679 (14,344)
206,033 = 206,033 26,033
260,969 - 260,969 85,969
73,955 “ 73,955 (16,045)
1,302,050 - 1,302,050 {389,025)
30,065 ~ 30,065 15,065
51,040,677 ~ 51,040,677 (327,033)
1,888,608 108,190 1,996,798 52,978
6,753,158 17,699 6,770,857 81,231
24,308,064 1,029,591 25,337,655 3,560
1,079,033 990 1,080,023 67,812
1,191,392 2,500 1,193,892 28,005
642,177 * 642,177 14,585
3,778,910 " 3,778,910 19,115
5,217,563 4,000 5,221,563 22,457
500,428 - 500,428 149,572
646,881 - 646,881 (55,079)
3,317,147 - 3,317,147 {4,996)
1,089,431 = 1,089,431 114,599
50,412,792 1,162,970 51,575,762 493,839
627,885 (1,162,970) {535,085) 166,806
802,000 - 802,000 -
95,284 - 95,284 45,284
(1,325,200 - (1,325,200} 50,983
{427,916) - {427,916} 96,267
199,969 (1,162,970} {963,001} 263,073
4,730,535 - 4,730,535 -
% 4,930,504 % {1L162,970) % 3,767,534 % 263,073

B-65



PENSION PLAN SCHEDULES

The following schedules provide information related to the System as a whole, for which the Town is one

participating employer:
SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS (S5YSTEM)

Actuarial UAAlL asa
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered

Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (A) (B) (B-A) (A/B) © ((B-A)/C)
01/01/02 $ 29,429,260 % 47,842,001 $ 18,412,741 615% $ 8337379 220.8%
01/01/04 28,721,832 52,826,739 24,104,907 54.4% 9,044,330 266.5%
01/01/06 30,492,424 58,082,162 27,589,738 52.5% 10,011,387 275.6%
01/01/08 33,845,690 65,637,453 31,791,763 51.6% 10,841,912 293.2%
01/01/10 31,827,581 68,326,348 36,498,767 46.6% 10,747,286 339.6%
01/01/11 33,177,769 71,822,178 38,644,409 46.2% 10,953,584 352.8%

The following schedule provides information related to the Town’s portion of the System’s ARC:

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS (SYSTEM)

Annually
Required Percentage of
Year Ended Contributions ARC
December 31 (ARC) Contributed (%)
2007 $ 29057395 100
2008 3,028,416 100
2009 3,403,534 100
2010 3,548,971 100
2011 3,779,980 100
2012 3,995,894 100

TOWN SHARE OF SYSTEM ARC

Percentage of

Town ARC

Fiscal Year ARC as a Percentage of
Ended ARC Contributed (%) System ARC (%)
2008 $ 2,880,573 100 99.1%
2009 2,997,268 100 99.0%
2010 3,360,532 100 98.7%
2011 3,508,981 100 98.9%
2012 3,739,031 100 98.9%
2013 3,955,463 100 99.0%
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OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS SCHEDULE
The following schedule provides information related to the Town'’s other postemployment benefits plan:

SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS (1)

Actuarial

Accrued UAALasa

Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value of Projected Unit AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (B) (B-A) (A/B) © ((B-4)/C)
06/30/08 % - % 46,567,306 $ 46,567,306 - $§ 25,338,353 183.8%
07/01/10 5 71,040,152 71,040,152 - 29,074,608 244.3%
07/01/12 - 55,970,796 55,970,796 - 24,654,366 227.0%

(1) The Town has only had three (3) actuarial valuations performed for other postemployment benefits.

The significant changes to the methods and assumptions used in the actuarial valuations identified above that
impacted trends in the schedules of funding progress are as follows:

» The mortality table was changed from the RP-2000 Mortality Table projected to 2010 using Scale AA to
the RP-2000 Mortality Table projected to 2012 using Scale AA

» The retirement rates were changed in this valuation to reflect the rates used by the Swampscott
Retirement System for the Retirement System pension valuations

» Disability rates were incorporated in the valuation to reflect the rates used by the Swampscott Retirement
System and the Massachusetts Teachers Retirement System for the Retirement System pension valuations
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TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

JUNE 36, 2013

NOTE A - BUDGETARY - GAAP RECONCILIATION

For budgetary financial reporting purposes, the Uniform Massachusetts Accounting System basis of accounting

(established by the Commonwealth) is followed, which differs from the GAAP basis of accounting. A

reconciliation of budgetary-basis to GAAP-basis results for the general fund for the fiscal year ended June 30,

2013, is presented below:

Budgetary basis as reported on the schedule of
revernues, expenditures and changes iri fund

balance - budget and actual.. oo

Reclassifications and adjustments:
Capital stabilization fund recorded in the general fund
for GAAP purposes.......... ..

Stabilization fund recorded in the gerieral fund

for GAAP PUIPOSES., covvineivirmiviosss iarmenernssmeienes o

Net change in'recording 60-day receipts........cooviiininnineen.
Net change in recording tax refunds payable........ccomivivienn,
To record MTRS on-behalf payments...........coocueeerivinnesonns

Net change in recording other expenditures..........uws

Net change in recording other revenues. ......cowvveeiin v
To record encUMDBIaNCES. ... uviin ey eiwstier sieirsieror sorireswosvesen

GAAP basis as reported on the statement of revenues,

expenditures and changes in fund balances................
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Other

Financing Fund

Revenues Expenditures Sources (Uses) Balance
$ 51,040,677 $ 51,575,762 $ (427,916) $ 3,767,534
202 = 50,000 150,209
4,357 - 50,000 1,242,417
40,118 = . 179,955
(350,827) - - (457,074)
4,931,336 4,931,336 ~ 4
......... - (5,574) 5 (58,002)
53,752 - “ 53,752
- (1,162,970) - 1,162,970
covene $ 55,719,615 § 55338554 $ (327,916) $ 6,041,761



PROPOSED FORM OF LEGAL OPINION APPENDIX C

(Date of Delivery)

M. Ronald Mendes, Treasurer
Town of Swampscott
Swampscott, Massachusetts

$9,008,858"
Town of Swampscott, Massachusetts
General Obligation Municipal Purpose Loan of 2014 Bonds, Series A
Dated December 9, 2014

We have acted as bond counsel to the Town of Swampscott, Massachusetts (the “Town”) in
connection with the issuance by the Town of the above-referenced bonds (the “Bonds™). In such
capacity, we have examined the law and such certified proceedings and other papers as we have
deemed necessary to render this opinion.

As to questions of fact material to our opinion we have relied upon representations and
covenants of the Town contained in the certified proceedings and other certifications of public
officials furnished to us, without undertaking to verify the same by independent investigation.

Based on our examination, we are of the opinion, under existing law, as follows:

1. The Bonds are valid and binding general obligations of the Town and, except to
the extent they are paid from other sources, the principal of and interest on the Bonds are payable
from taxes which may be levied upon all taxable property in the Town, without limitation as to
rate or amount, except as provided under Chapter 44, Section 20 of the General Laws, with
respect to that portion of the principal and interest payments that the Town has voted to exempt
from the limit imposed by Chapter 59, Section 21C of the General Laws, and subject to the limit
imposed by Chapter 59, Section 21C of the General Laws with respect to that portion of the
principal and interest payments that the Town has not voted to exempt from that limit.

2. Interest on the Bonds is excluded from the gross income of the owners of the
Bonds for federal income tax purposes. In addition, interest on the Bonds is not a specific
preference item for purposes of the federal individual or corporate alternative minimum taxes.
However, such interest is included in adjusted current earnings when calculating corporate
alternative minimum taxable income. In rendering the opinions set forth in this paragraph, we
have assumed compliance by the Town with all requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986 that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order that interest thereon

" Preliminary, subject to change.
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be, and continue to be, excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. The Town
has covenanted to comply with all such requirements. Failure by the Town to comply with
certain of such requirements may cause interest on the Bonds to become included in gross
income for federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds. We
express no opinion regarding any other federal tax consequences arising with respect to the
Bonds.

3. Interest on the Bonds is exempt from Massachusetts personal income taxes and
the Bonds are exempt from Massachusetts personal property taxes. We express no opinion
regarding any other Massachusetts tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds or any tax
consequences arising with respect to the Bonds under the laws of any state other than
Massachusetts.

This opinion is expressed as of the date hereof, and we neither assume nor undertake any
obligation to update, revise, supplement or restate this opinion to reflect any action taken or
omitted, or any facts or circumstances or changes in law or in the interpretation thereof, that may
hereafter arise or occur, or for any other reason.

The rights of the holders of the Bonds and the enforceability of the Bonds may be subject to
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws affecting creditors’

rights heretofore or hereafter enacted to the extent constitutionally applicable, and their
enforcement may also be subject to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases.

EDWARDS WILDMAN PALMER LLP
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EDWARDS

(Date of Delivery)

M. Ronald Mendes, Treasurer
Town of Swampscott
Swampscott, Massachusetts

$5,985,000"
Town of Swampscott, Massachusetts
General Obligation Refunding Bonds of 2014, Series B
Dated December 9, 2014

We have acted as bond counsel to the Town of Swampscott, Massachusetts (the “Town”) in
connection with the issuance by the Town of the above-referenced bonds (the “Bonds™). In such
capacity, we have examined the law and such certified proceedings and other papers as we have
deemed necessary to render this opinion.

As to questions of fact material to our opinion we have relied upon representations and
covenants of the Town contained in the certified proceedings and other certifications of public
officials furnished to us, without undertaking to verify the same by independent investigation.

Based on our examination, we are of the opinion, under existing law, as follows:

4. The Bonds are valid and binding general obligations of the Town and, except to
the extent they are paid from other sources, the principal of and interest on the Bonds are payable
from taxes which may be levied upon all taxable property in the Town, without limitation as to
rate or amount, except as provided under Chapter 44, Section 20 of the General Laws.

1. Interest on the Bonds is excluded from the gross income of the owners of the
Bonds for federal income tax purposes. In addition, interest on the Bonds is not a specific
preference item for purposes of the federal individual or corporate alternative minimum taxes.
However, such interest is included in adjusted current earnings when calculating corporate
alternative minimum taxable income. In rendering the opinions set forth in this paragraph, we
have assumed compliance by the Town with all requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986 that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order that interest thereon
be, and continue to be, excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. The Town
has covenanted to comply with all such requirements. Failure by the Town to comply with

" Preliminary, subject to change.
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certain of such requirements may cause interest on the Bonds to become included in gross
income for federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds. We
express no opinion regarding any other federal tax consequences arising with respect to the
Bonds.

2. Interest on the Bonds is exempt from Massachusetts personal income taxes and
the Bonds are exempt from Massachusetts personal property taxes. We express no opinion
regarding any other Massachusetts tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds or any tax
consequences arising with respect to the Bonds under the laws of any state other than
Massachusetts.

This opinion is expressed as of the date hereof, and we neither assume nor undertake any
obligation to update, revise, supplement or restate this opinion to reflect any action taken or
omitted, or any facts or circumstances or changes in law or in the interpretation thereof, that may
hereafter arise or occur, or for any other reason.

The rights of the holders of the Bonds and the enforceability of the Bonds may be subject to
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws affecting creditors’
rights heretofore or hereafter enacted to the extent constitutionally applicable, and their
enforcement may also be subject to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases.

EDWARDS WILDMAN PALMER LLP

AM 41776863.1
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APPENDIX D

PROPOSED FORM OF
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE

This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the “Disclosure Certificate™) is executed and
delivered by the Town of Swampscott, Massachusetts (the “Issuer”) in connection with the
issuance of its $9,008,858" General Obligation Municipal Purpose Loan of 2014 Bonds, Series A
and $5,985,000* General Obligation Refunding Bonds of 2014, Series B each dated December 9,
2014 (the “Bonds”). The Issuer covenants and agrees as follows:

SECTION 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate. This Disclosure Certificate is being
executed and delivered by the Issuer for the benefit of the Owners of the Bonds and in order to
assist the Participating Underwriters in complying with the Rule.

SECTION 2. Definitions. For purposes of this Disclosure Certificate the following
capitalized terms shall have the following meanings:

“Annual Report” shall mean any Annual Report provided by the Issuer pursuant to, and
as described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.

“Listed Events” shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure
Certificate.

“MSRB” shall mean the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board as established pursuant
to Section 15B(b)(1) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or any successor thereto or to the
functions of the MSRB contemplated by this Disclosure Certificate. Filing information relating
to the MSRB is set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto.

“Owners of the Bonds” shall mean the registered owners, including beneficial owners, of
the Bonds.

“Participating Underwriter” shall mean any of the original underwriters of the Bonds
required to comply with the Rule in connection with offering of the Bonds.

“Rule” shall mean Rule 15¢2-12 adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time.

SECTION 3. Provision of Annual Reports.

(a) The Issuer shall, not later than 270 days after the end of each fiscal year, provide
to the MSRB an Annual Report which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this
Disclosure Certificate. The Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate
documents comprising a package, and may cross-reference other information as provided in

" Preliminary, subject to change.
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Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate; provided that the audited financial statements of the
Issuer may be submitted when available separately from the balance of the Annual Report.

(b) If the Issuer is unable to provide to the MSRB an Annual Report by the date
required in subsection (a), the Issuer shall send a notice to the MSRB, in substantially the form
attached as Exhibit B.

SECTION 4. Content of Annual Reports. The Issuer's Annual Report shall contain or
incorporate by reference the following:

(a) quantitative information for the preceding fiscal year of the type presented in the
Issuer's Official Statement dated November 20, 2014 relating to the Bonds regarding (i) the
revenues and expenditures of the Issuer relating to its operating budget, (ii) capital expenditures,
(ii1) fund balances, (iv) property tax information, (v) outstanding indebtedness and overlapping
debt of the Issuer, (vi) pension obligations of the Issuer, and (vii) other post-employment benefits
liability of the Issuer, and

(b) the most recently available audited financial statements of the Issuer, prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, with certain exceptions permitted by
the Massachusetts Uniform Municipal Accounting System promulgated by the Department of
Revenue of the Commonwealth]. If audited financial statements for the preceding fiscal year are
not available when the Annual Report is submitted, the Annual Report will include unaudited
financial statements for the preceding fiscal year and audited financial statements for such fiscal
year shall be submitted when available.

Any or all of the items listed above may be incorporated by reference from other documents,
including official statements of debt issues of the Issuer or related public entities, which (i) are
available to the public on the MSRB internet website or (ii) have been filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission. The Issuer shall clearly identify each such other document so
incorporated by reference.

SECTION 5. Reporting of Significant Events.

(a) The Issuer shall give notice, in accordance with the provisions of this Section 5,
of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds:

1. Principal and interest payment delinquencies.

2. Non-payment related defaults, if material.

3. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties.

4. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties.

5. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform.

6. Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed

or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other
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material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other material
events affecting the tax status of the Bonds.

7. Modifications to rights of the Owners of the Bonds, if material.

8. Bond calls, if material, and tender offers.

9. Defeasances.

10. Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds, if
material.

11. Rating changes.
12.  Bankruptey, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Issuer.”

13. The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the Issuer
or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Issuer, other than in the ordinary course
of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination
of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if
material.

14.  Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a
trustee, if material.

(b) Upon the occurrence of a Listed Event, the Issuer shall, in a timely manner not in
excess of ten (10) business days after the occurrence of the event, file a notice of such occurrence
with the MSRB.

SECTION 6. Transmission of Information and Notices. Unless otherwise required by
law, all notices, documents and information provided to the MSRB shall be provided in
electronic format as prescribed by the MSRB and shall be accompanied by identifying
information as prescribed by the MSRB.

SECTION 7. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The Issuer's obligations under this
Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance in accordance with the terms of
the Bonds or payment in full of all of the Bonds. If such termination occurs prior to the final
maturity of the Bonds, the Issuer shall give notice of such termination in the same manner as for
a Listed Event under Section 5(b).

" As noted in the Rule, this event is considered to occur when any of the following occur: (i) the appointment of a
receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for the Issuer in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any
proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over
substantially all of the assets or business of the Issuer, or if such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the
existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or
governmental authority, or (ii) the entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation
by a court or governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or
business of the Issuer.
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SECTION 8. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer may amend this Disclosure Certificate and any provision of this
Disclosure Certificate may be waived if such amendment or waiver is permitted by the Rule, as
evidenced by an opinion of counsel expert in federal securities law (which may include bond
counsel to the Issuer), to the effect that such amendment or waiver would not cause the
Disclosure Certificate to violate the Rule. The first Annual Report filed after enactment of any
amendment to or waiver of this Disclosure Certificate shall explain, in narrative form, the
reasons for the amendment or waiver and the impact of the change in the type of information
being provided in the Annual Report.

If the amendment provides for a change in the accounting principles to be followed in
preparing financial statements, the Annual Report for the year in which the change is made shall
present a comparison between the financial statements or information prepared on the basis of
the new accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former accounting
principles. The comparison shall include a qualitative discussion of the differences in the
accounting principles and the impact of the change in the accounting principles on the
presentation of the financial information in order to provide information to investors to enable
them to evaluate the ability of the Issuer to meet its obligations. To the extent reasonably
feasible, the comparison shall also be quantitative. A notice of the change in the accounting
principles shall be sent to the MSRB.

SECTION 9. Default. In the event of a failure of the Issuer to comply with any
provision of this Disclosure Certificate any Owner of the Bonds may seek a court order for
specific performance by the Issuer of its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate. A default
under this Disclosure Certificate shall not constitute a default with respect to the Bonds, and the
sole remedy under this Disclosure Certificate in the event of any failure of the Issuer to comply
with this Disclosure Certificate shall be an action for specific performance of the Issuer's
obligations hereunder and not for money damages in any amount.
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SECTION 10. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit
of the Owners of the Bonds from time to time, and shall create no rights in any other person or

entity.

Date: December 9, 2014

TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT,
MASSACHUSETTS

By
Treasurer

Selectmen

[EXHIBIT A: Filing Information for the MSRB]
[EXHIBIT B: Form of Notice of Failure to File Annual Report]

AM 41872015.1
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APPENDIX E
This form is provided for the convenience of bidders
but its use is not required

PROPOSAL FOR
$9,008,858*
TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS
GENERAL OBLIGATION MUNICIPAL PURPOSE LOAN OF 2014 BONDS, SERIES A

November 20, 2014
Ms. M. Ronald Mendes, Treasurer
Town of Swampscott, Massachusetts
c/o UniBank Fiscal Advisory Services, Inc.
49 Church Street
Whitinsville, Massachusetts 01588

Dear Mr. Mendes:

For all of the $9,008,858* Town of Swampscott, Massachusetts, General Obligation Municipal Purpose Loan of 2014 Bonds, Series
A, Book-Entry Only, as further described in the Notice of Sale dated November 12, 2014, we bid $9,008,858 plus a premium of
$ , plus accrued interest to the date of their delivery, provided that the Series A Bonds maturing in the several years
set forth below shall bear interest from their dated date until maturity at the respective rates per annum stated in the following table:

2016 2023 2030
2017 2024 2031
2018 2025 2032
2019 2026 2033
2020 2027 2034
2021 2028 2035
2022 2029

* Preliminary,; subject to change.
** Complete for maturing serial bonds

TERM BONDS
$ Term Bond maturing on January 15, , at % per annum
$ Term Bond maturing on January 15, , at % per annum
$ Term Bond maturing on January 15, , at % per annum

The undersigned hereby acknowledges the receipt of and the opportunity to examine the Preliminary Official Statement accompanying
the said Notice of Sale.

By

The following is our computation of the true interest cost and percent true interest cost, made as provided in the above mentioned
Notice of Sale, but not constituting any part of the foregoing proposal, of the purchase of $9,008,858* General Obligation
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2014 Bonds, Series A, under the foregoing proposal:

True Interest Cost. $ Percent True Interest Cost %

(four decimals)
sk ok sk ok %k dk sk ok ok ok sk %k ok ok sk sk sk sk sk %k ok ok sk sk sk sk sk sk ok ok sk sk sk sk sk ok ok sk sk sk sk sk sk ok sk sk ok ok sk sk %k ok ok sk ok ok sk %k ok ok ok sk sk sk ok ok ok ok ok
UniBank Fiscal Advisory Services, Inc. will assist in submitting bids on this issue if desired. Please sign a blank bid form and mail
it in advance of the sale to David M. Eisenthal at the above address or fax it to (508) 234-1938. UniBank Fiscal Advisory Services,
Inc. will act as agent for bidders if they will telephone final figures to (508) 849-4222 approximately one-half hour before the sale.
Bidders are responsible for any errors in bids submitted in this manner.
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APPENDIX E
This form is provided for the convenience of bidders
but its use is not required

PROPOSAL FOR
$5,985,000*
TOWN OF SWAMPSCOTT, MASSACHUSETTS
GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS OF 2014, SERIES B
UNLIMITED TAX

November 20, 2014
Ms. M. Ronald Mendes, Treasurer
Town of Swampscott, Massachusetts
c/o UniBank Fiscal Advisory Services, Inc.
49 Church Street
Whitinsville, Massachusetts 01588

Dear Mr. Mendes:

For all of the $5,985,000* Town of Swampscott, Massachusetts, General Obligation Refunding Bonds of 2014, Series B, Book-Entry
Only, as further described in the Notice of Sale dated November 12, 2014, we bid $5,985,000 plus a premium of $

plus accrued interest to the date of their delivery, provided that the Series B Bonds maturing in the several years set forth below shall
bear interest from their dated date until maturity at the respective rates per annum stated in the following table:

2016 2023 2030
2017 2024 2031
2018 2025 2032
2019 2026 2033
2020 2027 2034
2021 2028 2035
2022 2029

* Preliminary,; subject to change.
** Complete for maturing serial bonds

TERM BONDS
$ Term Bond maturing on May 15, , at % per annum
$ Term Bond maturing on May 15, , at % per annum
$ Term Bond maturing on May 15, , at % per annum

The undersigned hereby acknowledges the receipt of and the opportunity to examine the Preliminary Official Statement accompanying
the said Notice of Sale.

By

The following is our computation of the true interest cost and percent true interest cost, made as provided in the above mentioned
Notice of Sale, but not constituting any part of the foregoing proposal, of the purchase of $5,985,000* General Obligation
Refunding Bonds of 2014, Series B, under the foregoing proposal:

True Interest Cost. $ Percent True Interest Cost %

(four decimals)
sk sk sk sk sk sk sk ok ok oskosk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk ok sk sk sk skosk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk skosk sk sk sk sk sk ok ok sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk ook sk ok ok ok sk sk sk sk sk sk sk ok sk sk sk sk sk ok
UniBank Fiscal Advisory Services, Inc. will assist in submitting bids on this issue if desired. Please sign a blank bid form and mail
it in advance of the sale to David M. Eisenthal at the above address or fax it to (508) 234-1938. UniBank Fiscal Advisory Services,
Inc. will act as agent for bidders if they will telephone final figures to (508) 849-4222 approximately one-half hour before the sale.
Bidders are responsible for any errors in bids submitted in this manner.
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